
 

February 22, 2024~6:00 PM Oroville Planning Commission Meeting Agenda Page 1 of 4 

OROVILLE PLANNING COMMISSION/ 
HISTORICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

Oroville Police Department Conference Room,  
2055 Lincoln Steet 

Oroville, CA 
 

February 22, 2024 
REGULAR MEETING 

6:00 PM 
AGENDA 

 

 
PUBLIC ACCESS AND PARTICIPATION  
 
To view the meeting or provide comment, please see the options below. 
 
To Watch or Listen to the Meeting:  

1. Watch live feed https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCAoRW34swYl85UBfYqT7IbQ/  
2. Zoom https://zoom.us/j/99508232402?pwd=aThZc1BsUG9sWnhNYnlwZHZZdFFrQT09 

Meeting ID: 995 0823 2402 Passcode: 17351735 
3. Listen via telephone: 1-669-900-9128 

Meeting ID: 995 0823 2402 Passcode: 17351735 

To Provide Comments:  
1. Email before the meeting by 2:00 PM your comments to publiccomment@cityoforoville.org  

2. Attend in person  
 

If you would like to address the Commission at this meeting, you are requested to complete the 
blue speaker request form (located on the wall by the agendas) and hand it to the City Clerk, who 
is seated on the right of the Council Chamber.  The form assists the Clerk with minute taking and 
assists the Mayor or presiding chair in conducting an orderly meeting. Providing personal 
information on the form is voluntary.  For scheduled agenda items, please submit the form prior 
to the conclusion of the staff presentation for that item.  The Commission has established time 
limitations of three (3) minutes per speaker on all items and an overall time limit of thirty minutes for non-
agenda items. If more than 10 speaker cards are submitted for non-agenda items, the time limitation 
would be reduced to one and a half minutes per speaker. (California Government Code §54954.3(b)). 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2, the Commission is prohibited from taking action except 
for a brief response from the Council or staff to statements or questions relating to a non-agenda item. 

CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL          

Commissioners: Glenn Arace, Marissa Hallen, Natalie Sheard, Warren Jensen, Terry Smith, Vice 
Chairperson Wyatt Jenkins, Chairperson Carl Durling 

OPEN SESSION  

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

 

 
 

1

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCAoRW34swYl85UBfYqT7IbQ/
https://zoom.us/j/99508232402?pwd=aThZc1BsUG9sWnhNYnlwZHZZdFFrQT09
mailto:publiccomment@cityoforoville.org


 

February 22, 2024~6:00 PM Oroville Planning Commission Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 4 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATION – HEARING OF NON-AGENDA ITEMS  

This is the time to address the Commission about any item not listed on the agenda. If you wish to 
address the Commission on an item listed on the agenda, please follow the directions listed above. 

CONSENT CALENDAR  

None this meeting. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS  

The Public Hearing Procedure is as follows: 

- Mayor or Chairperson opens the public hearing. 

- Staff presents and answers questions from Council 

- The hearing is opened for public comment limited to two (2) minutes per speaker. In the event of 

more than ten (10) speakers, time will be limited to one and a half (1.5) minutes. Under 

Government Code 54954.3, the time for each presentation may be limited.  

- Public comment session is closed 

- Commission debate and action 

 

1. Use Permit UP24-02 for a New Unmanned Wireless Telecommunications Facility at 
3425 Orange Avenue (APN 033-390-050) for T-Mobile.  

The Oroville Planning Commission will review and consider approving Use Permit No. 
UP24-02 to allow the applicant, Vertical Bridge, to construct a new 120-foot tall unmanned 

wireless telecommunications facility configured as a stealth monopine. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the following actions: 

 
1. Conduct a Public Hearing on the proposed project. 

2. Adopt the Notice of Exemption as the appropriate level of environmental review in 
accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 

3. Adopt the recommended Findings for Use Permit No. UP24-02. 

4. Approve Use Permit No. UP24-02  

5. Adopt Resolution No. P2024-02 

2



 

February 22, 2024~6:00 PM Oroville Planning Commission Meeting Agenda Page 3 of 4 

 

2. Minor Use Permit (UP) 24-04 for Exterior Modifications, Drive-Through 
Modifications, and Site Improvements for a Proposed Starbucks Coffee Drive-
Through Establishment in an Existing Multi-Tenant Building at 2040 3rd Street (APN 
031-161-061) 

The Planning Commission will review and consider approving Minor Use Permit No. UP 
24-04 for a proposed 1,367 sq. ft. Starbucks Coffee drive-through establishment with 12-
vehicle stacking, building modifications, and associated site improvements. The Planning 
Commission previously approved UP 13-06 on September 23, 2013, which allowed for 
the construction of an approximately 4,000 sq. ft. multi-tenant building with a drive-
through window in Suite B. UP 13-06 has since expired and relevant circumstances have 
changed significantly since the 2013 approval, thus necessitating the submittal of a new 
Minor Use Permit.   

 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the following actions: 

 
1. Conduct a Public Hearing on the proposed project; 

2. Adopt the Notice of Exemption as the appropriate level of environmental review in 
accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); 

3. Adopt the recommended Findings for Minor Use Permit No. UP 24-04; 

4. Approve Minor Use Permit UP 24-04 and recommended Conditions of Approval; 

5. Adopt Resolution No. P2024-04 

REGULAR BUSINESS  

3. Veterans Village Tentative Map Extension #1 

The Oroville Planning Commission may consider extending approval of the existing 
Tentative Subdivision Map for Veterans Village at 711 Montgomery Street to April 8th, 
2026 (APN 012-064-001). 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the following actions: 

 

1. Conduct a Public Hearing to consider extending the existing Subdivision Map. 

2. Approve the Map extension until April 8, 2026.  

3. Adopt Resolution No. P2024-03 extending the deadline for filing a Final Subdivision 
Map for TSM 20-02 for two years until April 8, 2026, with the stipulation that approval 
of the Final Map shall remain subject to all conditions of approval identified in the 
Letter of Approval dated, May 6, 2021.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

3



 

February 22, 2024~6:00 PM Oroville Planning Commission Meeting Agenda Page 4 of 4 

REPORTS / DISCUSSIONS / CORRESPONDENCE 

 1.   Commissioner Reports 

 2.   Historical Advisory Commission Reports 

 3.   Staff Reports 

4. Fred Mayo, Public Works Director, will describe the planned lighting scheme for the 
Liberty Pole at the corner of Huntoon and Montgomery Streets. 

ADJOURN THE MEETING 

The meeting will be adjourned. A regular meeting of the Oroville Planning Commission will be held on 
March 28, 2024 at 6:00 PM. 

 
Accommodating Those Individuals with Special Needs – In compliance with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, the City of Oroville encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public 
meeting process. If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in our public 
meetings, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 538-2535, well in advance of the regular meeting you 
wish to attend, so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you. Documents distributed 
for public session items, less than 72 hours prior to meeting, are available for public inspection at City 
Hall, 1735 Montgomery Street, Oroville, California. 
 
Recordings - All meetings are recorded and broadcast live on cityoforoville.org and YouTube. 
 
Planning Commission Decisions - Any person who is dissatisfied with the decisions of this Planning 
Commission may appeal to the City Council by filing with the Zoning Administrator within fifteen days 
from the date of the action.  A written notice of appeal specifying the grounds and an appeal fee 
immediately payable to the City of Oroville must be submitted at the time of filing.  The Oroville City 
Council may sustain, modify or overrule this decision. 
 

 

 

 

 

4



 1 

 

City of Oroville 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA  95965-4897    
 (530) 538-2430   FAX (530) 538-2426 
www.cityoforoville.org 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT  Thursday, February 22, 2024 

RE:  Use Permit UP24-02 for a new unmanned wireless telecommunications facility at 
3425 Orange Avenue (APN 033-390-050) for T-Mobile.  

SUMMARY:  The Oroville Planning Commission will review and consider approving Use 
Permit No. UP24-02 to allow the applicant, Vertical Bridge, to construct a new 120-foot tall 

unmanned wireless telecommunications facility configured as a stealth monopine. 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the following actions: 

1. Conduct a Public Hearing on the proposed project. 

2. Adopt the Notice of Exemption as the appropriate level of environmental review in 
accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). 

3. Adopt the recommended Findings for Use Permit No. UP24-02. 

4. Approve Use Permit No. UP24-02  

5. Adopt Resolution No. P2024-02 

 

APPLICANT: Adrian Culici, Project Representative for Vertical Bridge 

LOCATION:  3425 Orange Ave 

Oroville, CA 95966 

(APN 033-390-050) 

 

 

GENERAL PLAN:  MU (Mixed Use) 

ZONING:  MXN (Neighborhood Mixed Use) 

FLOOD ZONE:  X 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:   Categorically Exempt per Title 14, Division 6, 
Chapter 3 of the California Code of Regulations, Article 19 Categorical Exemptions, Section 
15332 “IN-FILL DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS” 

 

REPORT PREPARED BY: 

 

___________________________ 
Noelle Snow, Community Dev. Tech II 
Community Development Department 

REVIEWED BY: 

 

___________________________ 
Patrick Piatt, Community Development Director 
Community Development Department 

5

Item 1.

http://www.cityoforoville.org/


 2 

DISCUSSION: 

 

The Oroville Planning Commission will review and consider approving Use Permit No. 
UP24-02 to allow the applicant, Vertical Bridge, to construct a new unmanned wireless 

telecommunications facility due to lack of coverage in the area. Oroville’s Wireless 
Communication Facility Ordinance (OMC 17.16.170) requires a use permit for this project. The 
project consists of a 120’ co-locatable monopine with (10) 8’ antennas, (6) RRU’S (remote radio 
unit), (3) 3’ microwave, (1) GPS antenna, required antenna cabling, HCS jumpers, and a 10-foot 
lightning rod at the top of the monopine. The project includes (2) ground mounted radio 
cabinets, (1) raised concrete pad, cable ice bridge, utility backboard and multi-meter utility 
service mounted H-frame. The site will be within a 40’x40’ fenced lease area with the tower 
contained within a 6-foot-tall chain link fence. A 12’ wide double swing access gate will be 
installed as part of the project along with a 12’ graveled access road.  

 

The project is on the southern half of a 4.31-acre parcel APN 033-390-050. The northern half is 
occupied by the Oro Lake Mobile Home Park. The monopine will be approximately 110 feet 
away from the homes. The Landlord has granted permission to pursue this project on their 
property. 

 

Oroville’s Wireless Communication Facilities Ordinance (OMC 17.16.170) has a number of 
requirements, which the applicant has fulfilled: 

 According to the EME-RF Safety Study provided (per OMC 17.16.170.G), the wireless 
telecommunications tower will be in compliance with the FCC guidelines limiting public 
exposure to RF energy. The EME-RF Safety Study, conducted by Hammett & Edison, Inc., 
Consulting Engineers, evaluated the wireless tower for compliance with appropriate 
guidelines limiting human exposure to radio frequency (RF) electromagnetic fields. Their 
findings are that the proposed operation will comply with the FCC guidelines limiting public 
exposure to RF energy. The report’s conclusion states that the project: “… will comply with 
the prevailing standards for limiting public exposure to radio frequency energy and therefore, 
will not for this reason cause a significant impact on the environment.”  

 An Alternative Analysis has been completed by the applicant where they looked at eleven 
sites. The proposed project location was the only one that met the coverage footprint 
requirements of the project. It’s height is required to meet the proposed improved coverage 
in buildings, in vehicles, and outdoors.  The proposed project complies with all design code 
parameters, and also falls within allowed uses per the zoning code 17.34.020 (utility 
building or substation). 

 Visually this tower will be configured to resemble a pine tree and the antennas and RRUS 
will be painted green to match the monopine to provide for aesthetic compatibility and 
comply with the city’s requirement to camouflage the equipment. No special painting or 
lighting is required by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) due to the tower being 
under 200 feet. 

 The city has received confirmation from the Western Area Power Administration (WAPA), 
who owns the high tension transmission lines 120 feet away, that this project will not conflict 
with their facility.  The city has also received confirmation that the project will not interfere 
with the PG&E power lines 90 feet away.   

6

Item 1.



 3 

 This telecommunication facility is designed to be co-locatable to promote future facility and 
site sharing. 

 No water nor sewer service is required. Once constructed, the facility will be unmanned, and 
will generate very little traffic – only for maintenance.  

 

If approved, the permit will have a term of 10 years in accordance with OMC 17.16.170(I)(1). 
The applicant will of course also be required to obtain a building permit issued by the City. 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: 

 

This action has determined to be Categorically Exempt from the California   
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) review pursuant to Title 14, Division 6, Chapter 3 of 
the California Code of Regulations, Article 19 Categorical Exemptions, Section 15332 
“IN-FILL DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS”. This is an existing developed parcel; the tower 
will be compatible with the towers that are already in existence surrounding the area. 

 This project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and all 
applicable general plan policies (P 10.1-10.6), as well as with applicable zoning 
designation and regulations. (OMC 17.16.170) 

o The project occurs within city limits on a project site of no more than five 
acres. The project site itself is 1.2 acres, the total parcel is 4.310 acres. 

 The project has no value as habitat for endangered, rare or threatened species. 
The site is fully disturbed and was formerly developed. 

 Approval of the project would not result in any significant effects relating to traffic, 
noise, or air quality. This will be an unmanned facility and will not contribute to any 
traffic. 

 The new 120-foot tower is in close proximity to existing transmission and power 
lines of similar size, height, and visual impact, so no new aesthetic impacts will 
occur.  

 The project can be adequately served by all required utilities. The facility only 
requires power and telephone connections which are present in this area of the city. 
No water or sewer service is required. 

 The project will not affect public services.  

 In addition, the project is consistent with Oroville’s Wireless Communications 
Facilities Ordinance (OMC 17.16.170). The project is a permitted use in the MXN 
Zone as a “Utility building or substation” and requires no variances or other 
entitlements other than the use permit. 

 Lastly, the project is beneficial in that it will improve coverage for communications 
that has been limited in the vicinity.  

 

7

Item 1.



 4 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

None.  The project is subject to all customary fees. 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE: 

A request for comments was prepared and circulated to the local agencies and 
surrounding property owners within 300 feet of the property. Additionally, the meeting 
date, time, and project description were published in the Oroville Mercury 
Register and posted at City Hall. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Consolidated Application form and drawings, including photo simulations, EME-RF study, 
coverage maps, alternatives analysis.  

2. WAPA email confirming no conflict. 

3. Resolution P2024-02  

4. Notice of Exemption  

 

8

Item 1.



 
 

 

USE PERMIT APPLICATION 
(Please print clearly and fill in/provide all that apply) 

REQUIRED FOR A COMPLETE APPLICATION PERMIT TYPE 

 Completed and signed Application Forms  
New Use Permit:  
$3,500 (Deposit) + $210(6% Tech Fee) = $3,710 

 Application Fee Paid  
Amendment to Existing Use Permit:  
$2,100 + $126 (6% Tech Fee) = $2,226 

PROJECT PLANS 
All plans and drawings shall be drawn to scale to the extent feasible and shall indicate the full dimensions, contours and other 
topographic features and all information necessary to make a full evaluation of the project. Please include the following: 

 1. Site and floor plans, including the location, square footage and use of all structures. 

 2. Architectural drawings showing proposed building elevations. 

 3. Landscape plans showing the types, sizes and location of vegetation to be planted and the irrigation system to be installed 

 4. Plans for the configuration & layout of all off-street parking spaces, including entrances, exits and internal circulation routes. 

 5. Plans for all lighting to be installed on the site, including the location, type, height and brightness of each lighting fixture. 

 6. Drawings of all signs that are proposed in association with the project. 

 7. Plans showing the location, sq footage and capacity of any existing or proposed surface storm-water detention facilities. 

 8. Plans showing the location and square footage of any existing or proposed outdoor storage areas. 

 9. Descriptions of any off-site infrastructure improvements to be provided in conjunction with the project. 

 10. Hours of operation for all proposed land uses. 

 11. Number of employees and fleet vehicles for all proposed land uses 

 12. A letter authorizing the use permit application from the owner of the property. 

CLASSIFICATION 

 Alcohol & Beverage Sales  Nonconforming Uses & Structures  Uses in Industrial Districts 

 Agricultural Uses  Outdoor Storage  Uses Mini-Storage Overlay(MS-O) 

 Animal Keeping (Commercial)  Parking Requirement Exceptions  Uses in Residential Districts 

 Barbed/Razor Wire Fence  Temporary Use  Uses in Special Purpose Districts 

 Density Bonus & Other Incentives  Uses in a Conditional Overlay (C-O)  Uses not Specified but Allowed 

 Exceptions to Height Limits  
Uses in Commercial & Mixed-Use 
Districts 

 Wireless Communication Facilities 

 Other: (Please Specify)  

APPLICANT’S SIGNATURE 

I hereby certify that the information provided in this application is, to my knowledge, true and correct. 

Signature: Date:  

OFFICE USE ONLY 

Approved By:  Date:  

Payment:  Number:  

 
 
 

City of Oroville 
Planning Division - Community Development Department 
 

1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA  95965-4897    
(530) 538-2420   FAX (530) 538-2426 
www.cityoforoville.org 

 
 

 

     TRAKIT#: 

11-16-23

9

Item 1.

http://www.cityoforoville.org/


 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

Present or Previous Use:  

Proposed Use:    

Detailed Description:  

The Community Development Department operates on a full cost recovery for processing of permits. Staff will charge their time and any expenses 
associated with processing the application against the initial deposit. Fees that have been captured for the reimbursement of City expenses are non-
refundable. 
 
Technology cost recovery fees are non-refundable 
 

MXN - MIXED-USE DISTRICT
WTF (Wireless Telecommunications Facility

CONSTRUCTION OF TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND PUBLIC UTILITY
FACILITY, CONSISTING OF A 120' MONOPINE WITH (10) 8' ANTENNAS,
(6) RRU'S, (1) 3' MICROWAVE, (1) GPS ANTENNA, REQUIRED ANTENNA
CABLING, HCS JUMPERS, (2) GROUND MOUNTED RADIO CABINETS,
(1) RAISED CONCRETE PADS, CABLE ICE BRIDGE, UTILITY
BACKBOARD AND MULTI-METER UTILITY SERVICE MOUNTED ON
H-FRAME WITHIN A 40'x40' FENCED LEASE AREA. NO WATER OR
SEWER SERVICE IS REQUIRED. THIS WILL BE AN UNMANNED
FACILITY.

10

Item 1.



 
 
 
 
 

WIRELESS COMMUNICATION FACILITIES 
(Please print clearly and fill in/provide all that apply) 

  REQUIRED FOR A COMPLETE APPLICATION TYPE OF PERMIT  

      { } Completed and signed Application Forms Please Select the Appropriate Permit: (See back page) 

      { } Application Fees Paid 

      { } All Documentation Specified Below 

{ } Administrative Permit: $435 + $26.10 ( 6% Tech Fee) = $461.10 

{ } Amendment to Existing Use Permit: $2,100 + $126(6% Tech Fee) = $2,226 

         { } Use Permit: $3,500 (Deposit) + $210 (6% Tech Fee) = $3,710 
 

** Please review the Oroville Municipal Code Section 26-16.170 for all requirements of a Wireless Communication Facility.  

 

REQUIRED INFORMATION 

1.   The applicant shall supply, at a minimum, the following background information, in addition to any further information required by 

the Zoning Administrator: 

{ } a. Operator’s name, address and telephone number. { } j. Height of existing building, if any. 

{ } b. Agent’s name, address and telephone number, if any. { } k. Proposed antenna height. 

{ } c. Street address of proposed site, or nearest street address to the site. { } l. Size and type of tower, if any. 

{ } d. Assessor’s Parcel Number (APN), or the APN of the nearest parcel. { } m. Size and type of antenna. 

{ } e. Type of communication service to be provided. { } n. Type of transmitter.  

{ } f. Property owner’s name and address. { } o. Broadcast power. 

{ } g. Lease term, if applicable. { } p. Radio frequencies used. 
{ } h. Site ground elevation. { } q. Coverage area. 
{ } i. Identifying characteristics of any existing antennas on site. { } r. Proposed screening, if any. 

 

 

2.  A site plan shall be submitted with sufficient detail to understand the location of the facility and any landscape features that may 

screen it. At a minimum, the site plan shall include property boundaries and dimensioned setbacks of any existing and proposed 

structures, communication equipment and accessory structures. Any existing and proposed landscaping or other materials that would 

screen the proposed wireless communication facility shall also be shown. 
 

3.  The applicant shall provide architectural plans and elevation drawings, as applicable, with sufficient detail to understand the design 

and appearance of the facility. At a minimum, these drawings should convey existing heights, proposed heights, materials, colors, 

schematic antenna mounting details, any proposed screening structures, if any, schematic cable runs, design of any exterior cable 

enclosures, if any, location of associated equipment and design of accessory structures. 
 

4.    If an RF Environmental Evaluation report is required by this section, the report shall be submitted with the permit application. 

 

5.   For a facility that requires a use permit, a photo simulation of the project shall be provided. The photo simulation shall be created 

using a photograph of the proposed site, from a location approved by the Zoning Administrator, with the proposed facility 

superimposed on it in a manner that accurately shows the scale, shape and color of the proposed facility. The purpose of the photo 

simulation is to assist in arriving at a determination of the level of significance of the proposed facility’s visual impact. 
 

6.   For a facility that requires a use permit, an Alternative Analysis shall be prepared by or on behalf of the operator, in accordance with 

the following requirements: 

a. The Alternative Analysis shall consider alternative locations and designs for the proposed facility. Alternatives included in the 

analysis should generally include co-location at all existing wireless communication facilities within ¼ mile of the proposed 

facility, as well as lower, more closely spaced wireless communication facilities. The alternatives to be analyzed shall be 

approved by the Zoning Administrator. 

b. The Alternative Analysis shall show whether or not the proposed siting and design would have the least possible environmental 

and visual effect on the community and whether any alternative site or design is available that would allow for issuance of an 

administrative permit for the facility. 

c. The Zoning Administrator may, at this or her discretion, employ an independent technical expert to review this Alternatives 

Analysis on behalf of the City. The operator shall bear the costs of this review. 
  

                                                                                      APPLICANT’S SIGNATURE 

                                              I hereby certify that all provided information is, to my knowledge, true and correct. 

 
 

Applicant’s Signature:  Date:  

City of Oroville 
Planning Division - Community Development Department 
 

1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA  95965-4897    
(530) 538-2420   FAX (530) 538-2426 
www.cityoforoville.org 

 
 

 

     TRAKIT#:___________________ 

11-16-23 11

Item 1.

http://www.cityoforoville.org/


ADMINISTRATIVE PERMIT REQUIREMENTS 

______  1. Receive-only antennas and receive-only satellite antennas that are not exempt from Section 17.16.170 of the City Code. 
 

______  2. Amateur radio facilities.  
 

______  3. Wireless communication facilities installed on City-owned property. An executed license or lease agreement shall also be 

required. 

______  4. Wireless communication facilities installed in commercial and industrial zoning districts, provided that they are at least 500 

feet from a residential district. 
 

______  5. Colocation of new wireless communication facilities within a collocation facility, provided that the collocation facility was 

previously approved through a use permit or other discretionary permit. 
 

USE PERMIT REQUIREMENTS 
 

 A use permit is required for any wireless communication facility that is subject to the requirements of this section and that does not 

qualify for an administrative permit. In order for the Planning Commission to approve a proposed wireless communication facility under a 

use permit, the Commission shall make the findings required for a use permit, as well as the following additional findings: 
 

1.  No alternative site design is available that would allow for issuance of an administrative permit for the facility. 
 

2.     The facility either does not require a Radiofrequency (RF) Environmental Evaluation Report or the RF Environmental Evaluation 

Report for the facility shows that the cumulative non-ionizing electromagnetic radiation (NIER) emitted by the facility and any 

nearby facilities will be consistent with FFC regulations (Ord. 1769).  

3.     The facility will not have significant visual impacts. 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 

{  } Credit Card #:_____________   {  } Debit Card #:  ____________    {  } Money Order    {  } Cash    {  } Check #__________ 
 

 

 
The Community Development Department operates on a full cost recovery for processing of permits. Staff will charge their time and any expenses 
associated with processing the application against the initial deposit. Fees that have been captured for the reimbursement of City expenses are non-
refundable. 
 
Technology cost recovery fees are non-refundable 

 

12

Item 1.



PLANNING DIVISION GENERAL APPLICATION 
(Please print clearly and fill in all that apply) 

APPLICANT’S INFORMATION Project’s: 

Name: Name: 

Address: Company: 

Phone: Address: 

Email: Phone: 

Is the applicant the Owner? 
If applicant is Not the owner, please provide 
owner /agent authorization on the reverse 
side. 

Email: 

DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS & OTHER APPLICATIONS (Please check all that apply) 

Annexation Landmark /Modification/Demolition Tentative Parcel Map 

Appeal Mining and Reclamation Plan Tentative Subdivision Map 

Development Review Pre-Application Use Permit 

Final Map Residential Density Bonus Variance 

General Plan Amendment/Rezone Temporary Use Wireless Communication Facilities 

Landmark Designation Tentative Map Extension Zoning Clearance 

Other: (Please Specify) 

ADMINISTRATIVE PERMITS (Please check all that apply) 

Adult Oriented Business Outdoor Storage Special Event 

Home Occupation Outdoor Display & Sales Street Closure 

Large Family Day Care Second Dwelling Unit Tree Removal 

Mobile Food Vendor Sign/Temporary Sign Permit 

Other: (Please Specify) 

*Please provide a letter addressed to the Planning Division with a detailed description for the proposed project. Please include any
site plans, maps, aerials, photos, and other relevant information that will help us in processing your application. 
** Any time a set of plans is required, three (3) sets of drawings shall be submitted, unless otherwise directed. 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

Project Name: Proposed Structure(s) (Sq Ft.): 

Address: Existing Structure(s) (Sq Ft.): 

Nearest Cross Street: Water Provider: 

Assessor Parcel Number: School District: 

Lot Size (Acres): Number of Dwelling Units: 

APPLICANT’S SIGNATURE 

I hereby certify that the information provided in this application is, to my knowledge, true and correct. 

Signature: Date: 

OFFICE USE ONLY 

General Plan: Zoning: Zoning Conformity: APN: 

File# Overlay Zoning: Minimum Setbacks: FY RY SY 

City of Oroville 
Planning Division - Community Development Department 

1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA  95965-4897    
(530) 538-2430   FAX (530) 538-2426 
www.cityoforoville.org 

TRAKIT#:

VB BTS II, LLC (Vertical Bridge) Adrian Culici
1499 Huntington Dr, Suite 305, South Pasadena, CA 91030 Assurance Developemnt, obo VB BTS II, LLC (Vertical Bridge)

323-573-0045 1499 Huntington Dr, Suite 305, South Pasadena, CA 91030

aculici@assurance-group.com 323-573-0045
aculici@assurance-group.com

CA-5455 1600
3425 Orange Ave NA

Acacia Ave
033-390-050

1.2 AC

11-16-23

✔

✔

Consultant

 

13

Item 1.

http://www.cityoforoville.org/


AGENT AUTHORIZATION 

To the City of Oroville, Department of Community Development 

NAME OF AGENT:  PHONE NUMBER:  

COMPANY NAME:  EMAIL:  

ADDRESS:  CITY/ST/ZIP:  

AGENT SIGNATURE:   

Is hereby authorized to process this application on my/our property, identified as Butte County Assessor Parcel Number (s): 

 

This authorization allows representation for all applications, hearings, appeals, etc. and to sign all documents necessary for 
said processing, but not including document (s) relating to record title interest.   

 
 

Owner(s) of Record (sign and print name) 

 
The Community Development Department operates on a full cost recovery for processing of permits. Staff will charge their time and any expenses 
associated with processing the application against the initial deposit. Fees that have been captured for the reimbursement of City expenses are non-
refundable. 
 
Technology cost recovery fees are non-refundable 

1) 

Print Name of Owner 
 
 

    

2) 

Print Name of Owner 
 
 

 Signature of Owner  Date 

3) 

Print Name of Owner 
 
 

 Signature of Owner  Date 

4) 

Print Name of Owner 
 
 

 Signature of Owner  Date 

 Print Name of Owner 
 
 

 Signature of Owner  Date  

 Owner’s Mailing Address  
 

 Owner’s Email  Owner’s Phone # 

Adrian Culici 323-573-0045
1499 Huntington Dr, Suite 305 aculici@assurance-group.com

South Pasadena, CA 91030

See LOA

Taylor Coe (see LOA)

88 Aspen Glen Ct See Agent See Agent

14

Item 1.



 
 
November 16, 2023 
 
Planning Division 
City of Oroville 
1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA 95965 
 
RE: Vertical Bridge Tower – CA- 5455 – Wireless Telecom Facility Use Permit Submittal 
for New Wireless Tower 
 
Hi, 
 
Attached you will find the Use Permit submittal materials for a new wireless tower 
located at 3425 Orange Ave, Oroville, CA 95966. Please feel free to reach out to me 
should you have any questions. 
 

o Cover Letter 
o Shot Clock Letter 
o Use Permit Application – WTF CUP 
o LOA 
o Project Narrative 

o Project Description 
o Project Objective 
o Coverage Maps 
o Radio Frequency Statement 

o Project plans - Site Plan, Elevations and Survey 
o Photo Simulations 
o EME – RF Safety Study 
o Grant Deed and Legal Description 

 
Let me know if you have any questions. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
  Adrian Culici 

Adrian Culici 
Site Acquisition Planner 

 
CELL 323 573 0045 
FAX 626 322 0880 
WEB assurance-development.com 

 
 
 

www.Assurance-Development.com | 626-765-5079 

15

Item 1.



 

November 17, 2023 
 
Planning Division 
City of Oroville 
1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA 95965 
 
Applicant: VB BTS II, LLC (Vertical Bridge) 
Property Owner: Taylor Coe 
Property Address: 3425 Orange Ave, Oroville, CA 95966 
APN: 033-390-050 
RE: Wireless Application – CUP - VB-CA-5455 

Vertical Bridge seeks the requisite conditional use permit approvals to install a new 
telecommunications facility at the parcel with APN number: 033-390-050. The proposal 
consists of a 120’ monopine wireless facility. The submittal items are submitted with this 
letter.  

Under the Telecommunications Act of 1996 (“Act”), the County is required to take action on 
Vertical Bridge’s application “within a reasonable period of time.” In a 2009 declaratory 
ruling, the Federal Communications Commission established a legal presumption that a 
“reasonable period of time” means 150 days to act on an application for a new wireless 
facility (the “shot clock”). Because the proposed facility seeks to locate a new personal 
wireless service facility, the city must take action on Vertical Bridge’s application within 150 
days. The shot clock began to run the day the application was submitted on November 17, 
2023.  As such, the county must take final action no later than 150 days from today, or April 
16, 2024.  

Vertical Bridge respectfully requests that this application be approved and any requisite 
conditional use permit be issued as soon as possible but no later than April 16, 2024. If you 
have any questions regarding this application, please contact me.  

Sincerely, 

Adrian Culici 
Adrian Culici 
Site Acquisition 
 

 

CELL         323 573 0045       
FAX          626 322 0880 
WEB         assurance-development.com 

 

16

Item 1.

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fassurance-development.com%2f&c=E,1,I6XROn9Xtwx8QXlYUuqZyVpbmYpk2UqdXIKc8rE_fLDhVOMZ1YvXA9QXNIR_OoaW5koSN0PYAP6g59ookpzMteelSKACyAtEvgrcBZXOslY5VPsouZI,&typo=1


DRWG. #

T1

PROJECT INFORMATION
SITE NAME:
SITE NUMBER:

SITE ADDRESS:

PARCEL #:
DEED REFERENCE:
ZONING CLASSIFICATION:
ZONING JURISDICTION:

GROUND ELEVATION:

STRUCTURE TYPE:
STRUCTURE HEIGHT:
CONSTRUCTION AREA:

LATITUDE (NAD 83):
LONGITUDE (NAD 83):

OAK PARK WAY
US-CA-5455

3425 ORANGE AVE
OROVILLE, CA 95966
033-390-050
N/A

CITY OF OROVILLE

277.4' (NAVD88)

MONOPINE
120'
1,600 SQ. FT.

39.515706° (39° 30' 56.54" N)
-121.538175° (121° 32' 17.43" W)

EMERGENCY:
CALL 911

POWER COMPANY:

TELCO COMPANY:

DRAWING INDEX
TITLE

TITLE SHEET

PROPERTY OWNER:

PROJECT DIRECTORY

APPLICANT:

PG&E

AT&T

VERTICAL BRIDGE
750 PARK OF COMMERCE DR. #200
BOCA RATON, FL 33487

TAYLOR COE
88 ASPEN GLEN CT
EDWARDS, CO 811632

CONTACT: ASSURANCE DEVELOPMENT
1499 HUNTINGTON DR. #305
SOUTH PASADENA, CA 91030
CONTACT: BILL LEWIS
PHONE: 626.765.5079

US-CA-5455 OAK PARK WAY
3425 ORANGE AVE

OROVILLE, CA 95966
120' MONOPINE

TENANT SITE ID: SC60559C

LS-1 SITE SURVEY

A1 SITE PLAN

A2

ENLARGED COMPOUND PLANA3

EQUIPMENT AND ANTENNA PLANA4

ELEVATIONS

VICINITY MAP
N.T.S.

NN

LS-2 SITE SURVEY

UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT
(800) 642-2444

WWW.CALIFORNIA811.ORG

CALL 2 TO 14 WORKING DAYS UTILITY NOTIFICATION
PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTIONUNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT

A PUBLIC SERVICE BY

YOU DIG
DAYS BEFORE
TWO WORKING

1-800-227-2600

DIAL

TOLL FREE

BEFORE
YOU DIG

CONSTRUCTION TYPE: V-B
OCCUPANCY: U (UNMANNED TELECOM FACILITY)
NO. OF STORIES: 1 (ENCLOSURE ONLY)
SPRINKLER: NONE

TENANT SITE ID: SC60559C

MXN - MIXED-USE DISTRICT

SITE

SITE

APPROVAL BLOCK
 APPROVED

VERTICAL BRIDGE

SITE ACQUISITION

CONSTRUCTION MANAGER

PERMITTING

RF ENGINEERING

DATE

DATE

DATE

DATE

DATE

 APPROVED
AS NOTED

 DISAPPROVED
REVISE

LOCATION MAP
N.T.S.

NO. SUBMITTAL / REVISION

DRAWN:
DESIGNED:
CHECKED:

JR
JR
BL

PROJECT NUMBER:
US-CA-5455

PROJECT TITLE:

US-CA-5455
SC60559C

OAK PARK WAY
3425 ORANGE AVE

OROVILLE, CA 95966

ENGINEER STAMP:

09/13/23
DATE

JR

DRAWING TITLE:

DRAWING SCALE:

AS NOTED

DATE:
09/13/23

DRAWING NUMBER:

ZD

ISSUED FOR REVIEWA
BY

UNAUTHORIZED ALTERATION OR ADDITION TO
THIS DOCUMENT IS A VIOLATION OF

APPLICABLE STATE AND / OR LOCAL LAWS

750 PARK OF COMMERCE DR.
SUITE 200 | BOCA RATON, FL | 33487

561.948.6367

SITE ACQUISITION

1499 HUNTINGTON DR. | SUITE 305
SOUTH PASADENA, CA | 91030

626.765.5079

CLIENT

T-1

10/03/23CVISSUED FOR ZONING0

TITLE SHEET

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

CODE COMPLIANCE:

CONSTRUCTION OF TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND PUBLIC UTILITY
FACILITY, CONSISTING OF A 120' MONOPINE WITH (10) 8' ANTENNAS,
(6) RRU'S, (1) 3' MICROWAVE, (1) GPS ANTENNA, REQUIRED ANTENNA
CABLING, HCS JUMPERS, (2) GROUND MOUNTED RADIO CABINETS,
(1) RAISED CONCRETE PADS, CABLE ICE BRIDGE, UTILITY
BACKBOARD AND MULTI-METER UTILITY SERVICE MOUNTED ON
H-FRAME WITHIN A 40'x40' FENCED LEASE AREA. NO WATER OR
SEWER SERVICE IS REQUIRED. THIS WILL BE AN UNMANNED
FACILITY.

ALL WORK AND MATERIALS SHALL BE PERFORMED AND INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE CURRENT EDITIONS OF THE FOLLOWING CODES AS ADOPTED BY THE LOCAL
GOVERNING AUTHORITIES. NOTHING IN THESE PLANS IS TO BE CONSTRUCTED TO
PERMIT WORK NOT CONFORMING TO THESE CODES.

1. 2022 CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE
2. 2022 CALIFORNIA TITLE 24
3. 2022 CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE
3. 2022 CALIFORNIA ELECTRIC CODE
4. 2022 CALIFORNIA ENERGY CODE
5. 2022 CALIFORNIA MECHANICAL CODE
6. TIA/EIA-222-H OR LATEST EDITION
5. ANY LOCAL BUILDING CODE AMENDMENTS TO THE ABOVE
6. CITY/COUNTY ORDINANCES

A5

ENLARGED SITE PLAN

17

Item 1.



18

Item 1.



19

Item 1.



NO. SUBMITTAL / REVISION

DRAWN:
DESIGNED:
CHECKED:

JR
JR
BL

PROJECT NUMBER:
US-CA-5455

PROJECT TITLE:

US-CA-5455
SC60559C

OAK PARK WAY
3425 ORANGE AVE

OROVILLE, CA 95966

ENGINEER STAMP:

09/13/23
DATE

JR

DRAWING TITLE:

DRAWING SCALE:

AS NOTED

DATE:
09/13/23

DRAWING NUMBER:

ZD

ISSUED FOR REVIEWA
BY

UNAUTHORIZED ALTERATION OR ADDITION TO
THIS DOCUMENT IS A VIOLATION OF

APPLICABLE STATE AND / OR LOCAL LAWS

750 PARK OF COMMERCE DR.
SUITE 200 | BOCA RATON, FL | 33487

561.948.6367

SITE ACQUISITION

1499 HUNTINGTON DR. | SUITE 305
SOUTH PASADENA, CA | 91030

626.765.5079

CLIENT

A1

10/03/23CVISSUED FOR ZONING0

SITE PLAN

1SITE PLAN
20

Item 1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OROVILLE DAM BOULEVARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
APN:  033-390-050

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"x36" SCALE: 1" = 50'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
11"x17" SCALE: 1" = 100'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) CHAIN-LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) LATTICE TOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)  MOBILE HOME PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) ASPHALT DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) UTILITY POLE ID#: 100424148

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) UTILITY POLE ID#: 100424149

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) UTILITY POLE W/ XFRMR  ID#: 100374222

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) UTILITY POLE ID#: 100374231

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) UTILITY POLE ID#: 120055773, POWER P.O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) UTILITY POLE ID#: 100428609

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) OVERHEAD POWER LINES

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) OVERHEAD POWER LINES

AutoCAD SHX Text
120'-7"

AutoCAD SHX Text
213'-7"



ENLARGED SITE PLAN

NO. SUBMITTAL / REVISION

DRAWN:
DESIGNED:
CHECKED:

JR
JR
BL

PROJECT NUMBER:
US-CA-5455

PROJECT TITLE:

US-CA-5455
SC60559C

OAK PARK WAY
3425 ORANGE AVE

OROVILLE, CA 95966

ENGINEER STAMP:

09/13/23
DATE

JR

DRAWING TITLE:

DRAWING SCALE:

AS NOTED

DATE:
09/13/23

DRAWING NUMBER:

ZD

ISSUED FOR REVIEWA
BY

UNAUTHORIZED ALTERATION OR ADDITION TO
THIS DOCUMENT IS A VIOLATION OF

APPLICABLE STATE AND / OR LOCAL LAWS

750 PARK OF COMMERCE DR.
SUITE 200 | BOCA RATON, FL | 33487

561.948.6367

SITE ACQUISITION

1499 HUNTINGTON DR. | SUITE 305
SOUTH PASADENA, CA | 91030

626.765.5079

CLIENT

A2

10/03/23CVISSUED FOR ZONING0

ENLARGED SITE PLAN

1
21

Item 1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
32'

AutoCAD SHX Text
11"x17" SCALE: 1/32" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"x36" SCALE: 1/16" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 20'-0" WIDE VERTICAL BRIDGE NON-EXCLUSIVE ACCESS AND UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 40'x40' 40'x40' VERTICAL BRIDGE LEASE AREA WITH 6'-0" HIGH CHAIN-LINK FENCED COMPOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
OROVILLE DAM BOULEVARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
APN:  033-390-050

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) CHAIN-LINK FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) LATTICE TOWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E)  BLDG

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) ASPHALT DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) UTILITY POLE ID#: 100424148

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) UTILITY POLE ID#: 100424149

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) UTILITY POLE W/ XFRMR  ID#: 100374222

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) UTILITY POLE ID#: 100374231

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) UTILITY POLE ID#: 120055773, POWER P.O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) UTILITY POLE ID#: 100428609

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) OVERHEAD POWER LINES

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) OVERHEAD POWER LINES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED PG&E STEP-DOWN TRANSFORMER ON 50"x52" CONCRETE PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED PG&E OWNED 4" SCH. 80 PVC POWER CONDUIT FROM POC TO PROPOSED PG&E STEP-DOWN TRANSFORMER (±125'-0")

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 12'-0" WIDE VERTICAL BRIDGE GRAVELED ACCESS ROAD (±165'-0")

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 5'-0" WIDE VERTICAL BRIDGE UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) WOOD POLE W/ LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) SHRUBS TO BE REMOVED BY VERTICAL BRIDGE GC

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) SHRUBS TO BE REMOVED BY VERTICAL BRIDGE GC (TOTAL-2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
A3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 4"  SCH. 80 PVCRISER PLACED @ 3:00 POSITION ON (E) UTILITY POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) OAK TREE HT = 28'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) OAK TREE HT = 34'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) OAK TREE HT = 27'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) OAK TREE HT = 11'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
275

AutoCAD SHX Text
270

AutoCAD SHX Text
265

AutoCAD SHX Text
280

AutoCAD SHX Text
285

AutoCAD SHX Text
290

AutoCAD SHX Text
295

AutoCAD SHX Text
290

AutoCAD SHX Text
285

AutoCAD SHX Text
280

AutoCAD SHX Text
275

AutoCAD SHX Text
270

AutoCAD SHX Text
120'-7"

AutoCAD SHX Text
123'-7"

AutoCAD SHX Text
166'-11"



NO. SUBMITTAL / REVISION

DRAWN:
DESIGNED:
CHECKED:

JR
JR
BL

PROJECT NUMBER:
US-CA-5455

PROJECT TITLE:

US-CA-5455
SC60559C

OAK PARK WAY
3425 ORANGE AVE

OROVILLE, CA 95966

ENGINEER STAMP:

09/13/23
DATE

JR

DRAWING TITLE:

DRAWING SCALE:

AS NOTED

DATE:
09/13/23

DRAWING NUMBER:

ZD

ISSUED FOR REVIEWA
BY

UNAUTHORIZED ALTERATION OR ADDITION TO
THIS DOCUMENT IS A VIOLATION OF

APPLICABLE STATE AND / OR LOCAL LAWS

750 PARK OF COMMERCE DR.
SUITE 200 | BOCA RATON, FL | 33487

561.948.6367

SITE ACQUISITION

1499 HUNTINGTON DR. | SUITE 305
SOUTH PASADENA, CA | 91030

626.765.5079

CLIENT

A3

10/03/23CVISSUED FOR ZONING0

ENLARGED
COMPOUND PLAN

1ENLARGED COMPOUND PLAN
22

Item 1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED GRAVEL WITH MIRAFI WEED BARRIER (ENTIRE LEASE AREA)

AutoCAD SHX Text
A5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 40'x40' VERTICAL 40'x40' VERTICAL  VERTICAL BRIDGE LEASE AREA WITH 6'-0" HIGH CHAIN-LINK FENCED COMPOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 120' HIGH 120' HIGH ' HIGH MONOPINE (POLE AND  (POLE AND FOUNDATION BY OTHERS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 10'X15' ANCHOR TENANT EQUIPMENT LEASE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
A4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A4

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 12'-0" WIDE DOUBLE-SWING ACCESS GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A5

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSE 20'-0" WIDE VERTICAL BRIDGE NON-EXCLUSIVE ACCESS AND UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTLINE OF  PROPOSED BRANCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text
APN:  033-390-050

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N) 2% SLOPE MAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
11"x17" SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"x36" SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED PG&E TRANSFORMER ON 50"x52" CONCRETE PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIRED PG&E CLEARANCE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED BOLLARDS (TOTAL-3)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED UTILITY H-FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ANCHOR TENANT 200A, 120/240V, 1-PHASE METER WITH GUTTER BOX (OR EQUIVALENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE TENANT METER LOCATIONS (TOTAL-2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 600A PG&E UG SERVICE TERMINATION SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED (2) 4"  SCH 80 PVC CONDUITSFROM PROPOSED PG&E STEP-DOWN TRANSFORMER TO PROPOSED PG&E UG SERVICE TERMINATION SECTION (±10'-0")

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF (3) FUTURE CO-LOCATOR 10'X15' LEASE AREAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
275

AutoCAD SHX Text
277

AutoCAD SHX Text
275

AutoCAD SHX Text
275

AutoCAD SHX Text
270

AutoCAD SHX Text
271

AutoCAD SHX Text
272

AutoCAD SHX Text
273

AutoCAD SHX Text
274

AutoCAD SHX Text
269

AutoCAD SHX Text
268

AutoCAD SHX Text
276

AutoCAD SHX Text
276

AutoCAD SHX Text
276

AutoCAD SHX Text
274

AutoCAD SHX Text
274

AutoCAD SHX Text
273

AutoCAD SHX Text
272

AutoCAD SHX Text
271

AutoCAD SHX Text
270

AutoCAD SHX Text
269

AutoCAD SHX Text
268

AutoCAD SHX Text
267

AutoCAD SHX Text
266

AutoCAD SHX Text
273

AutoCAD SHX Text
272

AutoCAD SHX Text
271

AutoCAD SHX Text
269

AutoCAD SHX Text
268

AutoCAD SHX Text
267

AutoCAD SHX Text
270

AutoCAD SHX Text
277

AutoCAD SHX Text
278

AutoCAD SHX Text
279

AutoCAD SHX Text
280

AutoCAD SHX Text
281

AutoCAD SHX Text
282

AutoCAD SHX Text
283

AutoCAD SHX Text
284

AutoCAD SHX Text
285

AutoCAD SHX Text
286

AutoCAD SHX Text
287

AutoCAD SHX Text
288

AutoCAD SHX Text
278

AutoCAD SHX Text
279

AutoCAD SHX Text
280

AutoCAD SHX Text
277

AutoCAD SHX Text
278

AutoCAD SHX Text
279

AutoCAD SHX Text
280

AutoCAD SHX Text
277

AutoCAD SHX Text
279

AutoCAD SHX Text
280

AutoCAD SHX Text
281

AutoCAD SHX Text
282

AutoCAD SHX Text
277

AutoCAD SHX Text
278

AutoCAD SHX Text
279

AutoCAD SHX Text
280

AutoCAD SHX Text
281

AutoCAD SHX Text
283

AutoCAD SHX Text
284

AutoCAD SHX Text
285

AutoCAD SHX Text
286

AutoCAD SHX Text
287

AutoCAD SHX Text
288

AutoCAD SHX Text
289

AutoCAD SHX Text
266

AutoCAD SHX Text
267

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED LEASE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED LEASE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED REMOVABLE BOLLARD (TOTAL-2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) UTILITY POLE ID#: 120055773, POWER P.O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) OVERHEAD POWER LINES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED PG&E OWNED 4" SCH. 80 PVC POWER CONDUIT FROM POC TO PROPOSED PG&E STEP-DOWN TRANSFORMER (±125'-0")

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 12'-0" WIDE VERTICAL BRIDGE GRAVELED ACCESS ROAD (±165'-0")

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 5'-0" WIDE VERTICAL BRIDGE UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(E) SHRUBS TO BE REMOVED BY VERTICAL BRIDGE GC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 4"  SCH.80 PVC RISER PLACED @ 3:00 POSITION ON (E) UTILITY POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N) 3:1  SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(N) 3:1  SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 24"X36" FIBER VAULT WITH 4" CONDUIT STUBBED 10'-0" OUT BEYOND LEASE AREA BY VERTICAL BRIDGE GC

AutoCAD SHX Text
278



NO. SUBMITTAL / REVISION

DRAWN:
DESIGNED:
CHECKED:

JR
JR
BL

PROJECT NUMBER:
US-CA-5455

PROJECT TITLE:

US-CA-5455
SC60559C

OAK PARK WAY
3425 ORANGE AVE

OROVILLE, CA 95966

ENGINEER STAMP:

09/13/23
DATE

JR

DRAWING TITLE:

DRAWING SCALE:

AS NOTED

DATE:
09/13/23

DRAWING NUMBER:

ZD

ISSUED FOR REVIEWA
BY

UNAUTHORIZED ALTERATION OR ADDITION TO
THIS DOCUMENT IS A VIOLATION OF

APPLICABLE STATE AND / OR LOCAL LAWS

750 PARK OF COMMERCE DR.
SUITE 200 | BOCA RATON, FL | 33487

561.948.6367

SITE ACQUISITION

1499 HUNTINGTON DR. | SUITE 305
SOUTH PASADENA, CA | 91030

626.765.5079

CLIENT

A4

10/03/23CVISSUED FOR ZONING0

EQUIPMENT AND
ANTENNA PLAN

NOT USED 2

NOT USED 3 1ANTENNA PLAN

2EQUIPMENT PLAN

23

Item 1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ANCHOR TENANT LEASE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ANCHOR TENANT LEASE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
PPC

AutoCAD SHX Text
6160 CABINET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CABLE ICE BRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'x15' RAISED CONCRETE PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 10'X15' ANCHOR  10'X15' ANCHOR TENANT EQUIPMENT LEASE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'-5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
B160 CABINET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIENA (TOP) FIBER (BOTTOM)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GPS MOUNTED TO ICEBRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SERVICE LIGHTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE EXTINGUISHER CABINET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SERVICE LIGHTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERSECT CAM-LOK

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTLINE OF PROPOSED MONOPINE BRANCHES BRANCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 120' HIGH 120' HIGH ' HIGH MONOPINE (POLE AND  (POLE AND FOUNDATION BY OTHERS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ANCHOR TENANT 8' PANEL ANTENNAS, 2 PER ALPHA SECTOR, 4 PER BETA & GAMMA SECTORS (TOTAL-10)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SECTOR FRAME, TYP. 1 PER SECTOR (TOTAL-3)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ANCHOR TENANT RRUs, TYP. 2 PER SECTOR (TOTAL-6)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALPHA 0° AZIMUTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
BETA 120° AZIMUTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAMMA 240° AZIMUTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ANCHOR TENANT 3'  MICROWAVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"x36" SCALE: 3/8" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
11"x17" SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"x36" SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
11"x17" SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"



24

Item 1.



Adrian Culici 
Assurance Development obo Vertical Bridge 

aculici@assurance-group.com  
323-573-0045 

1499 Huntington Dr. Suite 305 
South Pasadena, CA 91030 

 

Vertical Bridge Project Name: CA-5455 

City of Oroville 
 

Application for a Conditional Use Permit – Wireless Telecommunications Facility 
 
 

Project Narrative 
 

Vertical Bridge is requesting approval of a Conditional Use Permit for the operation and construction 
of an unmanned wireless telecommunications facility and presents the following project information 
for your consideration. 
 
 

Project Specific Location 
Address: 3425 Orange Ave, Oroville, CA 95966 
APN: 033-390-050 
Zoning: MXN - Mixed Use 

 
Project Representative 
Adrian Culici, Project Representative 
1499 Huntington Dr. Suite 305, South Pasadena, CA 91030 
323-573-0045 aculici@assurance-group.com  

 
 

Project Description 
 
Install a new telecommunications and public utility facility at 3425 Orange Ave (APN 033-390-050). 
Facility will consist of a 120’ monopine wireless facility, (10) 8' antennas, (6) RRU's, (1) 3' 
microwave, (1) GPS antenna, and associated electrical equipment. Additionally, (2) ground mounted 
radio cabinets, (1) raised concrete pad, cable ice bridge, utility backboard and multi-meter utility 
service will be placed within a 40'x40' leased area. 
 
 

Project Objectives 
 

To provide coverage in this area of the County, any combination or one of the following reasons 
may apply: 

 
• Coverage: No Service in the area (Indoor, Outdoor or Vehicular) and can apply 

specifically to the type of service provided (Voice or Data). Specifically, this proposed 

25

Item 1.

mailto:aculici@assurance-group.com
mailto:aculici@assurance-group.com


Adrian Culici 
Assurance Development obo Vertical Bridge 

aculici@assurance-group.com  
323-573-0045 

1499 Huntington Dr. Suite 305 
South Pasadena, CA 91030 

 

Vertical Bridge Project Name: CA-5455 

location addresses the following needs – 

o In-building Commercial – Subscriber anticipated to have accessibility to improved 
service while indoors within the County’s commercially used spaces. 

o In-building – Subscriber anticipated to have accessibility to service while indoors 
(ie: residential homes) at lower performance levels. 

o In-vehicle- Subscriber anticipated to have accessibility to service while inside of 
vehicle. 

o Outdoor – Subscriber anticipated to have accessibility to improved service while 
outdoors. 
 

• Capacity: Proposed service in surrounding areas would be insufficient to meet anticipated 
demand by customers in and traversing through the area. Furthermore, proposed 
facilities servicing the surrounding area would be overloaded preventing service, dropped 
calls or complete denial of service during peak usage hours in this particular ring. Below 
are coverage maps reflecting before and after coverage once the site is installed. ID codes 
SC60226B and CA-7303 refer to the subject site. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

26

Item 1.

mailto:aculici@assurance-group.com


Adrian Culici 
Assurance Development obo Vertical Bridge 

aculici@assurance-group.com  
323-573-0045 

1499 Huntington Dr. Suite 305 
South Pasadena, CA 91030 

 

Vertical Bridge Project Name: CA-5455 

 

 

Coverage Maps 
 

 
Existing Coverage Without SC60559C  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

In-Building Commercial  
In-Building Residential  
In-Vehicle Coverage 
Outdoor  Coverage 

27

Item 1.

mailto:aculici@assurance-group.com


Adrian Culici 
Assurance Development obo Vertical Bridge 

aculici@assurance-group.com  
323-573-0045 

1499 Huntington Dr. Suite 305 
South Pasadena, CA 91030 

 

Vertical Bridge Project Name: CA-5455 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Coverage With SC60559C 
  

In-Building Commercial  
In-Building Residential  
In-Vehicle Coverage 
Outdoor  Coverage 

28

Item 1.

mailto:aculici@assurance-group.com


Adrian Culici 
Assurance Development obo Vertical Bridge 

aculici@assurance-group.com  
323-573-0045 

1499 Huntington Dr. Suite 305 
South Pasadena, CA 91030 

 

Vertical Bridge Project Name: CA-5455 

Alternative Site Analysis 

The following map shows the vicinity surrounding the proposed facility, and the red circle marks the 
site’s “search ring” which indicates the area in which a deficit in coverage was detected. The yellow 
markers indicate alternative sites that were investigated. We looked at a total of eighteen (11) 
alternative sites within the search ring (see list of APN and Landlord’s below).  

 

One (1) location failed to meet coverage requirements due to topographic and physical obstructions. 
Additionally, zoning and design codes prohibit the proposed development for two (2) sites. The eight (8) 
remaining alternative sites that were investigated were unable to move forward because the property 
owners were either unresponsive or unwilling to grant the required permissions for the proposed 
development. 

 

It is for these reasons that we are locating on the subject property and not on any other parcels within 
the search ring. The proposed project location would meet the coverage footprint requirements of our 
project and the Landlord has granted us permission to pursue this project on their property. Moreover, 
the proposed development complies with all design code parameters (e.g. setback, height max 
requirements, etc.) and falls within allowed uses per the zoning of this parcel.

29

Item 1.

mailto:aculici@assurance-group.com


Adrian Culici 
Assurance Development obo Vertical Bridge 

aculici@assurance-group.com  
323-573-0045 

1499 Huntington Dr. Suite 305 
South Pasadena, CA 91030 

 

Vertical Bridge Project Name: CA-5455 

Alternative Site Map – Search Ring Area 

  

Alternative Site List 

1. Grace Baptist Church of Oroville / APN: 033-420-003: Property owner is unwilling to 
enter into a lease.  

2. 3485 Orange Ave / APN: 033-390-042: Property owner is unwilling to enter into a lease.  
3. River of Life Church / APN: 033-390-046: Property owner is unwilling to enter into a 

lease. 
4. Oroville Center For Spiritual Religious Institution / APN: 033-390-080: This parcel is a 

backup candidate. 
5. Calvary Chapel / APN: 033-452-018: Property owner did not respond to lease offer. 

 

  

SITE 

30

Item 1.

mailto:aculici@assurance-group.com


Adrian Culici 
Assurance Development obo Vertical Bridge 

aculici@assurance-group.com  
323-573-0045 

1499 Huntington Dr. Suite 305 
South Pasadena, CA 91030 

 

Vertical Bridge Project Name: CA-5455 

Additional Supporting Statements 

1. The proposed use and development is consistent with the General Plan and any applicable 
specific plans. 
 

A robust wireless network will contribute to the County’s ability to respond to natural 
or man-made disasters and other public safety concerns in a potentially life-saving 
manner. 

 
2. The site is adequate in size, shape, topography, location, utilities and other factors to 
accommodate the use and development. 

The site is of adequate size, shape, topography, location and access to utilities to 
accommodate the proposed wireless facility. The site is graded adequately and 
has access to power and telephone connections that can be used for the project. 

3. Adequate street access and traffic capacity are or will be available to serve the proposed 
development as well as existing and anticipated development in the surrounding area. 

The facility is unmanned and will not contribute to any traffic. 

4. Adequate utilities and public services are or will be available to serve the proposed 
development as well as existing and anticipated development in the surrounding area. 

 
The facility only requires power and telephone connections which are present in this area 
of the city. 

 
5. The use and development will be compatible with the intended character of the area. 

 
The facility is designed to blend as much as possible with the surrounding environment 
that already exists within the vicinity. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

31

Item 1.

mailto:aculici@assurance-group.com


Adrian Culici 
Assurance Development obo Vertical Bridge 

aculici@assurance-group.com  
323-573-0045 

1499 Huntington Dr. Suite 305 
South Pasadena, CA 91030 

 

Vertical Bridge Project Name: CA-5455 

 
Safe – RF is Radio 

 
The FCC regulates RF emissions to ensure public safety. Standards have been set based on peer-
reviewed scientific studies and recommendations from a variety of oversight organizations, 
including the National Council on Radiation Protection and Measurements (NCRP), American 
National Standards Institute (ANSI), Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers (IEEE), 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), Federal Drug Administration (FDA), Occupational 
Safety and Health Administration (OSHA), and National Institute for Occupational Safety and 
Health (NIOSH). 
 
Although the purview of the public safety of RF emissions by the FCC was established by the 
Telecommunications Act of 1996, these standards remain under constant scrutiny. The typical 
urban cell site operates hundreds or even thousands of times below the FCC’s limits for safe 
exposure. All Vertical Bridge cell towers will operate well below these standards as well. 
 
Thank you for your time and assistance throughout the application intake and review 
process. Please do not hesitate to contact me should you have any questions associated 
with this project. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 

Adrian Culici 
 
Adrian Culici 
Site Acquisition 
 

 

CELL         323 573 0045       
FAX          626 322 0880 
WEB         assurance-development.com 

 
  

32

Item 1.

mailto:aculici@assurance-group.com
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fassurance-development.com%2f&c=E,1,I6XROn9Xtwx8QXlYUuqZyVpbmYpk2UqdXIKc8rE_fLDhVOMZ1YvXA9QXNIR_OoaW5koSN0PYAP6g59ookpzMteelSKACyAtEvgrcBZXOslY5VPsouZI,&typo=1


 

  | [Document subtitle] 

 

 

 
 

 

December 13, 2023 

 

RE: Vertical Bridge Tower-CA-5455-Wireless Telecom Facility Use Permit Submittal for New Wireless 

Tower Notice of Incompleteness. 

 

Mr. Adrian Culici, 

 

After reviewing the submittal package, we have concluded that this application is incomplete. According 

to Oroville Municipal Code 17.16.170.H.6 and 17.16.170.D.2 an alternatives analysis shall be prepared. 

This will also be needed to justify making the finding required in 17.16.170.F.2.  We would also like to 

see the project objective and radio frequency statement that is mentioned on your cover letter, but not 

included in the package.  

 

We are also concerned about possible effects to a transmission tower near the proposed wireless tower, 

and/or effects to your facility from that transmission tower. There is no mention of the transmission tower 

in the EME-RF Safety Study, and we would like to have confirmation there will not be any issues 

between the two. The transmission tower owners must be included in our public notices as well. 

 

Thank you for your application.  We look forward to reviewing the above information.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Noelle Snow 

Community Development Tech II 

City Of Oroville 

(530) 538-2508 

nsnow@cityoforoville.org 

 

cc: Wes Ervin, City Planner 

File: PL 2311-006 

 

City of Oroville 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT                  
 
1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA  95965-4897    
(530) 538-2401   FAX (530) 538-2426 
 
www.cityoforoville.org 

 

33

Item 1.

http://www.cityoforoville.org/


  

 Web:  www.h-e.com • mail@h-e.com   V0BI  
 Phone:  707/996-5200 Office • 707/996-5280 Fax 
 Delivery:  470 Third Street West • Sonoma, California  95476  

 WILLIAM F. HAMMETT, P.E. 
ROBERT P. SMITH, JR.  

MANAS S. REDDY, P.E. ___________ 
ROBERT L. HAMMETT, P.E. 

1920-2002 
EDWARD  EDISON, P.E. 

1920-2009 ___________ 
DANE E. ERICKSEN, P.E. 

CONSULTANT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BY E-MAIL  BLEWIS@ASSURANCE-GROUP.COM 

January 17, 2024 

Mr. Bill Lewis 
Assurance Development 
1499 Huntington Drive # 305 
South Pasadena, California  91030 

Dear Bill: 

Thanks for forwarding the letter dated December 13, 2023, from the City of Oroville, asking 
about possible impact on the existing PG&E lattice power-line tower from the proposed  
T-Mobile base station (Site No. US-CA-5455 / SC60559C) on a tall pole to be sited nearby,  
at 3425 Orange Avenue.   

The distance between the two structures is at least 120 feet, based on review of aerial photos 
from Google Maps.  At that distance, the worst-case, calculated radio-frequency exposure levels 
from the T-Mobile operation are in full compliance with the public and occupational limits set 
by the Federal Communications Commission. 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service and would welcome any further questions. 

Sincerely yours, 
 
 
 
William F. Hammett, P.E.  
scn 

cc:  Ms. Samantha Herrmann – BY E-MAIL SHERRMANN@ASSURANCE-GROUP.COM 

 

34

Item 1.



ORO DAM BLVD E

PROJECT SITE

ORANGE AVE

NO. DATE REVISIONS

0 10/12/23 JFYISSUED FOR SUBMITTAL

BY

CONTACT : JOYCE YU

EMAIL : SIMS@DRAFTLINK.COM

PHONE : 949-232-5045

WWW.DRAFTLINK.COM

US-CA-5455
OAK PARK WAY

3425 ORANGE AVENUE

OROVILLE, CA 95966

PROPOSED

EXISTING

AERIAL MAP

COPYRIGHT: GOOGLE MAPS, 2023

VIEW SHEET

A

A

1 / 4

DISCLAIMER : THIS IS A RENDERING REPRESENTATION OF THE PROPOSED PROJECT ONLY PHOTO PROVIDED BY: ASSURANCE DEVELOPMENT

'VERTICAL BRIDGE' 120'H
CO-LOCATABLE MONOPINE, WITH
PANEL ANTENNAS AND RRU'S PAINTED
TO MATCH MONOPINE FOLIAGE

'VERTICAL BRIDGE' 40'X40' LEASE AREA
WITH 6'-0"H CHAIN-LINK FENCED
COMPOUND

35

Item 1.



NO. DATE REVISIONS

0 10/12/23 JFYISSUED FOR SUBMITTAL

BY

CONTACT : JOYCE YU

EMAIL : SIMS@DRAFTLINK.COM

PHONE : 949-232-5045

WWW.DRAFTLINK.COM

US-CA-5455
OAK PARK WAY

3425 ORANGE AVENUE

OROVILLE, CA 95966

ORO DAM BLVD E

PROJECT SITE

ORANGE AVE

PROPOSED

EXISTING

AERIAL MAP

COPYRIGHT: GOOGLE MAPS, 2023

VIEW

2 / 4

SHEET

B

B

DISCLAIMER : THIS IS A RENDERING REPRESENTATION OF THE PROPOSED PROJECT ONLY PHOTO PROVIDED BY: ASSURANCE DEVELOPMENT

'VERTICAL BRIDGE' 120'H
CO-LOCATABLE MONOPINE, WITH
PANEL ANTENNAS AND RRU'S PAINTED
TO MATCH MONOPINE FOLIAGE

36

Item 1.



ORO DAM BLVD E

PROJECT SITE

ORANGE AVE

NO. DATE REVISIONS

0 10/12/23 JFYISSUED FOR SUBMITTAL

BY

CONTACT : JOYCE YU

EMAIL : SIMS@DRAFTLINK.COM

PHONE : 949-232-5045

WWW.DRAFTLINK.COM

US-CA-5455
OAK PARK WAY

3425 ORANGE AVENUE

OROVILLE, CA 95966

PROPOSED

EXISTING

AERIAL MAP

COPYRIGHT: GOOGLE MAPS, 2023

VIEW

3 / 4

SHEET

C

C

DISCLAIMER : THIS IS A RENDERING REPRESENTATION OF THE PROPOSED PROJECT ONLY PHOTO PROVIDED BY: ASSURANCE DEVELOPMENT

'VERTICAL BRIDGE' 120'H CO-LOCATABLE
MONOPINE NOT VISIBLE FROM THIS VIEW

37

Item 1.



US-CA-5455
OAK PARK WAY

3425 ORANGE AVENUE

OROVILLE, CA 95966

NO. DATE REVISIONS

0 10/12/23 JFYISSUED FOR SUBMITTAL

BY

CONTACT : JOYCE YU

EMAIL : SIMS@DRAFTLINK.COM

PHONE : 949-232-5045

WWW.DRAFTLINK.COM

ORO DAM BLVD E

PROJECT SITE

ORANGE AVE

PROPOSED

EXISTING

AERIAL MAP

COPYRIGHT: GOOGLE MAPS, 2023

VIEW

4 / 4

SHEET

D

D

DISCLAIMER : THIS IS A RENDERING REPRESENTATION OF THE PROPOSED PROJECT ONLY PHOTO PROVIDED BY: ASSURANCE DEVELOPMENT

'VERTICAL BRIDGE' 120'H
CO-LOCATABLE MONOPINE, WITH
PANEL ANTENNAS AND RRU'S PAINTED
TO MATCH MONOPINE FOLIAGE

38

Item 1.



1 | T-Mobile Confidential

SC60559C
Coverage 

Prediction Plots

39

Item 1.



SC60559C – ( With vs Without ) 
Existing Coverage Without SC60559C Coverage With SC60559C

In-Building Commercial 
In-Building Residential 
In-Vehicle Coverage
Outdoor  Coverage

In-Building Commercial 
In-Building Residential 
In-Vehicle Coverage
Outdoor  Coverage

• IBC/IBR Improvement of 1,567 Pops with the addition of SC60559C 

17,026 18,593

40

Item 1.



SC60559C  
SC60559C Standalone Coverage

In-Building Commercial 
In-Building Residential 
In-Vehicle Coverage
Outdoor  Coverage

41

Item 1.



4

Next Steps : 

➢Explore TEK Systems model

➢Look at amendments post SLT approval 

42

Item 1.



Vertical Bridge • Site No. US-CA-5455  
T-Mobile West LLC • Proposed Base Station (Site No. SC60559C) 

3425 Orange Avenue • Oroville, California 
 

(November 13, 2023) V0BI 
Page 1 of 4  ©2023 

Statement of Hammett & Edison, Inc., Consulting Engineers 

The firm of Hammett & Edison, Inc., Consulting Engineers, has been retained by Vertical Bridge, a 
wireless telecommunications facilities provider, to evaluate the T-Mobile West LLC base station  
(Site No. SC60559C) proposed to be located at 3425 Orange Avenue in Oroville, California, for 
compliance with appropriate guidelines limiting human exposure to radio frequency (“RF”) 
electromagnetic fields. 

Executive Summary 
T-Mobile proposes to install antennas on a tall pole, configured to resemble a pine tree, to be 
sited at 3425 Orange Avenue in Oroville.  The proposed operation will comply with the 
FCC guidelines limiting public exposure to RF energy. 

Prevailing Exposure Standard 

The U.S. Congress requires that the Federal Communications Commission (“FCC”) evaluate its 
actions for possible significant impact on the environment.  A summary of the FCC’s exposure limits 
is shown in Figure 1.  These limits apply for continuous exposures and are intended to provide a 
prudent margin of safety for all persons, regardless of age, gender, size, or health.  The most 
restrictive limit for exposures of unlimited duration at several wireless service bands are as follows: 

   Transmit   “Uncontrolled”  Occupational Limit 
  Wireless Service Band Frequency  Public Limit (5 times Public)   
Microwave (point-to-point) 1–80 GHz 1.0 mW/cm2 5.0 mW/cm2 
Millimeter-wave  24–47  1.0 5.0 
Part 15 (WiFi & other unlicensed) 2–6  1.0 5.0 
C-Band 3,700 MHz 1.0 5.0 
CBRS (Citizens Broadband Radio) 3,550  1.0 5.0 
BRS (Broadband Radio) 2,490  1.0 5.0 
WCS (Wireless Communication) 2,305  1.0 5.0 
AWS (Advanced Wireless) 2,110  1.0 5.0 
PCS (Personal Communication) 1,930  1.0 5.0 
Cellular 869  0.58 2.9 
SMR (Specialized Mobile Radio) 854  0.57 2.85 
700 MHz 716  0.48 2.4 
600 MHz 617  0.41 2.05 
[most restrictive frequency range] 30–300 0.20 1.0 

43

Item 1.



Vertical Bridge • Site No. US-CA-5455  
T-Mobile West LLC • Proposed Base Station (Site No. SC60559C) 

3425 Orange Avenue • Oroville, California 
 

(November 13, 2023) V0BI 
Page 2 of 4  ©2023 

General Facility Requirements 

Base stations typically consist of two distinct parts:  the electronic transceivers (also called “radios”) 
that are connected to the traditional wired telephone lines, and the antennas that send the wireless 
signals created by the radios out to be received by individual subscriber units.  The transceivers are 
often located at ground level and are connected to the antennas by coaxial cables.  Because of the 
short wavelength of the frequencies assigned by the FCC for wireless services, the antennas require 
line-of-sight paths for their signals to propagate well and so are installed at some height above ground.  
The antennas are designed to concentrate their energy toward the horizon, with very little energy 
wasted toward the sky or the ground.  This means that it is generally not possible for exposure 
conditions to approach the maximum permissible exposure limits without being physically very near 
the antennas.   

Computer Modeling Method 

The FCC provides direction for determining compliance in its Office of Engineering and Technology 
Bulletin No. 65, “Evaluating Compliance with FCC-Specified Guidelines for Human Exposure to 
Radio Frequency Radiation,” dated August 1997.  Figure 2 describes the calculation methodologies, 
reflecting the facts that a directional antenna’s radiation pattern is not fully formed at locations very 
close by (the “near-field” effect) and that at greater distances the power level from an energy source 
decreases with the square of the distance from it (the “inverse square law”).  This methodology is an 
industry standard for evaluating RF exposure conditions and has been demonstrated through numerous 
field tests to be a conservative prediction of exposure levels. 

Site and Facility Description 

Based upon information provided by T-Mobile, including zoning drawings by Assurance 
Development, dated October 3, 2023, it is proposed to install ten directional panel antennas – three 
CommScope Model FFVV-65C-R3-V1, three Ericsson Model AIR6419, and four inactive antennas* 
for future operation – on a 115-foot pole, configured to resemble a pine tree,† to be sited behind the 
Orolake Mobile Home Park located at 3425 Orange Avenue in Oroville.  The CommScope and 
Ericsson antennas would employ up to 13° and up to 19° downtilt, respectively, would be mounted at 
an effective height of about 111 feet above ground, and would be oriented in identical pairs at about 
120° spacing, to provide service in all directions.  The maximum effective radiated power in any 

 
* It is recommended that the RF exposure conditions be re-evaluated for compliance with FCC limits at such time as 

these antennas are to be put into service. 
† Foliage atop the pole puts the overall height at about 120 feet. 

44

Item 1.



Vertical Bridge • Site No. US-CA-5455  
T-Mobile West LLC • Proposed Base Station (Site No. SC60559C) 

3425 Orange Avenue • Oroville, California 
 

(November 13, 2023) V0BI 
Page 3 of 4  ©2023 

direction would be 35,780 watts, representing simultaneous operation at 14,230 watts for BRS,‡  
6,200 watts for AWS, 10,860 watts for PCS, 950 watts for 700 MHz, and 3,540 watts for 600 MHz 
service.  Also proposed to be located on the pole, at an effective height of about 111 feet above 
ground, is a 3-foot microwave “dish” antenna, for interconnection of this site with others in the 
T-Mobile network.  There are reported no other wireless telecommunications base stations at the site 
or nearby. 

Study Results 

For a person anywhere at ground, the maximum RF exposure level due to the proposed T-Mobile 
operation, including the contribution of the microwave dish, is calculated to be 0.041 mW/cm2, which 
is 5.2% of the applicable public exposure limit.  The maximum calculated level at the second-floor 
elevation of any nearby building§ is 6.3% of the public exposure limit.  It should be noted that these 
results include several “worst-case” assumptions and therefore are expected to overstate actual power 
density levels from the proposed operation. 

No Recommended Mitigation Measures 

Due to their mounting location and height, the T-Mobile antennas would not be accessible to 
unauthorized persons, and so no measures are necessary to comply with the FCC public exposure 
guidelines.  It is presumed that T-Mobile will, as an FCC licensee, take adequate steps to ensure that 
its employees or contractors receive appropriate training and comply with FCC occupational exposure 
guidelines whenever work is required near the antennas themselves. 

Conclusion 

Based on the information and analysis above, it is the undersigned’s professional opinion that 
operation of the base station proposed by T-Mobile West LLC at 3425 Orange Avenue in Oroville, 
California, will comply with the prevailing standards for limiting public exposure to radio frequency 
energy and, therefore, will not for this reason cause a significant impact on the environment.  The 
highest calculated level in publicly accessible areas is much less than the prevailing standards allow 
for exposures of unlimited duration.  This finding is consistent with measurements of actual exposure 
conditions taken at other operating base stations. 

 
‡  T-Mobile reports maximum effective radiated power in this band of 59,310 watts, to which a duty cycle of 75% is 

applied; a statistical factor of 32% is also included, to account for spatial distribution of served users, based on the 
United Nations International Telecommunication Union ITU-T Series K, Supplement 16, dated May 20, 2019. 

§ Including the mobile homes located at least 110 feet away, based on the drawings. 

45

Item 1.



Vertical Bridge • Site No. US-CA-5455  
T-Mobile West LLC • Proposed Base Station (Site No. SC60559C) 

3425 Orange Avenue • Oroville, California 
 

(November 13, 2023) V0BI 
Page 4 of 4  ©2023 

Authorship 

The undersigned author of this statement is a qualified Professional Engineer, holding California 
Registration Nos. E-13026 and M-20676, which expire on June 30, 2025.  This work has been carried 
out under his direction, and all statements are true and correct of his own knowledge except, where 
noted, when data has been supplied by others, which data he believes to be correct. 
 
 
    
 William F. Hammett, P.E.  
 707/996-5200 
November 13, 2023 

46

Item 1.



FCC Guidelines

Figure 1

1000

100

10

1

0.1

0.1 1 10 100 10
3

10
4

10
5

Occupational Exposure

Public Exposure

PCS

Cell
FM

P
o
w

er

D
en

si
ty

(m
W

/c
m

2
)

FCC Radio Frequency Protection Guide

The U.S. Congress required (1996 Telecom Act) the Federal Communications Commission (“FCC”)�
to adopt a nationwide human exposure standard to ensure that its licensees do not, cumulatively, have�
a significant impact on the environment.  The FCC adopted the limits from Report No. 86, “Biological�
Effects and Exposure Criteria for Radiofrequency Electromagnetic Fields,” published in 1986 by the�
Congressionally chartered National Council on Radiation Protection and Measurements (“NCRP”).�
Separate limits apply for occupational and public exposure conditions, with the latter limits generally�
five times more restrictive.  The more recent standard, developed by the Institute of Electrical and�
Electronics Engineers IEEE C95.1-����, “Safety� Levels with Respect to Human Exposure to

&MFDUSJD�.BHOFUJD�BOE Electromagnetic Fields, ��)[ to�300 GHz,” includes similar limits. These

limits apply for continuous exposures from all sources and�are intended to provide a prudent margin

of safety for all persons, regardless of age, gender, size, or�health.

As shown in the table and chart below, separate limits apply for occupational and public exposure�
conditions, with the latter limits (in italics and/or dashed) up to five times more restrictive:

   Frequency     Electromagnetic Fields (f is frequency of emission in MHz)   

Applicable

Range

(MHz)

Electric

Field Strength

(V/m)

Magnetic

Field Strength

(A/m)

Equivalent Far-Field

Power Density

(mW/cm
2
)

0.3 – 1.34 614 614 1.63 1.63 100 100

1.34 – 3.0 614 823.8/ f 1.63 2.19/ f 100 180/ f�2

3.0 – 30 1842/ f 823.8/ f 4.89/ f 2.19/ f 900/ f�2 180/ f�2

30 – 300 61.4 27.5 0.163 0.0729 1.0 0.2

300 – 1,500 3.54 f 1.59 f f /106 f /238 f/300 f/1500

1,500 – 100,000 137 61.4 0.364 0.163 5.0 1.0

Frequency (MHz)

+LJKHU� OHYHOV� DUH� DOORZHG� IRU� VKRUW� SHULRGV� RI� WLPH�� VXFK� WKDW� WRWDO� H[SRVXUH� OHYHOV� DYHUDJHG� RYHU�
VL[� RU� WKLUW\� PLQXWHV�� IRU� RFFXSDWLRQDO� RU� SXEOLF� VHWWLQJV�� UHVSHFWLYHO\�� GR� QRW� H[FHHG�
WKH� OLPLWV�� DQG� KLJKHU� OHYHOV� DOVR� DUH� DOORZHG� IRU� H[SRVXUHV� WR� VPDOO� DUHDV�� VXFK� WKDW� WKH�
VSDWLDOO\� DYHUDJHG� OHYHOV� GR� QRW� H[FHHG� WKH� OLPLWV�� +DPPHWW� 	� (GLVRQ� KDV� LQFRUSRUDWHG�
FRQVHUYDWLYH� FDOFXODWLRQ� IRUPXODV� LQ� WKH� )&&� 2IILFH� RI� (QJLQHHULQJ� DQG� 7HFKQRORJ\�
%XOOHWLQ� 1R�� ����$XJXVW� ������ IRU�SURMHFWLQJ� ILHOG� OHYHOV� LQ� D� FRPSXWHU� SURJUDP� FDSDEOH� RI�
FDOFXODWLQJ�� DW� WKRXVDQGV� RI� ORFDWLRQV� RQ� DQ� DUELWUDU\� JULG�� WKH� WRWDO� H[SHFWHG� SRZHU� GHQVLW\�
IURP� DQ\� QXPEHU� RI� LQGLYLGXDO� UDGLR� IUHTXHQF\� VRXUFHV�� � 7KH� SURJUDP� DOORZV� IRU� WKH�
LQFOXVLRQ� RI� XQHYHQ� WHUUDLQ� LQ� WKH� YLFLQLW\�� DV� ZHOO� DV� DQ\�QXPEHU� RI� QHDUE\� EXLOGLQJV�RI� YDU\LQJ�
KHLJKWV��WR�REWDLQ�PRUH�DFFXUDWH�SURMHFWLRQV�

©���3
47

Item 1.



RFE.CALCTM  Calculation Methodology 

Assessment by Calculation of Compliance with FCC Exposure Guidelines 

Calculation Methodology 
Figure 2 �©2023 

180
θBW

×
0.1×Pnet
π ×D ×h

0.1 x 16 x n x P
x h2

0.1×16 ×η × Pnet
π × h2

net
BW

180      0.1 x Pnetx
θ

180
θBW

×
0.1×Pnet
π ×D ×hx D x h

2.56 x 1.64 x 100 x RFF2 x ERP
4 x     x D2

180
θBW

×
0.1×Pnet
π ×D ×hS = 

qBW

Hammett & Edison has incorporated the FCC Office of Engineering and Technology Bulletin 
No. 65 (“OET-65”) formulas (see Figure 1) in a computer program that calculates, at millions 
of locations on a grid, the total expected power density from any number of individual radio 
frequency sources.  The program uses the specific antenna patterns from the manufacturers and 
allows for the inclusion of uneven terrain in the vicinity, as well as any number of nearby 
buildings of varying heights, to obtain accurate projections of RF exposure levels.  The program 
can account for spatial-averaging when antenna patterns are sufficiently narrow, and time-
averaging is typically considered when operation is in single-frequency bands, which require 
time-sharing between the base station and the subscriber devices. 

OET-65 provides this formula for calculating power density in the far-field from an individual 
RF source: 

in mW/cm2power density 

    where ERP =  total Effective Radiated Power (all polarizations), in kilowatts, 
RFF =  three-dimensional relative field factor toward point of calculation, and 

D =  distance from antenna effective height to point of calculation, in meters. 

The factor of 2.56 accounts for the increase in power density due to reflections, assuming a 
reflection coefficient of 1.6 (1.6 x 1.6 = 2.56).  This factor is typically used for all sources unless 
specific information from FCC filings by the manufacturer indicate that a different reflection 
coefficient would apply.  The factor of 1.64 is the gain of a half-wave dipole relative to an 
isotropic radiator.  The factor of 100 in the numerator converts to the desired units of power 
density.   

Because antennas are not true “point sources,” their signal patterns may not be fully formed 
at close distances and so exposure levels may be lower than otherwise calculated by the 
formula above.  OET-65 recommends the cylindrical model formula below to account for this 
“near-field effect”: 

in mW/cm2 power density S  =
where Pnet =  net power input to antenna, in watts,

  =  half-power beamwidth of antenna, in degrees,  
D =  distance from antenna effective height to point of calculation, in meters, and
h =  aperture height of antenna, in meters. 

The factor of 0.1 in the numerator converts to the desired units of power density. 

OET-65 confirms that the “crossover” point between the near- and far-field regions is best 
determined by finding where the calculations coincide from the two different formulas, and the 
program uses both formulas to calculate power density.   

180
θBW

×
0.1×Pnet
π ×D ×h

0.1 x 16 x n x P
x h2

0.1×16 ×η × Pnet
π × h2

net
BW

180      0.1 x Pnetx
θ

180
θBW

×
0.1×Pnet
π ×D ×hx D x h

2.56 x 1.64 x 100 x RFF2 x ERP
4 x     x D2

180
θBW

×
0.1×Pnet
π ×D ×hS = 

qBW

180
θBW

×
0.1×Pnet
π ×D ×h

0.1 x 16 x n x P
x h2

0.1×16 ×η × Pnet
π × h2

net

BW

180 0.1 x Pnetx0
180
θBW

×
0.1×Pnet
π ×D ×hx D x h

2.56 x 1.64 x 100 x RFF2 x ERP
4 x     x D2

180
θBW

×
0.1×Pnet
π ×D ×hS = 

48

Item 1.



Vertical Bridge File #: US-CA-5455 Tower Title File #: VTB-150515-C

[COMMITMENT BEGINS ON NEXT PAGE]

Tower Title & Closing

18 Imperial Place, Courtyard

Providence, RI 02903

(844) 944-2876

49

Item 1.



WE Y

ALTA Commitment For Title Insurance 
(08-01-2016; Technical Corrections 04-02-18) 

COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE  
ISSUED BY 

WESTCOR LAND TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY

NOTICE 

IMPORTANT—READ CAREFULLY: THIS COMMITMENT IS AN OFFER TO ISSUE ONE OR MORE TITLE INSURANCE 
POLICIES. ALL CLAIMS OR REMEDIES SOUGHT AGAINST THE COMPANY INVOLVING THE CONTENT OF THIS 
COMMITMENT OR THE POLICY MUST BE BASED SOLELY IN CONTRACT. 

THIS COMMITMENT IS NOT AN ABSTRACT OF TITLE, REPORT OF THE CONDITION OF TITLE, LEGAL OPINION, 
OPINION OF TITLE, OR OTHER REPRESENTATION OF THE STATUS OF TITLE. THE PROCEDURES USED BY THE 
COMPANY TO DETERMINE INSURABILITY OF THE TITLE, INCLUDING ANY SEARCH AND EXAMINATION, ARE 
PROPRIETARY TO THE COMPANY, WERE PERFORMED SOLELY FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE COMPANY, AND CREATE 
NO EXTRA CONTRACTUAL LIABILITY TO ANY PERSON, INCLUDING A PROPOSED INSURED.  

THE COMPANY’S OBLIGATION UNDER THIS COMMITMENT IS TO ISSUE A POLICY TO A PROPOSED INSURED 
IDENTIFIED IN SCHEDULE A IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF THIS COMMITMENT. THE 
COMPANY HAS NO LIABILITY OR OBLIGATION INVOLVING THE CONTENT OF THIS COMMITMENT TO ANY OTHER 
PERSON.

COMMITMENT TO ISSUE POLICY

Subject to the Notice; Schedule B, Part I—Requirements; Schedule B, Part II—Exceptions; and the Commitment Conditions, 
WESTCOR LAND TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY, a South Carolina Corporation (the “Company”), commits to issue the Policy 
according to the terms and provisions of this Commitment. This Commitment is effective as of the Commitment Date shown in 
Schedule A for each Policy described in Schedule A, only when the Company has entered in Schedule A both the specified dollar 
amount as the Proposed Policy Amount and the name of the Proposed Insured.  

If all of the Schedule B, Part I—Requirements have not been met within 6 months after the Commitment Date, this Commitment 
terminates and the Company’s liability and obligation end. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, WESTCOR LAND TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY has caused its corporate name and seal to be 
hereunto affixed and by these presents to be signed  in facsimile under authority of its by-laws, effective as of the date of Commitment 
shown in Schedule A.  

Issued By: 

Copyright 2006-2016 American Land Title Association.  All rights reserved

The use of this Form (or any derivative thereof) is restricted to ALTA licensees a
as of the date of use.  All other uses are prohibited. Reprinted under license from
File No.: IC-TWR-133476-C 

Item 1.
STCOR LAND TITLE INSURANCE COMPAN
.  

nd ALTA members in good standing  
 the American Land Title Association. 

50



WESTCOR LAND TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY
ALTA COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE 

(Adopted  08-01-2016; Technical Corrections 04-02-18)

 This page is only a part of a 2016 ALTA® Commitment for Title Insurance issued by Fidelity National Title Insurance Company. This Commitment is not 
valid without the Notice; the Commitment to Issue Policy; the Commitment Conditions; Schedule A; Schedule B, Part I—Requirements; [and] Schedule 
B, Part II—Exceptions; and a counter-signature by the Company or its issuing agent that may be in electronic form. 

Copyright 2006-2016 American Land Title Association. All rights reserved.  
The use of this Form (or any derivative thereof) is restricted to ALTA licensees and  
ALTA members in good standing as of the date of use. All other uses are prohibited. 
Reprinted under license from the American Land Title Association. 

Transaction Identification Data for reference only:

Issuing Agent: Iron Crest National Title Company 

Issuing Office: 750 N. San Vicente Blvd Ste. 800 West West Hollywood, CA  90069 

File Number:  IC-TWR-133476-C 

SCHEDULE A 

1. Commitment Date:  April 13, 2023 1:41PM 

2. Policy or Policies to be issued:   

a. [ X ] 2006 ALTA Owner’s Policy 

Proposed Insured: VB BTS II, LLC 

Proposed Policy Amount: $250,000.00

b. [   ] 2006 ALTA Loan Policy 

Proposed Insured:

Proposed Policy Amount:  

3. The estate or interest in the Land described or referred to in this Commitment is:  FEE SIMPLE

4. The Title is, at the Commitment Date, vested in: SPP Oroville 3 LLC, a Delaware limited liability company

5. The Land is described as follows: See Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part hereof

Iron Crest National Title Company 

51

Item 1.



WESTCOR LAND TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY
ALTA COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE 

(Adopted  08-01-2016; Technical Corrections 04-02-18)

 This page is only a part of a 2016 ALTA® Commitment for Title Insurance issued by Fidelity National Title Insurance Company. This Commitment is not 
valid without the Notice; the Commitment to Issue Policy; the Commitment Conditions; Schedule A; Schedule B, Part I—Requirements; [and] Schedule 
B, Part II—Exceptions; and a counter-signature by the Company or its issuing agent that may be in electronic form. 

Copyright 2006-2016 American Land Title Association. All rights reserved.  
The use of this Form (or any derivative thereof) is restricted to ALTA licensees and  
ALTA members in good standing as of the date of use. All other uses are prohibited. 
Reprinted under license from the American Land Title Association. 

EXHIBIT “A” 

Legal Description 

ALL THAT CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY SITUATE IN THE CITY OF OROVILLE, COUNTY OF BUTTE, STATE OF 
CALIFORNIA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

PARCEL 1 AND 3, AS SHOWN ON THAT CERTAIN RECORD OF SURVEY MAP OF A PORTION OF THE 
SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 19 NORTH, RANGE 4 EAST, M.D.B.&M., RECORDED IN THE 
OFFICE OF THE RECORDER OF THE COUNTY OF BUTTE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, ON SEPTEMBER 25, 1963, IN 
BOOK 29 OF MAPS, AT PAGE 27. 

EXCEPTING FROM SAID PARCEL 1, THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PARCEL OF LAND: 

BEGINNING AT A POINT ON THE WESTERLY LINE OF SAID PARCEL 1, WHICH IS SOUTH 3°52’ EAST A DISTANCE 
OF 100 FEET FROM THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID PARCEL 1; THENCE FROM SAID POINT OF 
BEGINNING, NORTH 3°52’ WEST, 100 FEET TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID PARCEL 1; THENCE ALONG 
THE NORTHERLY LINE THEREOF, BEING THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF ORANGE AVENUE AS SHOWN ON SAID 
RECORD OF SURVEY, NORTH 78°00’ EAST, 110 FEET; THENCE LEAVING SAID LINE, AT RIGHT ANGLES, SOUTH 
12°00’ EAST, 100 FEET; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY 120 FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

PARCEL NUMBER: 033-390-050 

THIS BEING A PORTION OF THE SAME PROPERTY CONVEYED TO SPP OROVILLE 3 LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED 
LIABILITY COMPANY BY A DEED FROM PAUL DOUGLAS BEADLE, TRUSTEE OF THE BEADLE HARBOR 
IRREVOCABLE TRUST, DATED DECEMBER 1, 2010 DATED JANUARY 13, 2022 AND RECORDED JANUARY 25, 
2022 IN INSTRUMENT 2022-0002608 IN THE COUNTY OF BUTTE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA. 

Parcel ID: 033-390-050-000 
Property Commonly Known as:  3425 Orange Avenue,  CA 95966

52

Item 1.



WESTCOR LAND TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY
ALTA COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE 

(Adopted  08-01-2016; Technical Corrections 04-02-18)

 This page is only a part of a 2016 ALTA® Commitment for Title Insurance issued by Fidelity National Title Insurance Company. This Commitment is not 
valid without the Notice; the Commitment to Issue Policy; the Commitment Conditions; Schedule A; Schedule B, Part I—Requirements; [and] Schedule 
B, Part II—Exceptions; and a counter-signature by the Company or its issuing agent that may be in electronic form. 

Copyright 2006-2016 American Land Title Association. All rights reserved.  
The use of this Form (or any derivative thereof) is restricted to ALTA licensees and  
ALTA members in good standing as of the date of use. All other uses are prohibited. 
Reprinted under license from the American Land Title Association. 

SCHEDULE B, Part I 

Requirements 

All of the following Requirements must be met: 

1. The Proposed Insured must notify the Company in writing of the name of any party not referred to in this 

Commitment who will obtain an interest in the Land or who will make a loan on the Land. The Company may then 

make additional Requirements or Exceptions. 

2. Pay the agreed amount for the estate or interest to be insured. 

3. Pay the premiums, fees, and charges for the Policy to the Company. 

4. Documents satisfactory to the Company that convey the Title or create the Mortgage to be insured, or both, must 

be properly authorized, executed, delivered, and recorded in the Public Records. 

a. Ground Lease from SPP Oroville 3 LLC, a Delaware limited liability company to VB BTS II, LLC. 

5. Obtain and File Satisfactory resolution of the following matters: 

a. Type of Tax: County 

For the period: 2022 

In the amount of: $22,800.74 

Tax parcel ID: 033-390-050-000 

Date Due: First Installment of $11,400.37 is paid; Second Installment of $11,400.37 is paid. 

Interest and penalties may accrue. 

b. Subject to review of current survey of tower site and easements prior to issuance of policy. 

c. Deed of Trust in the amount of $3,672,500.00 between SPP Oroville 3 LLC, a Delaware limited 

liability company (borrower); Five Star Bank (lender); and Old Republic National Title Insurance 

Company (trustee) dated December 27, 2021 and recorded January 25, 2022 in (instrument) 2022-

0002609 in Butte County, California. 

Affected by a(n) Assignment of Rents between SPP Oroville 3 LLC, a Delaware limited liability 

company and Five Star Bank, dated December 27, 2021 and recorded January 25, 2022 in 

(instrument) 2022-0002610 in Butte County, California. 

d. WITH RESPECT TO SPP Oroville 3 LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (hereinafter referred 

to as LLC), THE FOLLOWING MUST BE SUBMITTED: 

A) A copy of: 

53

Item 1.



WESTCOR LAND TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY
ALTA COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE 

(Adopted  08-01-2016; Technical Corrections 04-02-18)

 This page is only a part of a 2016 ALTA® Commitment for Title Insurance issued by Fidelity National Title Insurance Company. This Commitment is not 
valid without the Notice; the Commitment to Issue Policy; the Commitment Conditions; Schedule A; Schedule B, Part I—Requirements; [and] Schedule 
B, Part II—Exceptions; and a counter-signature by the Company or its issuing agent that may be in electronic form. 

Copyright 2006-2016 American Land Title Association. All rights reserved.  
The use of this Form (or any derivative thereof) is restricted to ALTA licensees and  
ALTA members in good standing as of the date of use. All other uses are prohibited. 
Reprinted under license from the American Land Title Association. 

                1. the Articles of Organization, 

                2. written Operating Agreement and all amendments thereto, 

                3. current membership roster, and 

                4. a certificate of good standing (or current registration) of LLC. 

B)  Unless the deed, mortgage/deed of trust and/or other encumbrance instrument(s) is/are 

executed by all Members, the Company must be furnished a Resolution of all Members of the LLC 

approving the transaction and ratifying and confirming action taken or to be taken by the 

Manager(s) or Managing Member(s). 

C) In lieu of A and B above, certification by LLC’s attorney that LLC is a valid and subsisting 

limited liability company in its state of organization and that execution and delivery of the deed, 

mortgage/Deed of Trust and/or other encumbrance instrument(s) is/are pursuant to the terms of 

its operating agreement. 

D) Execution of any recordable document (also any Company affidavit, cover sheet, or other 

executed document), must include proper state of formation; and, if applicable, correctly reflect 

any mergers, name changes, erroneous names used or variations in title. 

e. Ground Lease from SPP Oroville 3 LLC, a Delaware limited liability company to VB BTS II, LLC. 

f. Marital status of individual(s) must be disclosed and, for each married individual, the non-vested 

spouse must join in the transaction document. 

g. Review of as-built survey confirming that the erected tower does not encroach upon the Easement 

Deed between Paul Douglas Beadle, as Trustee of the Beadle Harbor Irrevocable Trust, dated 

December 1, 2010 and Pacific Gas and Electric Company, a California corporation dated May 20, 

2016 and recorded June 6, 2016 in    (instrument) 2019-0020337. 

54

Item 1.



WESTCOR LAND TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY
ALTA COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE 

(Adopted  08-01-2016; Technical Corrections 04-02-18)

 This page is only a part of a 2016 ALTA® Commitment for Title Insurance issued by Fidelity National Title Insurance Company. This Commitment is not 
valid without the Notice; the Commitment to Issue Policy; the Commitment Conditions; Schedule A; Schedule B, Part I—Requirements; [and] Schedule 
B, Part II—Exceptions; and a counter-signature by the Company or its issuing agent that may be in electronic form. 

Copyright 2006-2016 American Land Title Association. All rights reserved.  
The use of this Form (or any derivative thereof) is restricted to ALTA licensees and  
ALTA members in good standing as of the date of use. All other uses are prohibited. 
Reprinted under license from the American Land Title Association. 

SCHEDULE B, PART II 

Exceptions 

THIS COMMITMENT DOES NOT REPUBLISH ANY COVENANT, CONDITION, RESTRICTIONS, OR LIMITATION 

CONTAINED IN ANY DOCUMENT REFERRED TO IN THIS COMMITMENT TO THE EXENT THAT THE SPECIFIC 

COVENANT, CONDITION, RESTRICTION, OR LIMITATION VIOLATES STATE OR FEDERAL LAW BASED ON 

RACE, COLOR, RELIGION, SEX, SEXUAL ORIENTATION, GENDER IDENTITY, HANDICAP, FAMILIAL STATUS, 

OR NATIONAL ORIGIN. 

The Policy will not insure against loss or damage resulting from the terms and provisions of any lease or easement 

identified in Schedule A, and will include the following Exceptions unless cleared to the satisfaction of the Company: 

1. Any defect, lien, encumbrance, adverse claim, or other matter that appears for the first time in the Public Records 

or is created, attaches, or is disclosed between the Commitment Date and the date on which all of the Schedule 

B, Part I—Requirements are met. 

2. Any rights, interests or claims, which are not shown by the public records but which could be ascertained by an 

inspection of Land or which may be asserted by persons in possession thereof.  

3. Discrepancies, conflicts in boundary lines, shortage in area, encroachments, or any other matters which a correct 

survey would disclose and which are not shown by the public records. (a) Unpatented mining claims;(b) 

reservations or exceptions in patents or in Acts authorizing the issuance thereof;(c) water rights, claims or title to 

water, whether or not the matters excepted under (a),(b) or (c) are shown in the public records. 

4. Taxes and assessments for the year  and all subsequent years are a lien but not yet due and payable. 

5. Any and all matters disclosed on the map entitled "Record of Survey” dated August 22, 1963 and recorded 

September 25, 1963 in  (book) 29 (page) 27,  in Butte County, California. 

6. Easement Deed between Paul Douglas Beadle, as Trustee of the Beadle Harbor Irrevocable Trust, dated 

December 1, 2010; and Pacific Gas and Electric Company, a California corporation, dated May 20, 2016 and 

recorded June 6, 2016 in  (instrument) 2016-0020337, in Butte County, California. 

7. Rights of fee simple owners in and to the subject property. 

55

Item 1.



WESTCOR LAND TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY
ALTA COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE 

(Adopted  08-01-2016; Technical Corrections 04-02-18)

 This page is only a part of a 2016 ALTA® Commitment for Title Insurance issued by Fidelity National Title Insurance Company. This Commitment is not 
valid without the Notice; the Commitment to Issue Policy; the Commitment Conditions; Schedule A; Schedule B, Part I—Requirements; [and] Schedule 
B, Part II—Exceptions; and a counter-signature by the Company or its issuing agent that may be in electronic form. 

Copyright 2006-2016 American Land Title Association. All rights reserved.  
The use of this Form (or any derivative thereof) is restricted to ALTA licensees and  
ALTA members in good standing as of the date of use. All other uses are prohibited. 
Reprinted under license from the American Land Title Association. 

CHAIN OF TITLE

(FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY) 

DEED TYPE: GRANT DEED 

GRANTORS: PAUL DOUGLAS BEADLE, TRUSTEE OF THE BEADLE HARBOR IRREVOCABLE TRUST, DATED 

DECEMBER 1, 2010 

GRANTEES: SPP OROVILLE 3 LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY 

BOOK: N/A N/A PAGE:                DATED: JANUARY 13, 2022 

INSTRUMENT: 2022-0002608               RECORDED DATE: JANUARY 25, 2022 

CONSIDERATION: $0.00 

DEED TYPE: GRANT DEED 

GRANTORS: PAUL DOUGLAS BEADLE, AS TRUSTEE OF WINDSHIP, THAT UNINCORPORATED BUSINESS 

ORGANIZATION DATED MARCH 20, 1992 

GRANTEES: PAUL DOUGLAS BEADLE, AS TRUSTEE FOR BEADLE HARBOR IRREVOCABLE TRUST, DATED 

DECEMBER 1, 2010 

BOOK: N/A N/A PAGE:                DATED: APRIL 18, 2011 

INSTRUMENT: 2011-0012817               RECORDED DATE: APRIL 18, 2011 

CONSIDERATION: $0.00 

DEED TYPE: DEED IN LIEU OF FORECLOSURE 

GRANTORS: GERALD V. HANSEN, A MARRIED MAN AS HIS SOLE AND SEPARATE PROPERTY 

GRANTEES: WINDSHIP, THAT UNINCORPORATED BUSINESS ORGANIZATION DATED MARCH 20, 1992, PAUL 

DOUGLAS BEADLE AS TRUSTEE 

BOOK: N/A N/A PAGE:                DATED: MAY 4, 1998 

INSTRUMENT: 2000-0019501               RECORDED DATE: MAY 29, 2000 

CONSIDERATION: $0.00 

DEED TYPE: INTERSPOUSAL TRANSFER GRANT DEED 

GRANTORS: PATRICIA L. HANSEN, A MARRIED WOMAN AND SPOUSE OF THE GRANTEE 

GRANTEES: GERALD V. HANSEN, A MARRIED MAN AS HIS SOLE AND SEPARATE PROPERTY 

BOOK: N/A N/A PAGE:                DATED: MAY 21, 1992 

INSTRUMENT: 92-023262               RECORDED DATE: MAY 27, 1992 

56

Item 1.



WESTCOR LAND TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY
ALTA COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE 

(Adopted  08-01-2016; Technical Corrections 04-02-18)

 This page is only a part of a 2016 ALTA® Commitment for Title Insurance issued by Fidelity National Title Insurance Company. This Commitment is not 
valid without the Notice; the Commitment to Issue Policy; the Commitment Conditions; Schedule A; Schedule B, Part I—Requirements; [and] Schedule 
B, Part II—Exceptions; and a counter-signature by the Company or its issuing agent that may be in electronic form. 

Copyright 2006-2016 American Land Title Association. All rights reserved.  
The use of this Form (or any derivative thereof) is restricted to ALTA licensees and  
ALTA members in good standing as of the date of use. All other uses are prohibited. 
Reprinted under license from the American Land Title Association. 

CONSIDERATION: $0.00 

DEED TYPE: GRANT DEED 

GRANTORS: PAUL D. BEADLE AND PATRICIA K. BEADLE, HUSBAND AND WIFE 

GRANTEES: GERALD V. HANSEN, A MARRIED MAN AS HIS SOLE AND SEPARATE PROPERTY 

BOOK: N/A N/A PAGE:                DATED: MAY 21, 1992 

INSTRUMENT: 92-023261               RECORDED DATE: MAY 27, 1992 

CONSIDERATION: $0.00 

DEED TYPE: QUIT CLAIM DEED 

GRANTORS: STEVEN L. MCMILLAN, CAROLYN L. MCMILLAN, PAUL D. BEADLE, PATRICIA K. BEADLE, MICHAEL 

D. BEADLE, LORINDA H. BEADLE ALSO KNOWN AS LORINDA BEADLE, MARVIN D. BOTTUM, JR., CHERYL A. 

BOTTUM, DAVID COLEMAN BEADLE 

GRANTEES: GERALD V. HANSEN, A MARRIED MAN AS HIS SOLE AND SEPARATE PROPERTY 

BOOK: N/A N/A PAGE:                DATED: MAY 21, 1992 

INSTRUMENT: 92-023260               RECORDED DATE: MAY 27, 1992 

CONSIDERATION: $0.00 

DEED TYPE: GRANT DEED 

GRANTORS: STEVEN L. MCMILLAN AS TRUSTEE FOR NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT, AS TRUSTEE FOR D. B. 

ENTERPRISES, THAT UNINCORPORATED BUSINESS ORGANIZATION DATED MARCH 20, 1992 

GRANTEES: PAUL DOUGLAS BEADLE, AS TRUSTEE FOR WINDSHIP, THAT UNINCORPORATED BUSINESS 

ORGANIZATION DATED MARCH 20, 1992 

BOOK: N/A N/A PAGE:                DATED: MAY 5, 1992 

INSTRUMENT: 92-023259               RECORDED DATE: MAY 27, 1992 

CONSIDERATION: $0.00 

DEED TYPE: GRANT DEED 

GRANTORS: PAUL D. BEADLE AND PATRICIA K. BEADLE, HUSBAND AND WIFE 

GRANTEES: STEVEN L. MCMILLAN AS TRUSTEE FOR NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT, AS TRUSTEE FOR D. B. 

ENTERPRISES, THAT UNINCORPORATED BUSINESS ORGANIZATION DATED MARCH 20, 1992 

BOOK: N/A N/A PAGE:                DATED: MAY 4, 1992 

INSTRUMENT: 92-021254               RECORDED DATE: MAY 14, 1992 

57

Item 1.



WESTCOR LAND TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY
ALTA COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE 

(Adopted  08-01-2016; Technical Corrections 04-02-18)

 This page is only a part of a 2016 ALTA® Commitment for Title Insurance issued by Fidelity National Title Insurance Company. This Commitment is not 
valid without the Notice; the Commitment to Issue Policy; the Commitment Conditions; Schedule A; Schedule B, Part I—Requirements; [and] Schedule 
B, Part II—Exceptions; and a counter-signature by the Company or its issuing agent that may be in electronic form. 

Copyright 2006-2016 American Land Title Association. All rights reserved.  
The use of this Form (or any derivative thereof) is restricted to ALTA licensees and  
ALTA members in good standing as of the date of use. All other uses are prohibited. 
Reprinted under license from the American Land Title Association. 

CONSIDERATION: $0.00 

DEED TYPE: GRANT DEED 

GRANTORS: PHYLLIS MILLER, AS HER SEPARATE PROPERTY 

GRANTEES: PAUL D. BEADLE AND PATRICIA K. BEADLE, HUSBAND AND WIFE 

BOOK: N/A N/A PAGE:                DATED: JUNE 5, 1990 

INSTRUMENT: 90-023675               RECORDED DATE: JUNE 7, 1990 

CONSIDERATION: $0.00  

58

Item 1.



WESTCOR LAND TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY
ALTA COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE 

(Adopted  08-01-2016; Technical Corrections 04-02-18)

 This page is only a part of a 2016 ALTA® Commitment for Title Insurance issued by Fidelity National Title Insurance Company. This Commitment is not 
valid without the Notice; the Commitment to Issue Policy; the Commitment Conditions; Schedule A; Schedule B, Part I—Requirements; [and] Schedule 
B, Part II—Exceptions; and a counter-signature by the Company or its issuing agent that may be in electronic form. 

Copyright 2006-2016 American Land Title Association. All rights reserved.  
The use of this Form (or any derivative thereof) is restricted to ALTA licensees and  
ALTA members in good standing as of the date of use. All other uses are prohibited. 
Reprinted under license from the American Land Title Association. 

COMMITMENT CONDITIONS

1. DEFINITIONS 
(a) “Knowledge” or “Known”: Actual or imputed knowledge, but not constructive notice imparted by the Public 

Records 
(b) “Land”: The land described in Schedule A, and affixed improvements that by law constitute real property.  

The term “Land” does not include any property beyond the lines of the area described in Schedule A, nor 
any right, title, interest, estate, or easement in abutting streets, roads, avenues, alleys, lanes, ways, or 
waterways, but this does not modify or limit the extent that a right of access to and from the Land is to be 
insured by the Policy. 

(c) “Mortgage”: A mortgage, deed of trust, or other security instrument, including one evidenced by electronic 
means authorized by law. 

(d) “Policy”: Each contract of title insurance, in a form adopted by the American Land Title Association, issued 
or to be issued by the Company pursuant to this Commitment. 

(e) “Proposed Insured”: Each person identified in Schedule A as the Proposed Insured of each Policy to be 
issued pursuant to this Commitment. 

(f) “Proposed Policy Amount”: Each dollar amount specified in Schedule A as the Proposed Policy Amount of 
each Policy to be issued pursuant to this Commitment. 

(g) “Public Records”: Records established under state statutes at the Commitment Date for the purpose of 
imparting constructive notice of matters relating to real property to purchasers for value and without 
Knowledge. 

(h) “Title”: The estate or interest described in Schedule A. 

2. If all of the Schedule B, Part I – Requirements have not been met within the time period specified in the 

Commitment to Issue Policy, this Commitment terminates and the Company’s liability and obligation end. 

3. The Company’s liability and obligation is limited by and this Commitment is not valid without: 
(a) the Notice; 
(b) the Commitment to Issue Policy; 
(c) the Commitment Conditions; 
(d) Schedule A; 
(e) Schedule B, Part I – Requirements; and 
(f) Schedule B, Part II – Exceptions; and 
(g) a counter-signature by the Company or its issuing agent that may be in electronic form. 

4. COMPANY’S RIGHT TO AMEND 

The Company may amend this Commitment at any time.  If the Company amends this Commitment to add a 

defect, lien, encumbrance, adverse claim, or other matter recorded in the Public Records prior to the Commitment 

Date, any liability of the Company is limited by Commitment Condition 5.  The Company shall not be liable for any 

other amendment to this Commitment. 

5. LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY 

(a) The Company’s liability under Commitment Condition 4 is limited to the Proposed Insured’s actual expense 

incurred in the interval between the Company’s delivery to the Proposed Insured of the Commitment and 

the delivery of the amended Commitment, resulting from the Proposed Insured’s good faith reliance to: 
(i) comply with the Schedule B, Part I – Requirements; 
(ii) eliminate, with the Company’s written consent, any Schedule B, Part II - Exceptions; or 
(iii) acquire the Title or create the Mortgage covered by this Commitment. 

(b) The Company shall not be liable under Commitment Condition 5(a) if the Proposed Insured requested the 

amendment or had Knowledge of the matter and did not notify the Company about it in writing. 

59

Item 1.



WESTCOR LAND TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY
ALTA COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE 

(Adopted  08-01-2016; Technical Corrections 04-02-18)

 This page is only a part of a 2016 ALTA® Commitment for Title Insurance issued by Fidelity National Title Insurance Company. This Commitment is not 
valid without the Notice; the Commitment to Issue Policy; the Commitment Conditions; Schedule A; Schedule B, Part I—Requirements; [and] Schedule 
B, Part II—Exceptions; and a counter-signature by the Company or its issuing agent that may be in electronic form. 

Copyright 2006-2016 American Land Title Association. All rights reserved.  
The use of this Form (or any derivative thereof) is restricted to ALTA licensees and  
ALTA members in good standing as of the date of use. All other uses are prohibited. 
Reprinted under license from the American Land Title Association. 

(c) The Company will only have liability under Commitment Condition 4 if the Proposed Insured would not have 

incurred the expense had the Commitment included the added matter when the Commitment was first 

delivered to the Proposed Insured. 

(d) The Company’s liability shall not exceed the lesser of the Proposed Insured’s actual expense incurred in 

good faith and described in Commitment Conditions 5(i) through 5(iii) or the Proposed Policy Amount. 

(e) The Company shall not be liable for the content of the Transaction Identification Data, if any. 

(f) In no event shall the Company be obligated to issue the Policy referred to in this Commitment unless all of 

the Schedule B, Part I – Requirements have been met to the satisfaction of the Company. 

(g) In any event, the Company’s liability is limited by the terms and provisions of the Policy. 

6. LIABILITY OF THE COMPANY MUST BE BASED ON THIS COMMITMENT 

(a) Only a Proposed Insured identified in Schedule A, and no other person, may make a claim under this 

Commitment. 

(b) Any claim must be based in contract and must be restricted solely to the terms and provisions of this 

Commitment. 

(c) Until the Policy is issued, this Commitment, as last revised, is the exclusive and entire agreement between 

the parties with respect to the subject matter of this Commitment and supersedes all prior commitment 

negotiations, representations, and proposals of any kind, whether written or oral, express or implied, 

relating to the subject matter of this Commitment. 

(d) The deletion or modification of any Schedule B, Part II – Exception does not constitute an agreement or 

obligation to provide coverage beyond the terms and provisions of this Commitment or the Policy. 

(e) Any amendment or endorsement to this Commitment must be in writing and authenticated by a person 

authorized by the Company. 

(f) When the Policy is issued, all liability and obligation under this Commitment will end and the Company’s 

only liability will be under the Policy. 

7. IF THIS COMMITMENT HAS BEEN ISSUED BY AN ISSUING AGENT 

The issuing agent is the Company’s agent only for the limited purpose of issuing title insurance commitments and 

policies.  The issuing agent is not the Company’s agent for the purpose of providing closing or settlement 

services. 

8. PRO-FORMA POLICY 

The Company may provide, at the request of a Proposed Insured, a pro-forma policy illustrating the coverage that 

the Company may provide.  A pro-forma policy neither reflects the status of Title at the time that the pro-forma 

policy is delivered to a Proposed Insured, nor is it a commitment to insure. 

9. INTENTIONALLY OMITTED 

60

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2022.2608 Page: 1 of 3
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

61

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2022.2608 Page: 2 of 3
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

62

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2022.2608 Page: 3 of 3
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

63

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2011.12817 Page: 1 of 3
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

64

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2011.12817 Page: 2 of 3
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

65

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2011.12817 Page: 3 of 3
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

66

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2000.19501 Page: 1 of 3
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

67

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2000.19501 Page: 2 of 3
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

68

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2000.19501 Page: 3 of 3
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

69

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 1992.23262 Page: 1 of 1
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

70

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 1992.23261 Page: 1 of 1
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

71

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 1992.23260 Page: 1 of 4
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

72

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 1992.23260 Page: 2 of 4
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

73

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 1992.23260 Page: 3 of 4
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

74

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 1992.23260 Page: 4 of 4
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

75

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 1992.23259 Page: 1 of 1
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

76

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 1992.21254 Page: 1 of 1
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

77

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 1990.23675 Page: 1 of 1
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

78

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2022.2609 Page: 1 of 14
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

79

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2022.2609 Page: 2 of 14
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

80

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2022.2609 Page: 3 of 14
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

81

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2022.2609 Page: 4 of 14
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

82

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2022.2609 Page: 5 of 14
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

83

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2022.2609 Page: 6 of 14
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

84

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2022.2609 Page: 7 of 14
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

85

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2022.2609 Page: 8 of 14
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

86

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2022.2609 Page: 9 of 14
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

87

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2022.2609 Page: 10 of 14
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

88

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2022.2609 Page: 11 of 14
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

89

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2022.2609 Page: 12 of 14
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

90

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2022.2609 Page: 13 of 14
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

91

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2022.2609 Page: 14 of 14
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

92

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2022.2610 Page: 1 of 10
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

93

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2022.2610 Page: 2 of 10
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

94

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2022.2610 Page: 3 of 10
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

95

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2022.2610 Page: 4 of 10
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

96

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2022.2610 Page: 5 of 10
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

97

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2022.2610 Page: 6 of 10
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

98

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2022.2610 Page: 7 of 10
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

99

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2022.2610 Page: 8 of 10
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

100

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2022.2610 Page: 9 of 10
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

101

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2022.2610 Page: 10 of 10
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

102

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Record Map - Book.Page 29.27 Page: 1 of 1
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

103

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2016.20337 Page: 1 of 4
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

104

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2016.20337 Page: 2 of 4
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

105

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2016.20337 Page: 3 of 4
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

106

Item 1.



Description: Butte,CA Document - Year.DocID 2016.20337 Page: 4 of 4
Order: 04142023 Comment: 

Draf
t O

nly

107

Item 1.



18 Imperial Place, Courtyard
Providence, RI 02903

(844) 944-2876

COMMERCIAL TAX CERTIFICATE #382522

File #: VTB-150515-C Applicants: SPP Oroville 3 LLC, a Delaware Limited Request Date: 4/5/2023

Ref #: Situs Address: 3425 Orange Avenue, Oroville, CA
95966

Completed: 4/6/2023

Updated:

Tax Summary All Parcels

Tax Collector Tax Year Base Tax Penalty Amt Paid Total Due

Butte County 2022/1 $11,400.37 $0.00 $11,400.37 $0.00

Butte County 2022/2 $11,400.37 $0.00 $11,400.37 $0.00

Grand Total $22,800.74 $0.00 $22,800.74 $0.00

1 Parcel(s)

Parcel: 033-390-050-000

Parcel # 033-390-050-000 Tax # 2022 Assessment

Land

Improvement

Total Assessed $352,085.00

State CA County Butte

Legal ORANGE AVE

Address 3425 Orange Avenue, Oroville, CA 95966

Assessed Owner SPP Oroville 3 LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company

Assessed Mailing 3425 Orange Avenue, Oroville, CA 95966

Jurisdictions Butte, CA - County

Exemption/Credit
(s)

None

HOA

Tax Payments for Butte County

Collector Butte County Payable To Butte County Tax Collector

Mail To 25 County Center Dr # 125, Oroville, CA 95965 Phone # Business: (530) 552-3720

Requirements Postmarks Accepted:Yes, Duplicate Bill Req:No, Dummy Bill Accepted:Unknown

Status Base Tax Tax Year Amt Paid Penalty Due Date Amt Due Next Due Next Amt

Paid $11,400.37 2022/1 $11,400.37 $0.00 12/10/22 $0.00

Paid $11,400.37 2022/2 $11,400.37 $0.00 4/10/23 $0.00

Tax Notes

NO DELINQUENCIES REPORTED.

Thursday, April 6, 2023 Page 1 of 1

108

Item 1.



1

Wes Ervin

From: McAfee, Natalie (CONTR) <mcafee@WAPA.GOV>

Sent: Tuesday, January 23, 2024 8:35 AM

To: Noelle Snow

Cc: Smith, Marissa; McAfee, Natalie (CONTR)

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] City of Oroville. Tower information request. 

Hi Noelle, 
 
Since the cell tower will be outside of WAPA’s easement, WAPA does not oppose the placement. 
 
Let me know if you have ques�ons. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Natalie McAfee 
 
Natalie McAfee| Realty Specialist 
Wyando�e Technologies On Contract to U.S. Department of Energy  
Western Area Power Administra�on | Sierra Nevada Region  
Cell:  916-597-8555  
 
MY TOUR OF DUTY HOURS ARE M-F 0630-1500 
 
Note:  I am not a government employee and have no legal authority to obligate any federal, state or local government to 
perform any ac�on or payment. 
 
 

 
 

From: Noelle Snow <nsnow@cityoforoville.org>  
Sent: Monday, January 22, 2024 8:17 AM 
To: McAfee, Natalie (CONTR) <mcafee@WAPA.GOV> 
Cc: Smith, Marissa <MBSmith@WAPA.GOV> 
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] City of Oroville. Tower information request.  
 

EXTERNAL E-MAIL: Before you click a link or open an attachment... STOP and THINK.  
Forward any suspicious e-mail to spam@wapa.gov, or call WITCC at (720) 962-7111.  

Good morning, Natalie, 

 You don't often get email from mcafee@wapa.gov. Learn why this is important  

. 
ATTENTION: This message originated from outside the City of Oroville. Please exercise judgment before opening attachments, 

clicking on links, or replying. 
. 

109

Item 1.



2

 
The wireless tower should be out of the WAPA’s easement.  The wireless tower will be about 120’ away from the 
transmission tower along with the equipment.  
 
 

Thank you, 
 

Noelle Snow 
Community Development Tech II  
City of Oroville                       
1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA  95965 
Ph: (530) 538-2508 
Email: nsnow@cityoforoville.org  

 
 
***Office Open M-Th 8am to 5pm  Friday -8am to 12pm*** 
 
 
 

From: McAfee, Natalie (CONTR) <mcafee@WAPA.GOV>  
Sent: Tuesday, January 9, 2024 9:23 AM 
To: Noelle Snow <nsnow@cityoforoville.org> 
Cc: McAfee, Natalie (CONTR) <mcafee@WAPA.GOV>; Smith, Marissa <MBSmith@WAPA.GOV> 
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] City of Oroville. Tower information request.  
 

Hi Noelle, 
 
Thank you for the email and plans.  In order to review the plans much more quickly, can you ask them to highlight 
WAPA’s transmission line easement and any work/fixtures that will be within the easement?  With a quick glance, it 
appears to be all out of WAPA’s easement, but the drawings are very busy and we want to make sure we do no miss 
anything.  If this is truly within WAPA’s easement, the tower will not be approved. 
 
Per the a�ached Declara�on of Taking No. 5844, “owners of the land have the right to cul�vate, use and occupy the 
land…however, that this excep�on and reserva�on shall not include the rights and privileges of the owners of the land, 
their successors and assigns to gig or drill a well or wells for any purpose whatsoever, erect buildings or structures, or 
place or pile up materials within said limits.” 
 
Let me know if you have ques�ons. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Natalie McAfee 
 
Natalie McAfee| Realty Specialist 
Wyando�e Technologies On Contract to U.S. Department of Energy  
Western Area Power Administra�on | Sierra Nevada Region  
Cell:  916-597-8555  

 You don't often get email from mcafee@wapa.gov. Learn why this is important  

. 
ATTENTION: This message originated from outside the City of Oroville. Please exercise judgment before opening attachments, 

clicking on links, or replying. . 

110

Item 1.



3

 
MY TOUR OF DUTY HOURS ARE M-F 0630-1500 
 
Note:  I am not a government employee and have no legal authority to obligate any federal, state or local government to 
perform any ac�on or payment. 
 
 

 
 

From: Noelle Snow <nsnow@cityoforoville.org>  
Sent: Monday, January 8, 2024 2:09 PM 
To: McAfee, Natalie (CONTR) <mcafee@WAPA.GOV> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] City of Oroville. Tower information request.  
 

EXTERNAL E-MAIL: Before you click a link or open an attachment... STOP and THINK.  
Forward any suspicious e-mail to spam@wapa.gov, or call WITCC at (720) 962-7111.  

Hello Natalie, 
 
Thank you for your call back. We have an applicant who is proposing to build a 120’ unmanned wireless tower at 3425 
Orange Ave. Please see the a�ached drawings.  
 
 
The project will be consisting of a 120’ co-locatable monopine with (10) 8’ antennas, (6) RRU’S, (3) 3’ 
microwave, (1) GPS antenna, required antenna cabling, hcs jumpers, and a 10-foot lighting rod at the top of 
the monopine. The project includes (2) ground mounted radio cabinets, (1) raised concrete pad, cable ice 
bridge, utility backboard and multi-meter utility service mounted h-frame. 
 
The site will be within a 40’x40’ fenced lease area with the tower contained within a 6-foot-tall chain link fence. 
A 12’ wide double swing access gate will be installed as part of the project along with a 12’ graveled access 
road.  
 
This project will be located behind the Oro Lake Mobile Home Park. The monopine will be approximately 110 
feet away from the homes. An EME-RF Safety Study was conducted by Hammett & Edison, Inc., Consulting 
Engineers to evaluate the wireless tower for compliance with appropriate guidelines limiting human exposure 
to radio frequency (RF) electromagnetic fields. Their findings are that the proposed operation will comply with 
the FCC guidelines limiting public exposure to RF energy.  
 
Visually this tower will be configured to resemble a pine tree and the antennas and RRUS will be painted green 
to match the monopine.to provide for aesthetic compatibility and comply with the city’s requirement to 
camouflage the equipment.  
 
No water nor sewer service is required. 
 
 

Thank you, 
 

111

Item 1.



4

Noelle Snow 
Community Development Tech II  
City of Oroville                       
1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA  95965 
Ph: (530) 538-2508 
Email: nsnow@cityoforoville.org  

 
 
***Office Open M-Th 8am to 5pm  Friday -8am to 12pm*** 
 
This message may contain information and attachments that are considered confidential and are intended only for the 
use of the individual or entity addressed above. If you are not the intended recipient, then any use, disclosure, or 
dissemination of this information is prohibited. If you have received this message in error, please notify the original 
sender by telephone or by return email immediately. In addition, please delete this message and any attachments from 
your computer. Thank you.  
This message may contain information and attachments that are considered confidential and are intended only for the 
use of the individual or entity addressed above. If you are not the intended recipient, then any use, disclosure, or 
dissemination of this information is prohibited. If you have received this message in error, please notify the original 
sender by telephone or by return email immediately. In addition, please delete this message and any attachments from 
your computer. Thank you.  

112

Item 1.



 
 

1 

RESOLUTION NO. P2024-02 WITH FINDINGS 
 

A RESOLUTION BY THE OROVILLE CITY PLANNING COMMISSION 
MAKING FINDINGS AND CONDITIONALLY APPROVING UP# 24-02 FOR 
A 120-FOOT TALL WIRELESS TOWER FACILITY AT 3425 ORANGE AVE 
(APN 031-390-050) 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Oroville has received an application requesting approval 
of a use permit to allow a 120’-foot-tall wireless telecommunications tower located at 
3425 Orange Avenue, being further identified as Assessor's Parcel Number 031-390-
050 (“Property”); and 

WHEREAS, the application and site plan under review for the proposed use were 
received by the City on November 29 2023, and the application has been assigned the 
file number of UP 24-02 and Tracking Number PL2311-006; and  

WHEREAS, the Property is zoned MXN, and City zoning regulations for MXN 
zones require approval of a use permit for public utility facilities and similar uses as well 
as requiring a use Permit for structures greater than 60 feet in height; and  
 

WHEREAS, the site is located on the same parcel as the Oro Lake Mobile Home 
Community, an EME-RF Safety Study was conducted by Hammett & Edison, Inc., Consulting 

Engineers to evaluate the wireless tower for compliance with appropriate guidelines limiting 
human exposure to radio frequency (RF) electromagnetic fields. Their findings are that the 
proposed operation will comply with the FCC guidelines limiting public exposure to RF energy; 
and  

WHEREAS, the purpose of requiring a use permit for any type of land use is to 
assure that the specific proposed project on the specific proposed site will be 
compatible with other uses around it; and 

WHEREAS, a Notice of Exemption has been prepared for this project; and  

WHEREAS, at a noticed public hearing, the Planning Commission considered 
the comments and concerns of public agencies, property owners, and members of the 
public who are potentially affected by approval of the Project described herein, and also 
considered City staffs report regarding the Project. 

 

113

Item 1.



 
 

2 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION as 
follows: 

 

FIRST, The Planning Commission finds that there is no evidence in the record to 
support a determination that there may be new potentially significant adverse 
environmental effects that will occur because of the project. Therefore, the appropriate 
CEQA document is a Notice of Exemption, which shall be filed with the County Clerk. 

 

SECOND, The Commission makes the following Findings with regard to Wireless 
telecommunications facilities:  

1. Per OMC 17.16.170(E)(3) – Enclosures and cabinets housing equipment related to a 
wireless communication facility shall meet setback and height restrictions for 
accessory buildings in their zoning districts. The enclosures and cabinets shall 
incorporate architectural details that are similar to other buildings on the site and shall 
be designed to minimize their visual impact. Underground vaults shall be used to meet 
these requirements if necessary.  

The new enclosure will meet all setback and design requirements common to the area, 
and the new enclosure will be properly screened.  

2. Per OMC 17.16.170(F)(2): 

a. No alternative site or design is available that would allow for issuance of an 
administrative permit for the facility.   

The tower will be located in the optimal location for telecommunications service in the 
area, and its location is amid several other utility installations, including a high-tension 
line of similar height about 120 feet to the west of the proposed tower. Other locations 
have been evaluated and rejected because all have less optimal coverage and would 
be more visible as stand-alone installations.  The new stealth ‘Monopalm’ design is 
required to be stealth mounted per OMC 17.16.170(E)(1)(b), and will blend in with the 
surrounding area as much as possible.  

b. The facility either does not require a Radiofrequency (RF) Environmental Evaluation 
Report, or the RF Environmental Evaluation Report for the facility shows that the 
cumulative non-ionizing electromagnetic radiation (NIER) emitted by the facility and 
any nearby facilities will be consistent with FCC regulations.   

A RF study was prepared by Hammett & Edison, Inc., Consulting Engineers, and their 
executive summary will comply with the FCC guidelines limiting public exposure to RF 
energy. In addition, the FCC has categorically excluded cellular transmitters (FCC 96-
326).   If any RF issues arise, Conditions No. 5, 6, &7 ensure that the facility will meet 
all FCC regulations regarding RF emissions standards, and if exceeded provides 
cause to revoke the use permit. 

114

Item 1.



 
 

3 

c. The facility will not have significant visual impacts.  

There will be a slight change in the visual impact of the area, but there will be no 
substantial adverse impact on a scenic vista since there are already significant towers 
carrying electricity in the vicinity.  No substantial light or glare will occur.  Renderings 
of the site after installation have been provided, which show that the visual impact will 
be limited.  

THIRD, The Commission makes the following findings with respect to Use Permits per 
Section 17.48.101(E)(4) of the Code of the City of Oroville, which states that in 
considering an application for a use permit the Planning Commission shall make the 
following findings based on substantial evidence:  

a. The granting of the permit will not be incompatible with or detrimental to the general 
health, safety or public welfare of the surrounding area or of the city as a whole.  

Cellular communications facilities serve the residents of the City of Oroville and 
Butte County including emergency services organizations and personnel and have 
become a valuable and relied upon part of communications throughout the region 
and the state.   

b. The proposed use follows sound principles of land use by having a suitable 
location relative to the community as a whole, as well as to transportation facilities, 
public services and other land uses in the vicinity.  

The proposed cellular tower is in a Neighborhood Mixed Use zone on a parcel that 
abuts residentially developed and zoned land. The tower location is located on the 
same parcel as a mobile home community, the tower will be approximately 110 
feet away from the homes. The tower will not generate light, noise, or other effects 
that would interfere with adjacent residential uses. Visually, the tower will be 
disguised as a pine tree to provide for aesthetic compatibility. 

c. Public utilities and facilities, including streets and highways, water and sanitation, 
are adequate to serve the proposed use or will be made adequate prior to the 
establishment of the proposed use.  

Utility poles are in, and no water nor sewer services are required.  

d. The location, size, design, and operating characteristics of the proposed use will 
be harmonious and compatible with the surrounding neighborhood and will not 
adversely affect abutting properties. 

The location is among other utilities of similar size. The monopine stealth 
configuration will limit its disruption to the area and will blend in with other 
vegetation. The facility will operate silently and will not interfere with any other 
activities in the area.   

e. The subject site is physically suitable for the type and intensity of land use being 
proposed. 

Telecommunication facilities are compatible with the Neighborhood Mixed Use 
Zone in which it is located.  

115

Item 1.



 
 

4 

f. The size, intensity and location of the proposed use will provide services that are 
necessary or desirable for the neighborhood and community as a whole. 

Cellular communications facilities serve the residents of the City of Oroville and 
Butte County including emergency services organizations and personnel and have 
become a valuable and relied upon part of communications throughout the region 
and the state. 

g. The permit complies with all applicable laws and regulations, including the 
requirements of the general plan, of this title and of the city municipal code.  

Applicable conditions designed to protect the health and welfare of the general 
public have been included and made part of the Use Permit. 

 

FOURTH, the Commission approves Use Permit UP24-02, subject to the conditions 
described in the attached Approval Letter and authorizes the Planning staff to sign the 
letter on behalf of the Commissioners.  

 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was duly introduced and passed at a 
special meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Oroville held on the 27th of 
April 2023, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSTAIN:  

ABSENT:  

ATTEST:           APPROVE:             
                                                                                                  
 
_______________________________              _______________________________ 
Kayla Reaster, ASSISTANT CITY CLERK     CARL DURLING, CHAIRPERSON 

 

116

Item 1.



1 OF 2 

 

 

  City of Oroville 
  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

 
1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA  95965-4897    
(530) 538-2430   FAX (530) 538-2426 
www.cityoforoville.org 

 

NOTICE OF EXEMPTION 
 

TO: Butte County Clerk FROM: City of Oroville 
 155 Nelson Ave  1735 Montgomery Street 
 Oroville, CA 95965  Oroville, CA 95965 

 

Project Title:  PL2311-006 New Unmanned Wireless Telecommunications facility for T-Mobile 
 
Project Location – Specific: 3425 Orange Ave. 
 
Project Location - City: City of Oroville 
 
Project Location – County: Butte 
 
Description of Nature, Purpose, and beneficiaries of project: The project applicant, Adrian Culci project 
representative for Vertical Bridge, has applied for a New Use Permit to construct a 120-foot-tall unmanned 
co-locatable wireless telecommunications facility configured as a stealth monopine. 
 
Name of Public Agency Approving Project: City of Oroville   
 
Name of Person or Agency Carrying Out Project: Vertical Bridge 
 
Exempt Status (Check One): 
 

 Ministerial (Sec. 21080(b)(1); 15268) 
 Declared Emergency (Sec. 21080(b)(3); 15269(a)) 
 Emergency Project (Sec. 21080(b)(4); 15269(b)(c)) 
 Categorical Exemption: State type & section number:  

 In-Fill Development Projects, Title 14 CCR, §15332 
 

 Statutory Exemption: State code number: 

Reasons why project is exempt: This action has been determined to be exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) review as follows: 

In-Fill Development Projects; Title 14, CCR, §15332 
Class 32 categorical exemptions consists of projects characterized as in-fill development meeting specific 
conditions a-e as described in this section.  This project will be located on an already developed parcel; 
the tower will be equivalent in size and height to the utility towers that are already in existence surrounding 
the project site. This project meets all conditions, including being consistent with the General Plan and 
Zoning Designation, occurs within City limits, has no value as habitat, will not result in any significant 
effects, and can be adequately served by all required utilities.  

117

Item 1.

http://www.cityoforoville.org/


2 OF 2 

 

 
 
If filed by applicant: 
 

1. Attach certified document of exemption finding. 
2. Has a notice of exemption been filed by the public agency approving the project?  Yes  No 
 

Lead Agency Contact Person: Wes Ervin   Telephone: (530) 538-2408 
 

Signature:          Date:       

 Signed by Lead Agency 
 Signed by Applicant 

 

118

Item 1.



City of Oroville 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA  95965-4897    
(530) 538-2430   FAX (530) 538-2426 
www.cityoforoville.org 

 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT Thursday, February 22, 2024 

RE: Minor Use Permit (UP) 24-04 for exterior modifications, drive-through modifications, 
and site improvements for a proposed Starbucks Coffee drive-through establishment in 
an existing multi-tenant building at 2040 3rd Street (APN 031-161-061) 

SUMMARY:  The Planning Commission will review and consider approving Minor Use Permit 
No. UP 24-04 for a proposed 1,367 sq. ft. Starbucks Coffee drive-through establishment with 
12-vehicle stacking, building modifications, and associated site improvements. The Planning 
Commission previously approved UP 13-06 on September 23, 2013, which allowed for the 
construction of an approximately 4,000 sq. ft. multi-tenant building with a drive-through window 
in Suite B. UP 13-06 has since expired and relevant circumstances have changed significantly 
since the 2013 approval, thus necessitating the submittal of a new Minor Use Permit.   

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the following actions: 

1. Conduct a Public Hearing on the proposed project; 

2. Adopt the Notice of Exemption as the appropriate level of environmental review in 
accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); 

3. Adopt the recommended Findings for Minor Use Permit No. UP 24-04; 

4. Approve Minor Use Permit UP 24-04 and recommended Conditions of Approval; 

5. Adopt Resolution No. P2024-04 

APPLICANT: Sukhjit “Tony” Singh, Continental Development Consultants, Inc. 

LOCATION:  2030-2040 3rd Street (APN 
031-161-061) 
 

 

GENERAL PLAN:  RBS 

ZONING: C-2 

FLOOD ZONE:  Zone X: Area of Minimal Flood 
Hazard 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:  The proposed project is not subject to the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Article 19, Categorical Exemptions, Section 
15301, Class 1, which exempts existing facilities; Section 15303, Class 3, which exempts 
construction and location of limited numbers of new, small facilities or structures; and Section 
15304, Class 4, which exempts minor alterations to land. 

REPORT PREPARED BY: 

 

 

___________________________ 
Connor Musler, Contract Planner 
Community Development Department 

REVIEWED BY: 

 

 

___________________________ 
Patrick Piatt, Director 
Community Development Department 

119

Item 2.

http://www.cityoforoville.org/


 2 

DISCUSSION 

Starbucks Coffee is proposing to occupy an existing 1,367 square foot tenant suite 

(Suite A) within an existing 4,105 square foot multi-tenant building located at 2040 3rd 

Street (APN: 031-161-061). Starbucks is proposed to be a drive-through only 

configuration, with room for 12 cars stacking in the drive-through, operating for 24 hours 

per day. The site is already developed with a Chevron gas station, convenience store, 

car wash, and the multi-tenant building proposed to be partially occupied by Starbucks.  

The multi-tenant building was originally approved by the Planning Commission on 

September 23, 2013, under UP 13-06. The 2013 approval allowed for the construction 

of an approximately 4,000 square foot multi-tenant building with a drive-through window 

in Suite B, which was intended to be occupied by a Subway restaurant, and the 

remaining two suites for future retail users. Since the 2013 approval, the property owner 

incrementally developed the site. On August 18, 2021, the applicant was granted an 

extension of their building permit (B1404-010) to allow time to final the shell building 

only. All other repairs and site improvements were agreed to be deferred to when tenant 

improvements occurred. The property owner, Kulwinder Singh Lally, is now proposing to 

complete the necessary site improvements to facilitate an occupancy by Starbucks 

Coffee; however, UP 13-06 has since expired and relevant circumstances have 

changed significantly since the 2013 approval, thus necessitating the submittal of a new 

Use Permit.   

The proposed project includes: 

 Relocation of drive-through window from Suite B to Suite A. 

 Relocation of tenant suite door. 

 New parking lot facilities. 

 Drive-through aisle to accommodate 12 car stacking. 

 New trash enclosure. 

 New landscaping and fencing. 

 Removal of unpermitted structures at the existing gas station. 

 
Graphic 1: Site Landscape Plan 

120

Item 2.



 3 

Pursuant to Oroville Municipal Code (OMC) Section 17.32.010, drive-through 

establishments are a permitted use in the C-2 zoning district, subject to Planning 

Commission approval of a Use Permit.   

Drive-Through Regulations  

OMC Section 17.16.080 sets forth use specific regulations for drive-through 

establishments.  

A. Display of Merchandise. Merchandise shall not be displayed except within an 

enclosed structure. 

No merchandise is proposed to be displayed outside. 

B. Vehicle Queuing. The site plan for the drive-through establishment shall provide 

adequate queuing space for vehicles, as well as vehicle circulation paths that 

prevent backing onto public rights-of-way, in accordance with the requirements of 

the city engineering design standards. 

The entrance to the drive-through lane is proposed to be on the far eastern side 

of the property, approximately 150 feet from the nearest driveway to 3rd Street. 

The drive-through is proposed to accommodate 12 vehicles stacking. The 

proposed site plan also shows room to accommodate 5 vehicles overflow 

stacking in the north drive aisle between the fueling canopy and the multi-tenant 

building, and 5 vehicles overflow stacking between the convenience store and 

car wash. With the proposed removal of the unpermitted canopy and shipping 

container placed in the rear drive aisle between the convenience store and the 

car wash, all drive aisles meet the City Engineering Improvement Standard width 

of 25 feet, allowing for full on-site circulation. 

C. Access. 

1. Vehicular entrances to the establishment’s site shall not be wider than 30 

feet. 

The vehicular entrances along 3rd Street will be brought into compliance with 

the 30-foot maximum width requirement.  

2. Vehicular entrances to the establishment’s site shall be separated from one 

another as required by the city engineering design standards. 

No new vehicular entrances are proposed and the existing vehicular 

entrances along 3rd Street are approximately 75 feet apart. 

3. The total number of vehicular entrances to the establishment’s site shall not 

exceed one entrance for each 100 feet of the site’s street frontage; provided, 

however, that each establishment shall have a minimum of one vehicular 

entrance. (Ord. 1749 § 4) 

121

Item 2.



 4 

The property has approximately 300 feet of street frontage, with two vehicular 

entrances and one exit driveway for the drive-through. Thus, the 

establishment’s site is in compliance with this requirement.  

Project Development Review 

The DRC at their February 8, 2024, meeting reviewed the proposed project 

(Attachment 4). 

Design Features 

The multi-tenant building was approved under UP 13-06 as a stucco building with 

stacked stone accents, a tile roof, and an articulated façade with projections and bump-

outs that correspond to the tenant suite entrances. No exterior modifications are 

proposed to the building that would otherwise substantially alter the design features as 

previously approved and constructed. The only work proposed is the relocation of the 

tenant door for Suite A and the relocation of the drive-through window from Suite B to 

Suite A. 

 

Graphic 2: Exterior Photo of 2040 3rd Street 

Landscaping and Fencing 

The north and east property line adjacent to the proposed drive-through is proposed to 

be fenced with a CMU block wall at a maximum height of 7 feet. This block wall will 

separate the drive-through from the neighboring residential property to the east, helping 

minimize potential light spillage, noise, and privacy concerns. A small landscaping strip 

is also proposed to be provided between the drive-through and the block wall, which will 

serve to help soften the appearance of the wall. 

As shown in Graphic 1, the project also proposes landscaping in the parking lot, 

surrounding the trash enclosure, and along the property’s frontage with 3rd Street. Draft 

conditions of approval have been added requiring compliance with the Model Water 

122

Item 2.



 5 

Efficiency Landscape Ordinance (MWELO) and 50% shade coverage of paved surfaces 

within 15 years. 

Parking Facilities 

25 parking stalls are proposed, with 3 handicapped accessible. Parking requirements 

for the site are broken down as follows: 

Use Parking Ratio Parking Required 

Multi-tenant Building 1 space for every 300 

square feet 

14 spaces 

Gas Station As required for individual 

accessory uses; 

minimum of 2 spaces 

2 spaces 

Car Wash 2 spaces for each wash 

bay 

2 spaces 

Convenience Store 1 space for every 300 

square feet 

7 Spaces 

Total Spaces Required 25 

The site plan confirms that all parking stalls will comply with the minimum dimensions of 

9’x19’ for regular spaces or 7.5’x16’ for compact spaces. 

In order to help prevent on-site congestion, staff have added a draft condition of 

approval requiring no fuel, merchandise, food, and goods deliveries be made during the 

peak hours of 7:00 a.m. – 10:00 a.m., and 3:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. Monday through 

Friday.1 

OMC 17.12.070(N) further requires a minimum of two bicycle parking spaces to be 

provided and connected via a pedestrian walkway to the nearest building entrance. The 

site plan shows the two required bicycle parking spaces provided behind the proposed 

trash enclosure with a walkway connecting to the multi-tenant building. 

17-foot-tall light poles are proposed to be installed in the drive-thru and parking lot 

surrounding the multi-tenant building. The City of Oroville Performance Standards state 

that parking areas shall have a minimum lighting intensity of 1 foot candle. The 

applicant has provided a photometric plan confirming that the minimum lighting 

intensities are satisfied. Furthermore, City Code requires that all light sources include 

appropriate shielding to minimize light spillage outside of the property. Draft conditions 

of approval have been added requiring the applicant to direct lighting away from the 

neighboring residential property and adequately shield neighboring properties from 

excessive light spillage.  

1. Peak hours are based on commuting pattens and nearby school start/dismissal times in the Thermalito Union School District 

123

Item 2.



 6 

Frontage Improvements 

Curb, gutter, and sidewalk are already existing along the project boundaries. The 

applicant will be required to modify the vehicular entrances along 3rd Street to comply 

with the max driveway width of 30 feet as set forth in OMC Section 17.16.080. 

Similar to what was discussed with the approval of UP 13-06, the sidewalk may be 

deficient and require replacement in some portions to comply with City standards and 

ADA requirements. Draft conditions of approval have been added requiring frontage 

improvements to be provided where not currently provided and replaced as determined 

by the Director of Public Works or designee. 

Signage 

Signage is shown on the plans for the drive-through. All signage shown on the plans is 

provided for reference only and all signage shall be designed and processed in 

accordance with the City’s Sign Code as found in OMC Chapter 17.20. When the multi-

tenant building underwent development review in 2013 as part of UP 13-06, staff 

recommended that a sign program be created to allow the applicant more flexibility with 

the project signage. Sign programs are specifically intended to address the unique 

needs of certain uses and properties that include multiple uses on a site, or multiple 

signs for uses with special sign needs. Sign programs shall be used to achieve 

aesthetic compatibility between the signs within a project and provide flexibility in the 

number, size, location and type of signs. 

In accordance with OMC Section 17.20.080, the Planning Commission has the 

discretion to require a sign program as a condition of approval for a use permit, 

specifically for the following uses: 

1. Multiple-tenant buildings. 

2. Uses with freeway-oriented signs. 

3. Automobile or other vehicle sales. 

4. All uses within a planned development (PD-O) overlay district. 

GENERAL PLAN CONSISTENCY 

This proposed ordinance helps implement the following goals and policies of the City’s 

2030 General Plan: 

General Plan Goals: 

Goal LU-1 “Provide for orderly, well-planned, and balanced growth consistent with the 

limits imposed by infrastructure and the City’s ability to assimilate new growth.” 

Goal LU-4 “Provide adequate land for and promote the development of attractive 

commercial areas and uses that provide goods and services to Oroville residents, 

employees, and visitors.” 

124

Item 2.



 7 

Goal CD-1 “As the community grows, maintain a coherent and distinctive physical form 

and structure that reflects Oroville’s unique qualities.” 

Goal CD-2 “Maintain and enhance the quality of Oroville’s landscape, streetscape and 

gateways.” 

Goal ED-1 “Enhance and diversify the Oroville economy.” 

Goal ED-3 “Provide a variety of thriving retail shopping areas distributed throughout the 

City.” 

General Plan Policies: 

P7.3 Promote traveler-services clusters at freeway interchanges. 

P1.1 Require quality architectural and landscaping design as well as durable and 

efficient materials for all projects. 

P1.3 Require compliance with the City of Oroville Design Guidelines as part of any 

project approval process. 

P2.10 Parking lots intended for automobiles and small trucks with six spaces or more 

shall include shade trees. Trees shall be evenly distributed throughout parking areas 

and provide at least 50 percent shading of the paved surface by tree canopy within 15 

years.  

P2.12 Require non-residential development to provide landscaping on portions of the 

property along public rights-of-way that are not occupied by structures or used for 

pedestrian circulation or vehicle parking and circulation. 

P3.1 Encourage a full range of commercial services at the regional, community, and 
neighborhood levels. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
None.   
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
A request for comments was prepared and circulated to the local agencies and 
surrounding property owners within 300 feet of the property. Additionally, the meeting 
date, time, and project description were published in the Oroville Mercury Register and 
posted at City Hall. 

ATTACHMENTS 
1. Notice of Exemption 
2. Resolution No. P2024-04 
3. Application and Project Plan Drawings 
4. DRC Report 
5. 2013 Planning Commission Report for UP 13-06 

125

Item 2.



 

 

 

Attachment 1 

126

Item 2.



1 OF 2 

 

 

City of Oroville 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA  95965-4897    
(530) 538-2430   FAX (530) 538-2426 
www.cityoforoville.org 

 

NOTICE OF EXEMPTION 
 

TO
: 

Butte County Clerk FROM
: 

City of Oroville 

 155 Nelson Avenue  1735 Montgomery Street 
 Oroville, CA 95965  Oroville, CA 95965 
 

Project Title:  Minor Use Permit (UP) 24-04 for exterior modifications, drive-through modifications, and 
site improvements for a proposed Starbucks Coffee drive-through establishment in an existing multi-
tenant building at 2040 3rd Street (APN 031-161-061) 

 
Project Location – Specific: 2040 3rd Street (APN 031-161-061) 
 
Project Location - City: City of Oroville 
 
Project Location – County: Butte 
 

Description of Nature, Purpose, and beneficiaries of project: Starbucks Coffee is proposing a 1,367 sq. ft. 
drive-through establishment with 12-vehicle stacking, building modifications, and associated site 
improvements. The Planning Commission previously approved UP 13-06 on September 23, 2013, which 
allowed for the construction of an approximately 4,000 sq. ft. multi-tenant building with a drive-through 
window in Suite B. UP 13-06 has since expired and relevant circumstances have changed significantly 
since the 2013 approval, thus necessitating the submittal of a new Use Permit. 

 
Name of Public Agency Approving Project: City of Oroville   
 
Name of Person or Agency Carrying Out Project: Sukhjit “Tony” Singh, Continental Development 
Consultants, Inc. 
 
Exempt Status (Check One): 
 

 Ministerial (Sec. 21080(b)(1); 15268) 
 Declared Emergency (Sec. 21080(b)(3); 15269(a)) 
 Emergency Project (Sec. 21080(b)(4); 15269(b)(c)) 
 Categorical Exemption: State type & section number:  

• Existing Facilities; Title 14, CCR, §15301 

• New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures, Title 14, CCR, §15303 

• Minor Alterations to Land, Title 14, CCR, §15304 
 Statutory Exemption: State code number: 

Reasons why project is exempt: This action has been determined to be exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) review as follows: 

127

Item 2.

http://www.cityoforoville.org/


2 OF 2 

 

In-Fill Development Projects, Title 14, CCR, §15301 
Class 1 categorical exemptions consist of the operation, repair, maintenance, permitting, leasing, 
licensing, or minor alteration of existing public or private structures. The project involves a change in use 
of a vacant space within an existing multi-tenant building. Starbucks Coffee will be utilizing a property 
intended to provide commercial uses with no proposed expansion of floor area and only minor 
modifications by way of relocating the tenant door and drive-through window. 
 
New Construction or Conversion of Small Structures, Title 14, CCR, §15303 
Class 3 categorical exemptions consists of construction and location of limited numbers of new, small 
facilities or structures; installation of small new equipment and facilities in small structures; and the 
conversion of existing small structures from one use to another where only minor modifications are made 
in the exterior of the structure. The multi-tenant building already exists and the applicant is proposing 
minor site modifications, including fencing, trash enclosure, parking lot facilities, and site lighting.  
 
Minor Alterations to Land, Title 14, CCR, §15304 
Class 4 categorical exemptions consist of minor public or private alterations in the condition of land, 
water, and/or vegetation which do not involve removal of healthy, mature, scenic trees except for forestry 
and agricultural purposes. No trees are proposed to be removed and new landscaping is proposed to be 
provided in non-paved areas of the site.  
 
If filed by applicant: 
 

1. Attach certified document of exemption finding. 
2. Has a notice of exemption been filed by the public agency approving the project?  Yes  No 
 

Lead Agency Contact Person: Connor Musler   Telephone: (530) 538-2430 
 

Signature:          Date:       

 Signed by Lead Agency 
 Signed by Applicant 

 

128

Item 2.



 

 

 
Attachment 2 

129

Item 2.



1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. P2024-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE OROVILLE PLANNING COMMISSION MAKING FINDINGS 
AND CONDITIONALLY APPROVING MINOR USE PERMIT UP 24-04 FOR 
EXTERIOR MODIFICATIONS, DRIVE-THROUGH MODIFICATIONS, AND SITE 
IMPROVEMENTS FOR A PROPOSED STARBUCKS COFFEE DRIVE-THROUGH 
ESTABLISHMENT IN AN EXISTING MULTI-TENANT BUILDING AT 2040 3RD 
STREET (APN 031-161-061) 
 

WHEREAS, the City has received an application for exterior modifications, drive-
through modifications, and site improvements for a Starbucks Coffee in an existing 
multi-tenant building located at 2040 3rd Street (APN 031-161-061); and 

 
WHEREAS, The City of Oroville Municipal Code (OMC) Table 17.32.010-1 

specifies that a Use Permit is required for all drive-through establishments; and 
 
WHEREAS, a Use Permit (UP 13-06) was approved by the Planning 

Commission on September 23, 2013, for the construction of an approximately 4,000 
square foot multi-tenant building with a drive-through window in Suite B for a quick-
service sandwich franchise, and the remaining two suites for future retail users. 

 
WHEREAS, the property owner applied for building permits (B1404-010) in 2014 

to construct the multi-tenant building and said building permits were issued in 2017 after 
completing all necessary plan checks for compliance with applicable codes and paying 
all applicable fees; and 

 
WHEREAS, the building permit for the multi-tenant building was finaled in 2022 

for the shell building only, with all other repairs and site improvements agreed to be 
deferred to when tenant improvements occurred; and 

 
WHEREAS, the property owner, Kulwinder Singh Lally, is now proposing to 

complete the necessary site improvements to facilitate an occupancy by Starbucks 
Coffee; and 

 
WHEREAS, UP 13-06 has since expired and relevant circumstances have 

changed significantly since the 2013 approval, thus necessitating the submittal of a new 
Use Permit; and 

 
WHEREAS, at a duly noticed public hearing, the Planning Commission 

considered the comments and concerns of public agencies, property owners, and 
members of the public who are potentially affected by the approval of the Use Permit 
described herein, and also considered the City’s staff report regarding the proposal. 
 
 
 

130

Item 2.



2 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE 
CITY OF OROVILLE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. RECITALS.  
 
The Planning Commission hereby finds that the foregoing recitals are true and correct 
and are incorporated herein as substantive findings of this Resolution. 
 
SECTION 2. ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION.  
 
This action has been determined to be exempt from the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Article 19, Categorical Exemptions, Section 15301, 
Class 1, which exempts existing facilities; Section 15303, Class 3, which exempts 
construction and location of limited numbers of new, small facilities or structures; and 
Section 15304, Class 4, which exempts minor alterations to land. 
 
SECTION 3. FINDINGS 

 
The Planning Commission approves the findings required by Section 17.48.010 of the 
Oroville Municipal Code, as described in this Resolution. 
 

Required Findings for Use Permits (OMC 17.48.010) 

1. The granting of the permit will not be incompatible with or detrimental to 

the general health, safety or public welfare of the surrounding area or of 

the city as a whole.  

The project will be located in an area surrounded by active commercial 

development. The project has been reviewed and conditioned to minimize or 

prevent any potential impacts to the general health, safety, or public welfare of 

the surrounding area and the City as a whole.  

2. The proposed use follows sound principles of land use by having a 

suitable location relative to the community as a whole, as well as to 

transportation facilities, public services and other land uses in the vicinity. 

 The proposed use will provide a desired commercial product and is located in an 

area with significant employment and transportation access. The proposed use 

as a Starbucks drive-through establishment would be fulfilling a need in the 

northern Oroville community and greater Oroville area as a whole. In particular, 

the northern community of Oroville is lacking food service establishments to 

serve that area of the City. The business would be in close proximity to a major 

employment hub, County of Butte Government Campus, new residential 

development, and State Route 70.   

3. Public utilities and facilities, including streets and highways, water and 
sanitation, are adequate to serve the proposed use or will be made 

131

Item 2.



3 

 

adequate prior to the establishment of the proposed use. 

All infrastructure is in and available. Any utilities not already provided on site will 
be installed by the property owner, subject to all applicable fees and permits. 

Additionally, the project site has direct access to both 3rd Street and Grand 
Avenue, an arterial roadway designed to move large volumes of traffic and 
intended to provide a high level of mobility between State Highway 70, other 
arterials and local/collector roadways. Thus, this project site has great 
connectivity to the local transportation network. 

4. The location, size, design and operating characteristics of the proposed 
use will be harmonious and compatible with the surrounding 
neighborhood and will not adversely affect abutting properties. 

As required by OMC Chapter 17.52, the project underwent development review 
and the applicant made revisions based on the committee’s comments. 
Starbucks Coffee will be located in an area near similar commercial businesses. 
The intended 24 hours of operation per day is compatible with surrounding 
users who likewise are open late or also operate for 24 hours per day. The site 
plan, design, lighting, landscaping, and other improvements have been reviewed 
and the project conditioned to minimize any adverse impacts on abutting 
properties. The property will be separated from the neighboring residential 
property with a 7-foot-tall CMU decorative block wall. This block wall will 
separate the drive-through from the neighboring residential property to the east, 
helping minimize potential light spillage, noise, and privacy concerns. Code 
enforcement will monitor for compliance on an ongoing basis. 

5. The subject site is physically suitable for the type and intensity of land use 

being proposed. 

The applicant has submitted a set of drawings demonstrating that the site is 

physically suitable for the proposed type and intensity of use. The site will 

provide adequate capacity for the use. 

6. The size, intensity and location of the proposed use will provide services 
that are necessary or desirable for the neighborhood and community as a 
whole. 

Starbucks Coffee is a desirable and respected coffee and beverage purveyor for 
the neighborhood and the community as a whole.  

7. The permit complies with all applicable laws and regulations, including the 
requirements of the general plan, of this title and of the city municipal 
code. 

The permit has been reviewed by staff and has been found to comply with all 
applicable laws and regulations, including the applicable requirements of the 
City’s 2030 General Plan, Zoning Code, and other applicable portions of the 
City’s Municipal Code. As a condition of this permit, the applicant shall be 

132

Item 2.



4 

 

required to ascertain and comply with the requirements of all Federal, State, 
County and Local agencies as applicable to the proposed use and project site, 
including any licenses that may be required. In addition, Section 17.48.010(F) of 
the OMC provides guidelines for modifying or revoking use permits that have 
been granted if it can be proven, upon substantial evidence, that, any of the 
conditions of the permit have not been satisfied within 1 year after it was 
granted, any of the terms or conditions of the permit have been violated, if a law 
has been violated in connection with the permit, or if the permit was obtained by 
fraud. 

 
SECTION 4. PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION(S). 

Approved project: The Planning Commission hereby conditionally approves Use 
Permit No. 24-04 for exterior modifications, drive-through modifications, and site 
improvements for a proposed Starbucks Coffee drive-through establishment in an 
existing multi-tenant building at 2040 3rd Street (APN 031-161-061). The subject 
property has a zoning designation of Intensive Commercial (C-2). Per OMC Table 
17.32.010-1, drive-through are a permitted use in the C-2 zoning district subject to 
Planning Commission approval of a Use Permit.  
 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
Prior to and during site grading. 
 
1. All grading, paving, excavation and site clearance, including that which is exempt 

from obtaining a permit, shall be performed in conformance with the City’s 
Engineering Design Standards; the Municipal Code; the requirements of the State 
Regional Water Quality Control Board; and any other applicable local, state, and 
federal requirements.  

2. A site grading, drainage and improvement plan shall be prepared by a Registered 
Civil Engineer, in conformance with City standards, and shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Public Works Department prior to any work on the site.  This plan 
shall also show: 

I. The design of the sanitary sewer service system including the type and size 
of the sanitary sewer line lateral, and the proposed point of connection the 
sewer main. 

II. Existing and proposed easements. 

III. Proposed elevations of finished improvements (parking area, onsite curbs, 
planters, etc.) within the project at an adequate level of detail to demonstrate 
drainage flow directions within the project boundaries.  

IV. As determined by the Director of Public Works or designee, frontage 
improvements to include curb, gutters and sidewalk constructed to ADA 
standards; asphaltic concrete pave out (1-foot minimum, or wider if 

133

Item 2.



5 

 

necessary) along new curb, gutters and sidewalk adequate to provide proper 
street drainage along the project frontage. 

3. All construction projects are required to implement dust control measures to reduce 
particulate matter emissions due to disturbances of exposed top-soils, such as 
watering of active areas where disturbance occurs, covering haul loads, maintaining 
clean access roads, and cleaning the wheels of construction vehicles accessing 
disturbed areas of the site. 

4. All grading and paving shall be conducted in compliance with the Butte County Air 
Quality Management District’s Indirect Source Guidelines in order to prevent 
degradation of ambient air quality.  

5. The City will require compliance with the latest “National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) General Permit for Strom Water Discharges 
Associated with Construction and Land Disturbance Activities” as ordered by the 
State Water Resources Control Board. 

6. The City will require compliance with “NPDES General Permit and Waste Discharge 
Requirements for Storm Water Discharges from Small Municipal Separate Storm 
Sewer Systems (Order) Order No. 2013-+0001-DWQ” Section E.12 “Post 
Construction Storm Water Management Program”. 

 
Prior to the issuance of building permits. 
 
1. Applicable construction plans, calculations, specifications, applications, forms, etc. 

shall be submitted to the Building Division for review prior to the start of any 
construction activities requiring a building permit. All applicable plan review and 
impact fees shall be paid at time of submittal.  

2. Landscape plans shall be approved by the Parks and Trees Department. 

I. Parking lots shall meet the 50% shade factor prior to occupancy in 
accordance with City Code §17.12.050. 

II. Landscaping shall be installed and maintained around the trash enclosure to 
ensure sufficient screening from 3rd Street. 

III. Landscaping shall show compliance with the Model Water Efficient 
Landscape Ordinance (MWELO). 

3. Pursuant to City Code §17.12.050, the property owner or responsible party shall 
submit landscape plans prepared by a landscape architect registered with the State 
of California or a landscape contractor pursuant to Section 7027.5 of the Business 
and Professions Code. No building permits shall be issued for the site until all 
required landscaping and automatic irrigation plans have been approved, including 
for the landscaping to be installed in the public right-of-way and along the side 
access road. 

134

Item 2.



6 

 

4. The building plans shall include an architecturally compatible method of screening 
any roof mounted HVAC system, or if the units are placed on the ground, the unit 
shall be screened by landscaping or a decorative fence. 

5. Vehicular entrances along 3rd Street shall not exceed 30-feet in width. 

6. A solid decorative block wall with a minimum height of 6 feet shall be provided along 
the eastern property line. This block wall shall be constructed using split face CMU 
block or equivalent material. 

7. A roof cover shall be provided for the trash enclosure. 

Prior to and during construction. 
 
1. All new utilities shall be placed underground. 

2. The developer will be responsible for the cost of all water improvements (meters, 
boxes, valves, lines, backflow devices, etc.), which are required to meet TWSD 
service improvement standards.  The cost of all fire lines and hydrants shall also be 
the developer’s responsibility. 

Prior to occupancy. 
 
1. Knox Box access shall be provided as appropriate. 

2. Pursuant to Section 17.12.050(L), the property owner shall enter into a written 
agreement for the installation and maintenance of landscaping. The agreement shall 
be in a form approved by the City Attorney and Zoning Administrator and suitable for 
recordation with the Butte County Recorder. 

3. All landscaping shall be installed in conformance with the approved landscape plans. 

4. Existing landscaped areas on-site shall be repaired and refreshed where needed 
and if disturbed by construction activity. 

5. A refuse collection enclosure shall be provided in accordance with City Code 
17.12.110. The refuse area shall be covered and large enough to provide adequate 
storage for solid waste and recyclable materials generated by the development. In 
addition, a roof cover shall be provided for the enclosure.  

6. Frontage improvements shall be provided where not currently provided and replaced 

where not compliant with ADA requirements or City standards, as determined by the 

Director of Public Works or designee. 

7. Pursuant to Section 17.08.135, the project shall install public art on the project site in 
a public place as approved by the City Council. The cost of the public art must be 
equal to at least one percent (1%) of the estimated construction costs. The 
developer has the option to opt out of this requirement and instead pay the 
equivalent in-lieu fee which shall be a one percent (1%) fee of the estimated 
construction costs. 

135

Item 2.



7 

 

 
Other. 
 
1. Under no circumstance shall vehicle queuing on the project site spillback onto the 

public right-of-way. If vehicle stacking becomes an issue, employees shall be trained 
to mitigate congestion, including through the utilization of order runners, traffic 
direction, or another method acceptable to city staff to prevent spillback onto the 
public roadway. 

2. No fuel, merchandise, food, and goods deliveries shall be made to any business on 
the subject property during the peak hours of 7:00 a.m. – 10:00 a.m., and 3:00 p.m. 
to 6:00 p.m. Monday through Friday 

3. The applicant shall submit a separate building permit application for any signage. All 
signage shall be designed and maintained according to the Oroville Sign Code.  

General Conditions. 

1. The applicants and any tenants or subsequent owners shall have a current City of 
Oroville business license and any other applicable permit/license that may be 
required as part of their business operations. 

2. The applicant and any tenants shall ascertain and comply with all requirements of 
the Butte County Environmental Health Department. 

3. The proposed use shall substantially conform to the project description and 
submitted plans for the project under file No. UP 24-04, and TRAKiT No. PL2312-
002. Minor changes may be approved administratively by the Community 
Development Director or designee upon receipt of a written request by the applicant 
or designee.  Changes deemed to be major or significant in nature shall require a 
formal application for amendment. 

4. Pursuant to Section 17.12.010, the buildings shall conform to the performance 
standards of the Oroville Municipal Code to minimize any potential negative effects 
that the buildings, structures, lighting or use could have on its surroundings, and to 
promote compatibility with surrounding uses and areas. 

5. Applicant and/or property owner will take appropriate measures to provide property 
maintenance of the building exterior, including provisions to keep the premise free of 
litter and debris.  

6. Applicant and/or property owner shall ensure adequate lighting of exterior areas, 
including parking lots, to discourage loitering outside of the buildings. 

7. Applicant and/or property owner will ensure protection of adjacent properties from 

noise, odors and undue light and glare, as well as illegal activity.  

8. Applicant and/or property owner will maintain adequate onsite security, both inside 

and outside the building, to satisfy any concerns raised by the chief of police or 

general public. Substantial camera surveillance will suffice. 

136

Item 2.



8 

 

9. All private facilities, improvements, infrastructure, systems, equipment, common 

areas, etc. shall be operated and maintained by the applicant and/or property owner 

in such a manner, and with such frequency, to ensure the public health, safety and 

general welfare. 

10. Pursuant to Section 17.12.050, landscaped areas shall be continually maintained in 

good condition and shall be kept clean and weeded and trees shall be pruned in a 

natural pattern and shall not be topped or pollarded. Maintenance shall include but 

not be limited to: 

I. Cultivation of planting beds and mowing to maintain grassy areas. 

II.  Pruning of plants as necessary to control and direct growth. 

III. Replacement of dead or unhealthy plant material in accordance with the 
approved landscaping plan. 

IV. Fertilization as needed to ensure proper plant growth. 

V. Repair or replacement of irrigation system components and irrigation 
drainage components, as needed, to maintain the system in good working 
condition. 

11. Applicant shall monitor occupancy and will institute controls to limit the number of 
patrons both inside of the building and outside of the building. 

12. The project shall comply with the City’s noise ordinance as found in the OMC 
Chapter 9.20.  

13. The applicant shall ascertain and comply with the requirements of all City, County, 
State, Federal, and other local agencies as applicable to the proposed project. 

14. Pursuant to Section 17.48.010(F) of the City Code, the Planning Commission, upon 
its own motion, may modify or revoke any use permit that has been granted 
pursuant to the provisions of this section upon finding any of the following, based on 
substantial evidence:  

I. Any of the conditions of the permit have not been satisfied within 1 year after 
it was granted.  

II. Any of the terms or conditions of the permit have been violated.  

III. A law, including any requirement in the Municipal Code Chapter 17, has been 
violated in connection with the permit.  

IV. The permit was obtained by fraud.  

15. Applicant hereby certifies that any and all statements and information provided as 
part of the application are true and correct to the best of their knowledge and belief. 
Any misinformation provided, whether intentional or unintentional, that was 
considered in the issuance of this permit may be grounds for revocation. 

137

Item 2.



9 

 

16. The applicant shall hold harmless the City, its Council members, Planning 
Commissioners, officers, agents, employees, and representatives from liability for 
any award, damages, costs, and/or fees incurred by the City and/or awarded to any 
plaintiff in an action challenging the validity of this permit or any environmental or 
other documentation related to approval of this permit. Applicant further agrees to 
provide defense for the City in any such action. 

********* 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was duly introduced and passed at a 
regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Oroville held on the 22nd of 
February 2024, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSTAIN:  

ABSENT:  

ATTEST:            APPROVE:             
                                                                                                  
 
_______________________________              _______________________________ 
KAYLA REASTER, ASSISTANT CITY CLERK     CARL DURLING, CHAIRPERSON 

138

Item 2.



 

 

 

Attachment 3 

139

Item 2.



140

Item 2.



141

Item 2.



142

Item 2.



143

Item 2.



CONTINENTAL DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANTS
Civil Engineering •Land Planning & Zoning Entitlements •Building Design & Improvements •Construction Consulting

USE PERMIT NARRATIVE

City of Oroville
1735 Montgomery Street
Oroville, CA 95965

December 01, 2023

Subject: Site Revisions and Starbucks Coffee-T.l. in Existing Retail Commercial
Address: 2040 3rd Street

Email: contact@continentaldc.com •Phone: (702)347-6137, (530)405-3780 •Fax: (702)664-6237

  City of Oroville, CA 95965
APN Number: 031-161-061-000

To whom it may concern:
We respectfully submit the subject application for your consideration on behalf of owner Mr. Kulwinder S.
Lally. The existing retail building, sized approximately 4,105 Sq ft., was constructed in compliance with
previously approved Use Permit UP13-01 for three future tenants. A Drive Thru’ was proposed for the
middle tenant in Suite-B.
Starbucks Coffee is leasing Suite-A of the building to set-up Drive Thru’ coffee only. Starbucks standards
requires

- redesign of Drive thru’ to accommodate more cars,

- redesign of Trash Enclosure for larger capacity

- relocation of the Drive Thru’ window to Suite-A from Suite-B.
- switching of Storefront Window and Entrance Door of Suite-A
Proposed layout of Drive thru’ lane will accommodate 12 cars. Total of 32 25 onsite parking spaces 
are proposed, which include spaces for the Starbucks employees also. Site Plan also shows tentative 
location of 10 more cars which can wait onsite to enter Drive Thru’ during peak morning hours.
The Starbucks to operate on 24/7 with peak hours from 7 am to 10 am. Total 25 employees with max. 7 
employees per shift are anticipated to serve approximately 650 Drive thru’ customers per day.
Additionally, the proposed design complies with the current Zoning and Building codes adopted by the City
of Oroville.

We believe that the overall design will enhance the public health, safety, welfare of the surrounding area 
as well as bring consistency in objectives of the General Plan, Policies and Standards.

We hereby request for the approval of the Use Permit.

Please contact for any further assistance.

Sincerely,

Sukhlit ‘iTtSnŷ Singh
Principal Manager
702-287-0347 (Phone); tony@continentaldc.com

144

Item 2.



30'-0" W
IDE 

DRIVEW
AY

1 5 8

9

12 13

18

1920

(E) COMMERCIAL BUILDING 
4,105 SQ.FT.

(APPROVED UNDER PERMIT 
#B1404-010)

(E) GAS CANOPY
1,235 SQ.FT.

(E) CONVENIENCE STORE
1,850 SQ.FT.

(E) CAR 
WASH

900 SQ.FT.

EQ
.

EQ
.

N
EW

 C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

EX
. N

.I.
C

.

19'-8"
28'-11"

65'-3"

29
'-1

"
36

'-9
"

39
'-9

"
40

'-9
"

39
'-5

"

52'-1"

55'-7"

18'-9"

3'
-8

"

17'-1"

6'-0"
6'-0"

6'-0"
5'

-0
"

21

25

26'-4"

3
R

D
 S

T
R

E
E

T

G R A N D  A V E

9'-0" 9'-0" 9'-0" 9'-0" 9'-0" 9'-0" 8'-0" 9'-0" 9'-0"
3'-6"

20'-3"
3'-6"

28'-3"

3'-3"
12'-0"8'-1"16'-0"26'-6"19'-0"5'-2"104'-0"

2'
-9

"
12

'-0
"

1'
-0

"
41

'-1
1"

4'
-6

"
1'

-8
"

19
'-0

"
26

'-9
"

19
'-0

"

2'
-1

0"
12

'-0
"

7'
-0

"
4'

-0
"

45
'-0

"
10

'-1
"

12
'-0

"
9'

-2
"

15
'-0

"

7'
-6

"
7'

-6
"

7'
-6

"
7'

-6
"

7'
-6

"
7'

-6
"

9'
-0

"
9'

-0
"

9'
-0

"
9'

-0
"

9'-0"
9'-0"

9'-0"
9'-0"

19'-0"

30'-0" W
IDE 

DRIVEW
AY

SITE PLAN
SCALE: N.T.S. (FOR REFERENCE ONLY)

JURISDICTION:

UP-1.0

UP-2.0

UP-3.0

UP-4.0

COVER SHEET

FLOOR PLAN 

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

SITE SECTIONS FOR RTU VISIBILITY

2040 3RD STREET, 
OROVILLE, CA 95965

CITY OF OROVILLE

BUILDING CODE:                           

ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NUMBER:

PROJECT LOCATION:

PROJECT NAME:

CONTINENTAL DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANTS, INC.
P.O. BOX 1924 
WOODLAND, CA 95776
CONTACT  :-
SUKHJIT 'TONY' SINGH, PRINCIPAL MANAGER 
PHONE:- (702) 287-0347 
Email:- tony@continentaldc.com

CONTACT  :-

I.

II.

III.

IV.

V.

C
O

VE
R

 S
H

EE
T

02/15/2024

HPS
DV

UP-1.0

LALLY COMMERCIAL CENTER

CONSTRUCTION OF 4,105 SQ.FT. RETAIL BUILDING WITH THREE FUTURE TENANTS.

SUITE-A TENANT TO BE STARBUCKS WITH DRIVE THRU'. STACKING OF 12 CARS IN THE 

DRIVE THRU LANE PROPOSED.

PEAK HOUR OVERFLOW FOR UPTO 10 CARS WAITING TO ENTER THE DRIVE THRU LANE 

PROPOSED.

ONSITE PARKING FOR SUITE- B & C TENANTS PROPOSED.

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S:

CHK  BY:

TI
TL

E

PR
O

JE
C

T

DWG  BY:

DATE:
JOB :

Co
nti

ne
nta

l D
ev

elo
pm

en
t C

on
su

lta
nts

, In
c.

Ph
on

e 
(7

02
)3

47
-6

13
7;

 (5
30

)4
05

-3
78

0 
  F

AX
 (7

02
)6

64
-6

23
7

Co
nti

ne
nta

l D
ev

elo
pm

en
t C

on
su

lta
nts

, In
c.

C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
 L

an
d 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 Z
on

in
g 

En
tit

le
m

en
ts

  
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

  C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

on
su

lti
ng

 

Em
ai

l: 
C

on
ta

ct
 @

 c
on

tin
en

ta
ld

c.
co

m

La
s 

Ve
ga

s,
 N

V
W

oo
dl

an
d,

 C
A

KSL-OROVILLE

LA
LL

Y 
C

O
M

M
ER

C
IA

L 
C

EN
TE

R
20

40
 3

R
D

 S
TR

EE
T

O
R

O
VI

LL
E,

 C
A 

95
96

5

N

SITE

GRAND AVE

GRAND AVE

3R
D

 STR
EET

2N
D

 STR
EET

BL
UFF

S 
DR

H
W

Y 70
H

W
Y 70

 

USA MINI MART, INC.
1961 TAYLOR STREET
YUBA CITY, CA 95993

KULWINDER LALLY
PHONE:- (530)218-7931

TRASH 
ENCLOSURE

ELECTRIC 
TRANSFORMER

DRIVE THRU' 
WINDOW

ACCESSIBLE 
PARKING

ENTRY 
DOOR

FIRE
HYDRANT

SUITE- 'A'
FUTURE STARBUCKS T.I.

SUITE- 'B'

SUITE- 'C'

DESCRIPTION AREA (SQ.FT.) OCC. GROUP USE CONST. 
TYPE

FIRE 
SPRINKLERS STORIES

SUITE- 'A' 1,367 SQ.FT. B (SEC. 304.1)
FUTURE 

STARBUCKS 
T.I.

V-B              
(SEC. 602.5)

NO          

(SEC. 907.2.2 

& 907.2.7)

ONE 
SUITE- 'B' 1,360 SQ.FT. B/ M 

NON-SEPARATED 

(SEC. 304.1 & 309.1)

VACANT
SUITE- 'C' 1,243 SQ.FT.

ROOF ACCESS ROOM 135 SQ.FT. --

TOTAL              4,105 SQ.FT.

LEGEND
PROPERTY LINE

PARKING NUMBERING#

LANDSCAPING 

CEMENT CONCRETE PAVING

(E) BUILDING

17.0' HIGH (15.0' POLE + 2.0' BASE) SITE LIGHT POLE

NO PARKING

(E) COMMERCIAL BUILDING

LOADING ZONE

APPLICANT

PROJECT CONTACTS

CONSULTANT (DESIGN DEVELOPMENT)

PROJECT DATA

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

SHEET INDEX

VICINITY MAPVICINITY MAP
SCALE: N.T.S.

USE PERMIT
 FOR

LALLY COMMERCIAL CENTRE
 2040 3RD STREET, OROVILLE, CA 95965

APN: 031-161-061-000
GROSS PROJECT AREA: 1.03 ACRES

DISTURBED AREA: 0.45 ACRES

031-161-061-000

2022 CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE (CBC) 
2022 CALIFORNIA PLUMBING CODE (CPC)
2022 CALIFORNIA ENERGY CODE (CENC)
2022 CALIFORNIA GREEN BUILDING STANDARDS CODE (CGBSC) 
2022 CALIFORNIA MECHANICAL CODE (CMC) 
2022 CALIFORNIA ELECTRICAL CODE (CEC) 
2022 CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE (CFC)
2022 CALIFORNIA EXISTING BUILDING CODE (CEBC)

PROJECT INFORMATION

BUILDING INFORMATIONVI.

PARKING ANALYSIS (TABLE 26.13.070-1)VII.

PEAK HOUR OVERFLOW QUEUING (10 VEHICLES) 
FOR FUTURE STARBUCKS

1850/300 = 7 SPACES
(1 SPACE/ 300 SQ.FT. OF GROSS FLOOR AREA)

(E) COMMERCIAL BUILDING 4105/300 = 13.68 ≈ 14 SPACES  
(1 SPACE/ 300 SQUARE FEET OF GROSS AREA)

(E) GAS STATION 2 SPACES 
(AS REQUIRES FOR INDIVIDUAL ACCESSORY)

(E) CAR WASH 1 x 1 = 2 SPACES 
(ONE FOR EACH WASH BAY)

(E) RETAIL(C-STORE)

TOTAL 24 SPACES

PROVIDED: 24 SPACES [22(N) & 2 (E)]

B.
REQUIRED: 2 SPACES
PROPOSED: 3 SPACES [2(N) & 1(E)]

 ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACES (TABLE 11B-208.2, CBC)

(E) OUTDOOR 
STORAGE

(490 SQ.FT.) TO 
BE REMOVED

ARCHITECTURAL PLANS

CIVIL PLANS
C1.0

C1.1

C2.0

C2.1

C3.0

C4.0

C5.0

C6.0

C7.0

C7.1

C7.2

C8.0

C8.1

R-1

COVER SHEET

CONSULTANT'S NOTES

TOPOGRAPHIC SITE MAP

PROPOSED SITE PLAN

ONSITE GRADING AND DRAINAGE PLAN

SURFACE IMPROVEMENTS PLAN

AS-BUILT UTILITY PLAN

SITE SECTIONS

SITE-DETAILS

SITE-DETAILS

TRASH ENCLOSURE DETAILS

EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PLAN

EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL DETAILS

RETAINING WALL DESIGN AND DETAILS 

3

2

4

5
6

7
8

9

1

SIGNAGE SCHEDULE
DIRECTIONAL WAYFINDING 
GRAPHIC

CLEARANCE BAR

DRIVE THRU' ENTRY 
DIRECTION SIGN
DRIVE THRU' ENTRY 
WAYFINDING GRAPHIC

PRE MENU BOARD

ORDER POINT

5 PANEL MENU BOARD

EXIT DIRECTIONAL THANK 
YOU/ EXIT ONLY SIGN
DRIVE THRU' EXIT 
WAYFINDING GRAPHIC

SIGN POLE FOR FREEWAY 

10

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

(E) STORAGE CONTAINER 
(165 SQ. FT.) TO BE 

REMOVED OR 
RELOCATED ON SITE

7.0' HIGH CMU BLOCK SPLIT FACE  WALL

RELOCATED 
AIR & WATER 
PARKING

RELOCATED 
VACUUM 
SPACES

(E) PROPANE TANK

(E) TRASH 
ENCLOSURE

ACCESSIBLE PATH TO BE 
REGRADED AND RE-STRIPED IN 

COMPLIANCE WITH CHAPTER 11B

E1.0 SITE PHOTOMETRICS PLAN

LANDSCAPE PLANS
LA-1

LA-2

LA-3

LA-4

LA-5

LA-6

LA-7

PLANTING PLAN 

IRRIGATION PLAN

LANDSCAPE NOTES

LANDSCAPE DETAILS

LANDSCAPE DETAILS

LANDSCAPE DETAILS

MWELO DOCS

  
ELECTRICAL PLAN

2.0' HIGH CMU BLOCK SPLIT FACE  WALL

11 SITE VISIBILITY ZONE

11

11

145

Item 2.



F/S

MOP SINK

1 2 3 4

A

B

W1

W2

1367 SQ.FT.
SUITE- 'A' (FUTURE STARBUKS T.I.)

101 1360 SQ.FT.
SUITE- 'B'

102
1243 SQ.FT.
SUITE- 'C'

103

1
UP-3.0

2
UP-3.0

DW

49 SQ. FT.
UNFINISHED RESTROOM

49 SQ. FT.
UNFINISHED RESTROOM 124 SQ. FT.

ROOF ACCESS ROOM
42

'-0
"

32'-3" 17'-3"

12
'-8

"
9'

-8
"

2'
-0

"

31
'-6

"

5'
-0

"
1'

-6
"

12'-8" 9'-8" 2'-0" 9'-8" 2'-0" 6'-0" 2'-0" 16'-0" 2'-0" 6'-0" 2'-0" 9'-8" 2'-0" 9'-8" 12'-8"

104'-0"

12
'-8

"
9'

-8
"

2'
-0

"
17

'-8
"

33'-0"

17'-10 1/2" 4'-0" 11'-7 1/2" 15'-0"

34'-0" 33'-0"

15'-0"

17
'-8

"

3'-0" 4'-6"

7'
-0

"

3'-0"4'-6"

31
'-6

"

32'-3" 26'-0" 9'-9"

7'
-0

"

39
'-0

"

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S:

CHK  BY:

TI
TL

E

PR
O

JE
C

T

DWG  BY:

DATE:
JOB :

Co
nti

ne
nta

l D
ev

elo
pm

en
t C

on
su

lta
nts

, In
c.

Ph
on

e 
(7

02
)3

47
-6

13
7;

 (5
30

)4
05

-3
78

0 
  F

AX
 (7

02
)6

64
-6

23
7

Co
nti

ne
nta

l D
ev

elo
pm

en
t C

on
su

lta
nts

, In
c.

C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
 L

an
d 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 Z
on

in
g 

En
tit

le
m

en
ts

  
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

  C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

on
su

lti
ng

 

Em
ai

l: 
C

on
ta

ct
 @

 c
on

tin
en

ta
ld

c.
co

m

La
s 

Ve
ga

s,
 N

V
W

oo
dl

an
d,

 C
A

KSL-OROVILLE

LA
LL

Y 
C

O
M

M
ER

C
IA

L 
C

EN
TE

R
20

40
 3

R
D

 S
TR

EE
T

O
R

O
VI

LL
E,

 C
A 

95
96

5

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 F

LO
O

R
 P

LA
N

01/20/2024

ASG
DV

UP-2.0

2 x 6 EXTERIOR WOOD STUDS @ 16" O.C. WALL FINISHED WITH 
STUCCO SYSTEM OUTSIDE & FINISHED WITH GYP. BOARD INSIDE.

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"
PROPOSED FLOOR PLAN1

D#

DOOR TYPE

W#

LEGEND:

WINDOW TYPE

GROSS AREA: 4,105 SQ.FT. EXISTING WALLS

4'
-0

"

2'-0"

1'-0"

5'-0"

5'
-0

"

4'-0"

EXTERIOR DOOR LANDINGS 
& MANEUVERING 

CLEARANCE FROM FRONT 
APPROACH AS PER TABLE 

11B-404.2.4.1

QTY. WIDTH SILL HEIGHT REMARKS

1 8'-8" 2'-0" STOREFRONT

1 6'-0" 2'-0" WINDOW IN PLACE OF EXISTING DOOR

1 4'-0" 2'-8"
EXISTING DRIVE THRU' WINDOW 
(RELOCATED)

DOOR/ WINDOW SCHEDULE:
#

DW

W1

W2
2 x INTERIOR WOOD STUD WALL @ FUTURE STARBUCKS

30" x 48" CLR. 
FLOOR SPACE 

30" x 48" 

60" STARBUCKS LOGO 

6" DRIVE THRU LETTERS 
W/ GREEN FACES

60" STARBUCKS LOGO 

6" DRIVE THRU LETTERS 
W/ GREEN FACES

146

Item 2.



FINISHED FLOOR
0'-0" A.F.F

T.O. BASE
2'-0" A.F.F

T.O. WINDOW 
9'-0" A.F.F

T.O. PARAPET
19'-0" A.F.F

T.O. DOOR 
7'-0" A.F.F

T.O. ROOF 
23'-5" A.F.F

5
12

5
12

2040

SUITE-A SUITE-B SUITE-C 

FINISHED FLOOR
0'-0" A.F.F

T.O. TOP PLATE 1
12'-0" A.F.F

T.O. PARAPET 1
19'-0" A.F.F

T.O. PLATE 2
19'-6" A.F.F

T.O. ROOF 
23'-5" A.F.F

5
12 5

12

T.O. DRIVE THRU' WINDOW 
7'-7 1/2" A.F.F

SUITE-ASUITE-B SUITE-C

2'
-8

"

E
X

TE
R

IO
R

 E
LE

VA
TI

O
N

S

11/28/2023

ASG
DV

UP-3.0

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"
FRONT (SOUTH) ELEVATION1

SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"
REAR (NORTH) ELEVATION2

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
:

CHK  BY:

TI
TL

E

P
R

O
JE

C
T

DWG  BY:

DATE:
JOB :

Co
nti

ne
nta

l D
ev

elo
pm

en
t C

on
su

lta
nts

, In
c.

P
ho

ne
 (7

02
)3

47
-6

13
7;

 (5
30

)4
05

-3
78

0 
  F

A
X

 (7
02

)6
64

-6
23

7

Co
nti

ne
nta

l D
ev

elo
pm

en
t C

on
su

lta
nts

, In
c.

C
iv

il 
E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
 L

an
d 

P
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
Zo

ni
ng

 E
nt

itl
em

en
ts

  
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

  C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

on
su

lti
ng

 

E
m

ai
l: 

C
on

ta
ct

 @
 c

on
tin

en
ta

ld
c.

co
m

La
s 

Ve
ga

s,
 N

V
W

oo
dl

an
d,

 C
A

KSL-OROVILLE

LA
LL

Y 
C

O
M

M
E

R
C

IA
L 

C
E

N
TE

R
20

40
 3

R
D

 S
TR

E
E

T
O

R
O

V
IL

LE
, C

A 
95

96
5

KEYNOTES
(E) EXTERIOR TO REMAIN

BUILDING ADDRESS

STOREFRONT

WINDOW SYSTEM

DRIVE THRU' WINDOW W/ AIR CURTAIN

STONE VENEER, MATCH TO EXISTING.

WEEP SCREED, MATCH TO EXISTING. 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

2 7 6 4 3

5

1

1

1

147

Item 2.



TOP OF PARAPET
273.20

FINISHED FLOOR
254.20

SUITE A SUITE B SUITE C

5
12

5
12

RESTROOM
BEYOND

RESTROOM
BEYOND

FUTURE 
STARBUCKS - T.I.

SIDEWALK PARKING STALL ACCESS AISLE PARKING STALL
LANDSCAPING

DRIVE THRU'
LANDSCAPING

cad-block.com

cad-block.com

cad-block.comcad-block.com

cad-bloc.com
cad-bloc.com

BUILDING
LANDSCAPING

CONC. RAMP
LANDSCAPING

(E) PUBLIC 
SIDEWALK

cad-block.comcad-block.com

3RD STREET

PROPERTY LINE
(TYP.)

5'
-0

"

LINE OF SIGHT

5
12

SUITE C

5
12

LANDSCAPING
DRIVE THRU. BUILDING SIDEWALK PARKING STALL ACCESS AISLE

cad-block.com

cad-block.com

cad-bloc.com

cad-bloc.com

5'
-0

"
LINE OF SIGHT

PROPERTY LINE
(TYP.)

TOP OF PARAPET
273.20

FINISHED FLOOR
254.20

3
R

D
 S

T
R

E
E

T

G R A N D  A V E

3
R

D
 S

T
R

E
E

T

G R A N D  A V E

(E) BUILDING

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S:

CHK  BY:

TI
TL

E

PR
O

JE
C

T

DWG  BY:

DATE:
JOB :

Co
nti

ne
nta

l D
ev

elo
pm

en
t C

on
su

lta
nts

, In
c.

Ph
on

e 
(7

02
)3

47
-6

13
7;

 (5
30

)4
05

-3
78

0 
  F

AX
 (7

02
)6

64
-6

23
7

Co
nti

ne
nta

l D
ev

elo
pm

en
t C

on
su

lta
nts

, In
c.

C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
 L

an
d 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 Z
on

in
g 

En
tit

le
m

en
ts

  
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

  C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

on
su

lti
ng

 

Em
ai

l: 
C

on
ta

ct
 @

 c
on

tin
en

ta
ld

c.
co

m

La
s 

Ve
ga

s,
 N

V
W

oo
dl

an
d,

 C
A

KSL-OROVILLE

LA
LL

Y 
C

O
M

M
ER

C
IA

L 
C

EN
TE

R
20

40
 3

R
D

 S
TR

EE
T

O
R

O
VI

LL
E,

 C
A 

95
96

5

SI
TE

 S
EC

TI
O

N
S 

FO
R

 R
TU

 V
IS

IB
IL

IT
Y

02/13/2024

DV
SPK

UP-4.0

1 SITE SECTION
SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"

2 SITE SECTION
SCALE: 1/8" =1'-0"

TYP.

TYP.

2 KEY PLAN

2

1

148

Item 2.



1 5

12 13

18

N89° 54' 07"E

S0° 11' 30"E

118.12' S79° 57' 01"W

79.92'

L = 198.61',  R=970.00

215.94'

235.04'

N36° 40' 04"W

Δ = 11° 43' 53"

NO
PARKING

(E) COMMERCIAL BUILDING
4105 SQ.FT.

(PARTIALLY APPROVED UNDER PERMIT
#B1404-010)

R
AM

P
D

N

(E) GAS CANOPY
1,235 SQ.FT.

U
P

SLO
PE D

N
 8.33%

 M
AX.

RAMP
DN

RAMP
DN

3RD STREET

GRAND AVE

AC

AC

9

8

1920

(E) CONVENIENCE STORE
1,850 SQ.FT.

21

24

(E) CAR
WASH

900 SQ.FT.

REFERENCE NOTES SCHEDULE

SYMBOL BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME CONT WATER USE MATURE WIDTH QTY

TREES

SYMBOL BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE WATER USE MATURE WIDTH QTY

SHRUBS

PLANT SCHEDULE

PARKING LOT SHADE CALCULATIONS
SPECIES

MATURE
CANOPY RADIUS

(ft)

TOTAL CANOPY
AREA
(sf)

QUANTITY BY SHADE COVERAGE TOTAL SHADE
(SF)25% 50% 75% 100%

project no.

scale:

sheet title:

sheet no.

submittal: date:

checked by:drawn by:

project:

client:

No. 1
No. 2
No. 3
No. 4

24-02-003

1"=20'-0"

XX/XX/XXXX

XX/XX/XXXX

XX/XX/XXXX

02/12/2024

PBKJ

530.218.7931

YUBA CITY,
CA.  95993

1961 TAYLOR ST.

KULWINDER
LALLY

OROVILLE, CA
95965

2040 3RD ST

LALLY
COMMERCIAL

CENTER

NORTH

PLANTING
PLAN

LA-1

149

Item 2.



1 5

12 13

18

N89° 54' 07"E

S0° 11' 30"E

118.12' S79° 57' 01"W

79.92'

L = 198.61',  R=970.00

215.94'

235.04'

N36° 40' 04"W

Δ = 11° 43' 53"

NO
PARKING

(E) COMMERCIAL BUILDING
4105 SQ.FT.

(PARTIALLY APPROVED UNDER PERMIT
#B1404-010)

R
AM

P
D

N

(E) GAS CANOPY
1,235 SQ.FT.

U
P

SLO
PE D

N
 8.33%

 M
AX.

RAMP
DN

RAMP
DN

3RD STREET

GRAND AVE

AC

AC

9

8

1920

(E) CONVENIENCE STORE
1,850 SQ.FT.

21

24

(E) CAR
WASH

900 SQ.FT.

A-1

51"

A-2

16.91"

SYMBOL MANUFACTURER/MODEL/DESCRIPTION QTY ARC PSI GPM RADIUS

SYMBOL MANUFACTURER/MODEL/DESCRIPTION QTY

SYMBOL MANUFACTURER/MODEL/DESCRIPTION QTY

⁄

IRRIGATION SCHEDULE

project no.

scale:

sheet title:

sheet no.

submittal: date:

checked by:drawn by:

project:

client:

No. 1
No. 2
No. 3
No. 4

24-02-003

1"=20'-0"

XX/XX/XXXX

XX/XX/XXXX

XX/XX/XXXX

02/12/2024

PBKJ

530.218.7931

YUBA CITY,
CA.  95993

1961 TAYLOR ST.

KULWINDER
LALLY

OROVILLE, CA
95965

2040 3RD ST

LALLY
COMMERCIAL

CENTER

NORTH

IRRIGATION
PLAN

LA-2

150

Item 2.



project no.

scale:

sheet title:

sheet no.

submittal: date:

checked by:drawn by:

project:

client:

No. 1
No. 2
No. 3
No. 4

24-02-003

1"=20'-0"

XX/XX/XXXX

XX/XX/XXXX

XX/XX/XXXX

02/12/2024

PBKJ

530.218.7931

YUBA CITY,
CA.  95993

1961 TAYLOR ST.

KULWINDER
LALLY

OROVILLE, CA
95965

2040 3RD ST

LALLY
COMMERCIAL

CENTER

LANDSCAPE
NOTES

LA-3

·

·

·

·

·

GENERAL NOTES

MODEL WATER EFFICIENT LANDSCAPE
ORDINANCE REQUIREMENTS:

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

·

PLANTING NOTES IRRIGATION NOTES

PROJECT WARRANTY PERIOD

151

Item 2.



project no.

scale:

sheet title:

sheet no.

submittal: date:

checked by:drawn by:

project:

client:

No. 1
No. 2
No. 3
No. 4

24-02-003

1"=20'-0"

XX/XX/XXXX

XX/XX/XXXX

XX/XX/XXXX

02/12/2024

PBKJ

530.218.7931

YUBA CITY,
CA.  95993

1961 TAYLOR ST.

KULWINDER
LALLY

OROVILLE, CA
95965

2040 3RD ST

LALLY
COMMERCIAL

CENTER

LANDSCAPE
DETAILS

LA-4

IRRIGATION CONTROLLER-WALL MOUNT1 BACKFLOW PREVENTER2 TRENCHING3 IRRIGATION SLEEVE - TRENCH4

BACKFLOW PREVENTER CAGE5 BACKFLOW PREVENTER CAGE6

GATE VALVE7

NOT TO SCALE

FLOW

1 2 3

4 4

5 5

6

7

8

9 9

1010

7 7

7

6

11

12

MASTER VALVE - FLOW SENSOR W/ UNION

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

8

152

Item 2.



project no.

scale:

sheet title:

sheet no.

submittal: date:

checked by:drawn by:

project:

client:

No. 1
No. 2
No. 3
No. 4

24-02-003

1"=20'-0"

XX/XX/XXXX

XX/XX/XXXX

XX/XX/XXXX

02/12/2024

PBKJ

530.218.7931

YUBA CITY,
CA.  95993

1961 TAYLOR ST.

KULWINDER
LALLY

OROVILLE, CA
95965

2040 3RD ST

LALLY
COMMERCIAL

CENTER

LANDSCAPE
DETAILS

LA-5

REMOTE CONTROL VALVE - GLOBE - W/ UNION

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

1BALL VALVE2 ROOT WATERING SYSTEM PLACEMENT3

BUBBLER IN ROOT WATERING SYSTEM

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

4 REMOTE CONTROL VALVE W/ FILTER

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

16

17

18

19

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

16

17

18

19

5 DRIPLINE MANIFOLD LAYOUT6

F

DRIPLINE LAYOUT7 FLUSH VALVE - AUTOMATIC8DRIP-LINE RISER DETAIL9

153

Item 2.



project no.

scale:

sheet title:

sheet no.

submittal: date:

checked by:drawn by:

project:

client:

No. 1
No. 2
No. 3
No. 4

24-02-003

1"=20'-0"

XX/XX/XXXX

XX/XX/XXXX

XX/XX/XXXX

02/12/2024

PBKJ

530.218.7931

YUBA CITY,
CA.  95993

1961 TAYLOR ST.

KULWINDER
LALLY

OROVILLE, CA
95965

2040 3RD ST

LALLY
COMMERCIAL

CENTER

LANDSCAPE
DETAILS

LA-6

SHRUB PLANTING - AMENDED SOIL1 TREE PLANTING - PAVEMENT ADJACENT2

154

Item 2.



project no.

scale:

sheet title:

sheet no.

submittal: date:

checked by:drawn by:

project:

client:

No. 1
No. 2
No. 3
No. 4

24-02-003

1"=20'-0"

XX/XX/XXXX

XX/XX/XXXX

XX/XX/XXXX

02/12/2024

PBKJ

530.218.7931

YUBA CITY,
CA.  95993

1961 TAYLOR ST.

KULWINDER
LALLY

OROVILLE, CA
95965

2040 3RD ST

LALLY
COMMERCIAL

CENTER

MWELO
DOCS

LA-7

155

Item 2.



1.4

1.8

2.0

1.5

1.9

1.8

1.4

1.8

2.0

1.9

1.6

1.2

1.5

1.7

1.6

1.4

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.3

1.2

1.1

1.1

1.2

1.2

1.1

1.1

1.1

1.2

1.2

1.1

1.1

1.3

1.4

1.4

1.2

1.3

1.6

1.8

1.8

1.5

1.5

1.9

1.9

2.0

1.8

1.5

2.0

1.9

1.4

1.7

2.0

2.2

2.6

2.4

1.2

1.5

1.6

1.6

1.8

2.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.3

1.3

1.3

1.4

2.2

3.1

1.1

1.2

1.2

1.2

1.3

1.6

2.3

3.6

1.4

1.5

1.7

2.4

2.1

2.0

1.9

2.3

1.0

3.7

1.6
1.5
1.2

2.6
2.4
1.9

3.4
3.0
2.6

2.9
3.1

3.3
2.9

3.7
2.8

3.8
2.8

3.6
2.8

3.2
3.1

2.9
2.9

2.5
2.1

2.1
1.6

1.6
1.2

1.5
1.1

1.6
1.2

2.1
1.6

2.6
2.2

3.0
2.9

3.3
3.1

3.7
2.8

3.9
2.8

3.7
2.8

3.4
3.0

3.1
3.2

2.9
2.6

2.8
2.2

2.3
1.7

2.0
1.4

1.9
1.4

2.2
1.7

2.7
2.2

3.0
2.8

3.3
3.3

3.7
3.02.9

1.4
1.4

3.9
2.9

1.7
1.8

3.6
3.0

2.0
2.3

3.2
3.2

2.3
2.7
3.2

3.0
2.7
2.5

2.9
3.5
3.8

2.7
2.4
2.2

2.6
2.7
2.7
2.7
2.7
2.7
2.6
2.2
1.9
1.6
1.6
1.9
2.0
1.9
1.6
1.5

2.2
2.3
2.4
2.2
2.2
1.7
1.3
1.1

1.1
1.3
1.2
1.1

1.0

4.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

2.32.8

1.9
2.0

2.2
1.7
1.6
1.3
3.2

1.4
1.3
2.2
2.0
1.3
1.5

1.41.51.51.61.6
1.4

1.5
1.3

1.51.4
1.2

1.3
1.2

1.21.1
1.11.1

1.1
0.3

1.1
0.7

1.1
1.11.1

0.8
1.1

1.1
0.9

1.1
0.9

1.2
1.1

1.31.4
1.2

1.5
1.3

1.51.61.61.7

1.6
1.5
1.2
1.1
3.4

0.6
2.5
2.6
2.6
2.3
2.6
2.6
2.6
2.2
1.8
1.5
1.5
1.5
3.3

0.6
2.4

0.6
2.2

0.5
1.9

0.4
0.4
1.7

0.2
0.2

3.5

S3S3

S5

W1 W1

S5

S3

S4

Plan View
Scale - 1" = 15ft

Statistics
Description Symbol Avg Max Min Max/Min Avg/Min

DRIVE / PARKING 1.6 fc 3.7 fc 1.0 fc 3.7:1 1.6:1
DRIVE-THRU 2.5 fc 4.0 fc 1.0 fc 4.0:1 2.5:1
SIDEWALKS 1.5 fc 3.5 fc 0.2 fc 17.5:1 7.5:1
25' PERIMETER 0.0 fc 0.0 fc 0.0 fc N/A N/A

Schedule
Symbol Label Image QTY Manufacturer Catalog Description Number 

Lamps
Lamp 

Output LLF Input 
Power Polar Plot

S3

3 Lithonia Lighting DSX0 LED P5 40K 80CRI 
BLC3

D-Series Size 0 Area Luminaire P5 
Performance Package 4000K CCT 80 CRI 
Type 3 Extreme Backlight Control

1 8069 0.9 90.12

S4

1 Lithonia Lighting DSX0 LED P5 40K 80CRI 
BLC4

D-Series Size 0 Area Luminaire P5 
Performance Package 4000K CCT 80 CRI 
Type 4 Extreme Backlight Control

1 8334 0.9 90.12

S5

2 Lithonia Lighting DSX0 LED P5 40K 80CRI 
T5M

D-Series Size 0 Area Luminaire P5 
Performance Package 4000K CCT 80 CRI 
Type 5 Medium

1 11584 0.9 90.12

W1

2 Lithonia Lighting WDGE2 LED P2 40K 
80CRI T2M

WDGE2 LED WITH P2 - PERFORMANCE 
PACKAGE, 4000K, 80CRI, TYPE 2 MEDIUM 
OPTIC

1 2061 0.9 18.9815

Luminaire Locations

Label MH

S3 17.00
S4 17.00
S5 17.00
W1 12.00

Disclaimer
Photometric analyses performed by CJS Lighting are intended or informational and/or 
estimation purposes only.  Using industry-recognized software, calculations 
correspond to the information provided to CJS Lighting, and are subject to the 
limitations of the software.  Assumptions may be made for information that is not 
provided or available.  It is the responsibility of the client to verify that the input data 
is consistent with actual field conditions.  
Due to the above considerations, CJS Lighting does not guarantee that actual light 
levels measured in the field will match initial calculations, and recommend that 
drawings be submitted to a certified electrical engineer for verification.

E1.0

SI
TE

 P
HO

TO
M

ET
ER

IC
S 

PL
A

N

PHOTOMETRICS PLAN
SCALE: 1/16" = 1'-0"

1
E1.0

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S:

CHK  BY:

TI
TL

E

PR
O

JE
C

T

DWG  BY:

DATE:
JOB :

Ph
on

e 
(7

02
)3

47
-6

13
7;

 (5
30

)4
05

-3
78

0 
  F

AX
 (7

02
)6

64
-6

23
7

C
iv

il 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
 L

an
d 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 Z
on

in
g 

En
tit

le
m

en
ts

  
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

  C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

on
su

lti
ng

 

Em
ai

l: 
C

on
ta

ct
 @

 c
on

tin
en

ta
ld

c.
co

m

La
s 

Ve
ga

s,
 N

V
W

oo
dl

an
d,

 C
A

SI
TE

 P
HO

TO
M

ET
RI

CS
 P

LA
N

LA
LL

Y 
CO

M
M

ER
CI

AL
 C

EN
TE

R
OR

OV
IL

LE
, C

A 
95

96
5

BM
PJ

GEAI 24-009
02/13/2024

e
156

Item 2.



 

 

 

Attachment 4 

157

Item 2.



Meeting Date: February 8, 2024     REPORT:  PL2312-002:  Starbucks Coffee @ 3rd and Grand Ave Page 1 

AGENDA REPORT 
 
TO:   Development Review Committee 
 
FROM:  Connor Musler, Contract Planner 
 
MEETING DATE: February 8, 2024 
 
SUBJECT:  PL2312-002, Starbucks Coffee Lally Chevron Gas Station 
at 2030-2040 3rd Street (APNs 031-161-061) 

 
 
 
SUMMARY: The stated purpose of the Development Review Committee is found in §17.56 of 
the zoning code. 

 
The purpose of a development review is to permit the city’s 
development review committee (DRC) to meet and discuss, 
evaluate, and review all discretionary development applications 
(i.e., general plan amendment/rezoning, tentative subdivision 
maps, tentative parcel maps, conditional use permits, variances, 
etc.). In addition, Development Review is required for all new 
multi-family construction that requires a building permit (OMC 
17.52.020(C)).  

 
This review is for exterior modifications, drive-thru modifications, and site improvements for a 
Starbucks Coffee drive-thru establishment in an existing multi-tenant building located at 2040 3rd 
Street. Staff have reviewed the project application and drafted a set of comments. The DRC will 
now review the project proposal, provide comments, and any recommended conditions of 
approval.  
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Starbucks Coffee is proposing to occupy an existing 1,367 square-
foot tenant suite within an existing 4,105 square foot multi-tenant building located at 2040 3rd 
Street. Starbucks is proposed to be a drive-through only configuration, with room for 12 cars 
stacking in the drive-though. The project site is located on approximately 1.03 acres on the east 
side of 3rd Street, (Address: 2030-2040 3rd Street; APN: 031-161-061). The site is already 
developed with a Chevron gas station, convenience store, car wash, and the multi-tenant 
building proposed to be partially occupied by Starbucks.  
 
The multi-tenant building was originally approved by the Planning Commission on September 
23, 2013. The 2013 approval showed the drive-thru window in Suite B, which was intended to 
be occupied by Subway, and the remaining two suites for future retail users. Since the 2013 
approval, the property owner incrementally developed the site. On August 18, 2021, the 
applicant was granted an extension of their building permit (B1404-010) to allow time to final the 
shell building only. All other repairs and site improvements were agreed to be deferred to when 
tenant improvements occurred.   

158

Item 2.



Meeting Date: February 8, 2024     REPORT:  PL2312-002:  Starbucks Coffee @ 3rd and Grand Ave Page 2 

SUMMARY FACT SHEET FOR PL2312-002: Starbucks Coffee No. 3 
 
Requested Action: Review the proposed development and provide any comments or 
requested conditions of approval.  
 
Related Applications: B2307-027 (Exterior Modifications) and B2401-056 (Full 

Interior Tenant Improvement) 
 
 
Basis for Review:   City Code §17.56  
 
 
Existing Use:    Vacant multi-tenant building 
 
 
Applicant: Sukhjit “Tony” Singh, Continental Development 

Consultants Inc. 
 
 
Owner:    Kulwinder Singh Lally  
 
 
Location: 2040 3rd Street (APNs 031-161-061), Northeast corner of 3rd 

Street and Grand Ave 
 
 
Parcel Size:    +-1.03 acre(s) 
 
 
% Lot Coverage:   0.4 FAR 
 
 
Present General Plan/  Retail and Business Services (RBS) / 
Zoning Designation:   C-2 Intensive Commercial 
 
 
Surrounding Land Uses:  North:  Existing Commercial Businesses 

East: Existing Single-Family Residences 

     South:  Grand Avenue 

West: 3rd Street and State Route 70 
 
General Plan Policies: Oroville General Plan Community Design Element, Policy 

P1.1 “Require quality architectural and landscaping design 
as well as durable and efficient materials for all projects.”  

 P1.3 “Require compliance with the City of Oroville Design 
Guidelines as part of any project approval process.”  

  
City of Oroville Design Guidelines. “Promote the individual 
aesthetic and functional quality of the community as a 
whole.”  

 
 
 

159

Item 2.



Meeting Date: February 8, 2024     REPORT:  PL2312-002:  Starbucks Coffee @ 3rd and Grand Ave Page 3 

Project-specific information regarding the findings listed above: 
 
1. Features of Project Structure:  
 

A. Design, Textural, Color, and Dimensional Features: The building is already existing, and 
was constructed in accordance with the approved 2013 Use Permit. No new exterior 
modifications to the building are proposed beyond the relocation of the drive-thru window 
from Suite B to Suite A, closer to 3rd Street, and the relocation of Suite A’s tenant door. 

 
2. Parking lot and driveway design/location: The site plan indicates two driveways on 3rd 

Street, with the primary point of access via the northernmost driveway located between the 
multi-tenant building and the fueling canopy. Drive-thru access would be at the easternmost 
end of the site and loop around to the rear of the building before exiting directly out to 3rd 
Street. 

  
 Parking Issues: 32 parking stalls are proposed, with 3 handicapped accessible. Parking 

requirements for the site are broken down as follows: 
 

Use Parking Ratio Parking Required 

Multi-tenant Building 1 space for every 300 
square feet 

14 spaces 

Gas Station As required for individual 
accessory uses; minimum 
of 2 spaces 

2 spaces 

Car Wash 2 spaces for each wash bay 2 spaces 

Convenience Store 1 space for every 300 
square feet 

9 Spaces 

Total Spaces Required 27 

  
 In order to meet the minimum parking requirements, the applicant is showing 8 spaces 

under the fueling canopy at the gas pumps. However, the use of this area does not meet the 
requirements of a parking space in City Code and was similarly not permitted to be used to 
meet parking requirements under the original 2013 Use Permit. The applicant will need to 
find an alternative location on-site to provide the required parking in accordance with City 
Code requirements.  

 
 In addition, the site plan does not provide the full dimensions for the parking spaces on-site. 

The spaces shall be a minimum of 9’x19’ or 7.5’x16’ for compact spaces. The applicant shall 
provide the full dimensions for all parking spaces on the site plan or provide a standard 
detail. The compact parking stalls shall also be identified with pavement markings as 
“COMPACT”. The plans shall be modified to show the appropriate pavement marking detail.  

  
 OMC 17.12.070(N) further requires a minimum of two bicycle parking spaces to be provided 

and connected via a pedestrian walkway to the nearest building entrance. The site plan 
shows the two required bicycle parking spaces provided behind the proposed trash 
enclosure; however, no walkway is provided. The applicant will need to revise the plans to 
show the required pedestrian walkway. 

 
 Parking Lot Lighting Issues: 17-foot-tall light poles are proposed to be installed in the 

drive-thru and parking lot surrounding the multi-tenant building. The City of Oroville 
Performance Standards state that parking areas shall have a minimum lighting intensity of 1 
foot candle. City Code requires details of exterior lighting to be provided on all plans 
submitted for city review and approval. The applicant shall also provide a photometric plan 
for review and approval. Furthermore, City Code requires that all light sources include 

160

Item 2.



Meeting Date: February 8, 2024     REPORT:  PL2312-002:  Starbucks Coffee @ 3rd and Grand Ave Page 4 

appropriate shielding to minimize light spillage outside of the property. A residential property 
is located immediately to the east of the subject property and the applicant will need to verify 
how said residential property will be shielded from any excessive light spillage. 

 
 Accessibility Issues: A minimum of two handicapped accessible parking stalls are required 

in accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. Accessible spaces must be located 
on the shortest accessible route to an accessible entrance. The site plan shows two 
accessible spaces providing access to the multi-tenant building; however, no clearly 
identified accessible space is shown providing access to the existing convenience store. 
Staff reviewed the submitted T.I plans under Building Permit No. B2401-056 and noted that 
the applicant is proposing to remove the existing ADA space closest to the convenience 
store. Removal of this space will further exacerbate the ADA issues on site. In addition, all 
buildings are required to have an accessible path of travel to and from the public right-of-
way and to each facility on a site (except those connected only by a vehicular way that does 
not provide pedestrian access). The existing path of travel from the public right-of-way to the 
convenience store entrance does not appear to be adequate and is partially blocked by 
bollards, planters, and an ice machine.  

  
 As required by accessibility requirements, when work is being done on a site, up to 20% of 

construction costs must be spent on accessibility upgrades. Accessibility upgrades may be 
needed to ensure access to the convenience store complies with ADA requirements.  

 
 Driveway Issues: The driveways on the plans are shown as 36-feet wide at the 

northernmost driveway, and 35-feet at the southernmost driveway on 3rd Street. Pursuant to 
OMC 17.16.080(C)(1) and OMC 17.16.070(E)(1), vehicular entrances for drive-thru and gas 
station establishments shall not be wider than 30-feet. This was similarly a condition of 
approval of the 2013 Use Permit. The applicant will need to redesign the driveway 
approaches to be no wider than 30-feet.  

 
 Site Circulation Issues: With the exception of the remaining site improvements for multi-

tenant building, the site is nearly fully developed. As it pertains to the drive-thru access for 
Starbucks, the drive-thru entrance is located at the easternmost edge of the property, right 
next to the entrance to the existing car wash, the drive-aisle for new on-site parking, and the 
proposed trash enclosure. Furthermore, the underground fuel tanks are located directly 
underneath the primary drive aisle leading to the drive-thru entrance. Staff have concerns 
about potential congestion on site that could be further exacerbated by refuse pick-up, fuel 
and merchandise delivery, and potential future occupants of the remaining two tenant 
spaces in the multi-tenant building.  
 

161

Item 2.



Meeting Date: February 8, 2024     REPORT:  PL2312-002:  Starbucks Coffee @ 3rd and Grand Ave Page 5 

 
Figure 1: 2013 Approved Drive-Thru Configuration 
 

 
Figure 2: Proposed Drive-Thru Configuration 
 
Additionally, the proposed site plan shows five car overflow stacking in a drive aisle between 
the convenience store and car wash. The width of this drive aisle appears to be 14-16 feet 
wide, and only able to accommodate one-way traffic flow, resulting in the inability to have full 
site circulation between the north and south ends of the property. Furthermore, the City 
Engineering Standards and Fire Code requires a minimum 20-foot drive aisle width if 
designated as a fire lane. An addition to the convenience store appears to have been 
constructed between 2019 and 2021. Staff researched the permit history for this property 

162

Item 2.



Meeting Date: February 8, 2024     REPORT:  PL2312-002:  Starbucks Coffee @ 3rd and Grand Ave Page 6 

and found no record of building permits having been applied for or obtained for said 
addition. This unpermitted addition resulted in the drive aisle being reduced from 
approximately 25 feet to 16 feet. The unpermitted addition should be removed to restore the 
drive aisle to its previously provided 25 feet, which would accommodate two-way traffic flow 
and comply with fire access road width regulations. 
 
The applicant is further proposing to relocate the air pump to this rear drive aisle near the 
entrance of the car wash. The relocation of the air pump to this area would result in a drive 
aisle width of less than 9-feet when occupied by a vehicle. A 9-foot drive aisle does not 
comply with City Engineering Standards or Fire Code requirements. The air pump must be 
relocated elsewhere on-site. 
 

3. Landscaping: As required by City Code, landscaping will be required to provide 50% shade 
over the paved surfaces.  
 
Landscaping Issues: The landscape plans submitted do not match the proposed site plan. 
This includes parking lot layout, trash enclosure size, and the drive-thru location. The 
landscape plans must be updated to match the site plan layout.   

 
4. Fencing: Nonresidential development is not required to install fencing or walls along the 

property lines, unless abutting a residential district.   
 

Fencing Issues: The east side property line abuts a residential property with vehicles 
entering the drive-thru facing the residential property. The drive-thru layout now differs from 
what was initially approved in 2013 wherein the drive-thru entrance was at the north end of 
the property away from the residential property. A solid fence meeting the requirements of 
OMC 17.12.020(F) shall be provided along the east property line abutting the residential 
property to separate the two different uses. 

 
5. Design of on-site stormwater detention/retention facilities: On-site storm drainage shall 

be collected and retained/detained on-site and then transported via underground conduit to 
an approved drainage facility. The current site plan does not indicate the location of the on-
site storm drainage facility. The applicant shall show the location of on-site 
retention/detention. 
 

6. HVAC: All HVAC and other mechanical, electrical, and communications facilities must be 
screened from public view through architectural integration, fencing, landscaping, or 
combination thereof. The plans do not currently indicate where said HVAC and other 
mechanical, electrical, and communications are proposed. A roof plan and corresponding 
section drawing showing the line-of-sight from the public right-of-way shall be provided 
showing compliance with the City’s screening requirements. 

 
7. Refuse collection area: A refuse collection area must be constructed, fenced and screened 

according to City standards (OMC 17.12.110). A roof shall be provided to protect from 
environmental hazards. 

 
8. Other structures onsite: Other structures on-site include an existing gas canopy, existing 

car wash, and accessory structures. There appear to be multiple unpermitted structures, 
such as a storage shed adjacent to the existing propane tank and the aforementioned 
convenience store addition, in addition to unpermitted wall and roof mounted signs. All 
unpermitted structures and improvements must be resolved, and the full scope of work shall 
be reflected accordingly on the plans. 

 

163

Item 2.



Meeting Date: February 8, 2024     REPORT:  PL2312-002:  Starbucks Coffee @ 3rd and Grand Ave Page 7 

9. Other Comments/Issues: In accordance with OMC 17.08.135, all new nonresidential 
development projects are required to provide art in a public place equal to at least one 
percent of the estimated construction costs. Alternatively, the developer can pay an in-lieu 
fee equal to one percent of the estimated construction costs. Upon review of the original 
building permit, the developer was required to comply with the one percent Art in Public 
Places/Oroville Beautification requirement. Staff were unable to locate receipt of the one-
percent fee in the City’s permit system, nor an approved on-site art installation. As such, this 
project must now comply with the Art in Public Places/Oroville Beautification requirement.  

 

164

Item 2.



 

 

 

Attachment 5 

165

Item 2.



 1 

 

City of Oroville 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA  95965-4897    
(530) 538-2430   FAX (530) 538-2426 
www.cityoforoville.org 

        

 
RECOMMENDED ACTIONS:  

 
City staff recommends that the Planning Commission take the following actions: 

 
1. HOLD a public hearing and receive testimony on the proposed Use Permit No. 13-

06 to construct a new drive-through establishment at 2030 3rd Street (APN: 031-161-
061); and 
 

2. ADOPT the Categorical Exemption, CCR, Title 14, §15332, “In-Fill Development 
Projects” (Attachment B), as the appropriate level of environmental review in 
accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act  (CEQA) and Guidelines; 
and 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT September 23, 2013 

UP 13-06: New +4,000 sq. ft. Commercial Center (Drive-Through) - The City of Oroville 
Planning Commission will conduct a public hearing to consider a use permit to construct a new 
drive-through establishment at 2030 3rd Street (APN: 031-161-061). The property is zoned 
Intensive Commercial (C-2) with a General Plan land use designation of Retail and Business 
Services. 

APPLICANT: Kulwinder Lally 
1961 Taylor Street 
Yuba City, CA 95993 
 

LOCATION: 2030 3rd Street (APN: 031-
161-061) (Attachment A) 

GENERAL PLAN: Retail and Business Services 

ZONING: Intensive Commercial (C-2) 

FLOOD ZONE: ZONE X: Areas determined to be 
outside the 0.2% annual chance floodplain. 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:   

Categorical Exemption; In-Fill Development Projects; CCR, Title 14, §15332 

REPORT PREPARED BY: 

 

 

___________________________ 
Luis A. Topete, Associate Planner 
Planning & Development Services 

REVIEWED BY: 

 

 
___________________________ 
Donald Rust, Director 
Planning & Development Services 
 

            Donald Rust 
               DIRECTOR 

 

166

Item 2.

http://www.cityoforoville.org/


 2 

 
3. ADOPT the recommended Findings for Use Permit No. 13-06 (Attachment C); 

4. ADOPT Resolution No. P2013-22 (Attachment D); and 

5. APPROVE the Conditions of Approval for Use Permit No. 13-06 (Attachment E). 

 
SUMMARY 
 
The project applicant, Kulwinder Lally, has applied for a use permit to construct a new 
three unit +4,000 square foot commercial center with a drive-through at 2030 3rd Street, 
the same property as the existing USA Mini Mart, Inc. The development will occur at the 
north end of the property that is currently undeveloped. One of the units will be occupied 
by Subway Restaurant with the remaining units as potential retail space. The property is 
zoned Intensive Commercial (C-2) and has a General Plan land use designation of 
Retail and Business Services. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
On March 10, 2013, the Oroville Development Review Committee (DRC) reviewed this 
project for the development of a +4,000 square foot commercial building to be located on 
the vacant portion of the existing parcel at 2030 3rd Street (APN: 031-1691-061). The 
DRC was in support of the project and had the following comments: 

Planning Department 

• The parking spaces proposed during the DRC included parking spaces at the 
gas pumps, which does not meet the requirements of a parking space in the City 
Code  

• If needed, staff recommends a shared parking reduction be obtained to comply 
with City’s parking requirements 

• Elevation drawings should show proposed sign locations and size 

• Staff recommends a sign program for this project to allow the applicant more 
flexibility with the project signage 

• If a drive-thru is added, a use permit will be required 

Fire Department 

• The proposed relocation of the propane tank may be too close to the building 
and the project may require an additional fire hydrant  

• Above items will be determined after further review once the plans are submitted 

Building Department 

• Applicant will be required to comply with all City landscaping requirements, 
including but not limited to, entering into a Landscape Maintenance Agreement 

Public Works Department 

• The sidewalk  and wheel chair ramp need to be brought up to ADA 
standards, including path of travel, which may require modifications to the 
planters 

• Will need to see how the valley gutter on the back of the sidewalk will be 
brought up to meet current standards 

• Make sure trash enclosure can be easily accessed by a garbage truck 

• Driveway is cracked and may need improvements 

• Overall, main concern will be making sure the project meets all ADA 

167

Item 2.



 3 

requirements 

 
 
This project, as proposed, meets the City’s development standards as follows: 
 
ISSUES 
 
Per City Code Table 26-33.010-1, all drive-through establishments in a C-2 zone, other 
than a drive-through pharmacy, require a use permit. If not for the drive-through portion 
of this proposed commercial center, the development would be permitted by right, 
subject to a zoning clearance. 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
This action has been determined to be exempt from the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) pursuant to the California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Section 15332, “In-
Fill Development Projects.” An In-Fill Development Project exemption is applicable if the 
project meets the following conditions: (a) the project is consistent with the applicable 
general plan designation and all applicable general plan policies as well as with 
applicable zoning designation and regulations; (b) the proposed development occurs 
within city limits on a project site of no more than five acres substantially surrounded by 
urban uses; (c) the project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare or 
threatened species; (d) approval of the project would not result in any significant effects 
relating to traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality; and (e) the site can be adequately 
served by all required utilities and public services. It has been determined that the 
project meets the conditions stated above. Thus, this project is exempt from CEQA. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The total fees associated with Use Permit No. 13-06 are as follows:  
 

Item Price Tech Fee Total Paid 

Use Permit Application (Deposit) $2,822.00 $169.32 $2,991.32 Yes 

Additional Deposit (Provided/Not Required) $69.18 - $69.18 Yes 

Filing of Notice of Exemption     

Butte County Clerks Filing Fee $50.00 - $50.00 No 

Development Standard Required Proposed Conforming 

Max Height 60’ 23.5’ Yes 

Front Setback None - Yes 

Side Setback None - Yes 

Rear Setback None - Yes 

Max FAR 0.40 0.19 Yes 

Parking Requirement 
(Restaurant) 

1 space for each 
4 seats 

8 spaces 
(32 seats) 

Yes 

Parking Requirement 
(Retail/Convenience Store) 

1 space for each 
300 sq. ft. of 

gross floor area 

17 spaces 
(4,872 sq. ft.) 

Yes 

168

Item 2.



 4 

 
Pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21089, and as defined by the Fish and 
Game Code Section 711.4, fees ($50) are payable by the project applicant to file the 
Notice of Exemption with Butte County by the City of Oroville – Planning and 
Development Services Department within five working days of approval of this project by 
the Planning Commission.  
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 

 
A request for comments was prepared and circulated to the local agencies and 
surrounding property owners within 300 feet of the property (Attachment F). 
Additionally, the meeting date, time, and project description were published in the 
Oroville Mercury Register (Attachment G) and posted at City Hall.  

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A – Vicinity Map 
B – Notice of Exemption 
C – Findings 
D – Resolution No. P2013-22 
E – Conditions of Approval 
F – Property Owner Notice 
G – Newspaper Notice 
 
  

 

 

169

Item 2.



 

 1 

 

City of Oroville 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA  95965-4897    
(530) 538-2430   FAX (530) 538-2426 
www.cityoforoville.org 
 

 

 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT Thursday, February 22, 2024 

RE: Veterans Village Tentative Map Extension #1 

SUMMARY: The Oroville Planning Commission may consider extending approval of the existing 
Tentative Subdivision Map for Veterans Village at 711 Montgomery Street to April 8th, 2026 
(APN 012-064-001). 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends the following actions: 

1. Conduct a Public Hearing to consider extending the existing Subdivision Map. 

2. Approve the Map extension until April 8, 2026.  

3. Adopt Resolution No. P2024-03 extending the deadline for filing a Final Subdivision Map for 
TSM 20-02 for two years until April 8, 2026, with the stipulation that approval of the Final 
Map shall remain subject to all conditions of approval identified in the Letter of Approval 
dated, May 6, 2021.  

 

APPLICANTS: Veterans Development Housing Corporation  

LOCATION:  711 Montgomery Street (APN 
012-064-001), between 6th and 7th Avenues 

 

GENERAL PLAN: MHDR (Medium High 
Density Residential) 

ZONING: R-3 (High Density Residential) 

FLOOD ZONE: Zone X 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: A Notice of Exemption has already been adopted for 
this project. 

REPORT PREPARED BY: 

 

 

___________________________ 
Brandon Mata, Planning Intern 
Community Development Department 

REVIEWED BY: 

 

 

___________________________ 
Patrick Piatt, Assistant Director 
Community Development Director 

 
Community Development Director 

 

170

Item 3.

http://www.cityoforoville.org/


 

 2 

 

DISCUSSION  

The Veteran’s Village is a 12-unit single family residential development on 0.64 acres, 
at 711 Montgomery Street, between 6th and 7th Avenues. The zoning of the site was 
changed from Intensive Commercial (C-2) to High-Density Residential (R-3) in 2021.  

On May 4, 2021, the Oroville City council conducted a public hearing and approved 
Tentative Subdivision Map TSM 20-02, General Plan Amendment 20-03, Zoning Code 
Amendment ZC 20-04, and a Planned Development Overlay for a 12-unit Veterans 
Housing Project at 711 Montgomery Street identified as APN 012-064-001. 

The Tentative Subdivision Map will expire on April 7, 2024, unless a final map is 
submitted, or an extension is approved. Staff has identified no issues with this request, 
and is recommending a two-year extension of the map’s approval.  

FISCAL IMPACT  

None. The project is subject to all customary fees. 

 

ATTACHMENTS 
1. Application and request for map extension 
2. Map of Veteran’s Village, Master Plans, and 2021 Letter of Approval 
3. Resolution No. P2024-03 

 

 

 
 

  

171

Item 3.



 

 3 

 

 

172

Item 3.



 

 4 

 

 

173

Item 3.



174

Item 3.



2020.11.30EXHIBIT A - LOCATION MAP

MONTGOMERY STREET VETERANS HOUSING
175

Item 3.



2020.11.30EXHIBIT C - AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH

MONTGOMERY STREET VETERANS HOUSING
176

Item 3.



2020.11.30EXHIBIT E - P.U.D. MASTER PLAN

MONTGOMERY STREET VETERANS HOUSING
177

Item 3.



178

Item 3.



179

Item 3.



2020.11.30

EXISTING PROPERTY LINE

NEW PROPERTY LINES

180

Item 3.



2020.11.30
181

Item 3.



2020.11.30EXHIBIT G - FLOOR PLANS

MONTGOMERY STREET VETERANS HOUSING
DRAWING SCALE:     1/4” = 1’-0”

182

Item 3.



 

 

Montgomery Street Veterans Housing 

 

A PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 

OVERLAY 

 

 
REGULATIONS AND SUPPORTING MASTER PLAN GOVERNING THE MONTGOMERY 

STREET VETERANS HOUSING PROJECT, A PLANNED DEVELOPMENT OVERLAY 

PURSUANT TO PROVISIONS OF THE CITY OF OROVILLE MUNICIPAL CODE 

 

 

PREPARED FOR: 

 

 
 

PREPARED BY: 

 

RUSSELL, GALLAWAY ASSOCIATES, INC. 

115 Meyers St. STE 110 

Chico, CA 95928 

 

 

                                                                   

183

Item 3.



 

 

 

 

 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

 

 

 

 
PAGE 

 

LIST OF EXHIBITS AND TABLE i 

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE ii 

SHORT TITLE iii 

 

SECTION I PROPERTY OWNERSHIP & DESCRIPTION 

SECTION II PROJECT DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS 

SECTION III DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 

 

SECTION IV DEVELOPMENT COMMITMENTS 

SECTION V DEFINITIONS 

 

 

 

184

Item 3.



 

 

LIST OF EXHIBITS AND TABLES 
 

 

 
 

EXHIBIT A Location Map 

 

EXHIBIT B Boundary Map 

 

EXHIBIT C Aerial Photograph  

 

EXHIBIT D Existing Infrastructure Map 

 

EXHIBIT E PD-O Master Plan 

 

EXHIBIT F Exterior Elevations 

 

EXHIBIT G Floor Plans 

 

EXHIBIT L Landscaping Plans 

 
TABLE 1  Development Standards  

 

 

 

 

185

Item 3.



 
 

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 

 

The development of approximately 0.64 acres of property in the City of Oroville, as a Planned Development 

Overlay to be known as Montgomery Street Veterans Housing Project will be in compliance with the goals, 

objectives and policies of City of Oroville as set forth in section 17.44.030 of the Oroville Municipal Code.  The 

residential facilities of Oroville Veterans Housing Project will be consistent with the policies, land development 

regulations, and applicable comprehensive planning objectives of each of the elements of the Municipal Code for 

the following reasons: 

 

Residential Project 
 

1. The subject property is within the Downtown Historical Overlay Designation as identified on the City of 

Oroville Downtown Historic Overlay Map.  

 

2. The subject property's location in relation to existing or proposed community facilities and services permits  

 the development's residential density as required in Objective 2 of the Future Land Use Element. 

 

3. The project development is compatible and complementary to existing and future surrounding land uses as  

 required in the Municipal Code. 

 

4. Improvements are planned to be in compliance with applicable land development regulations as set forth in  

 the Municipal Code. 

 

5. The project development is planned to Low Impact Development Standards for water management in  

 accordance with City, County and State Standards. 

 

6. The projected density of 20 dwelling units per acre is a variance of the maximum density of the planning 

element of Downtown Historic Overlay section of the Municipal Code. This project will require a designation 

as Medium High Density per the City of Oroville Housing Element. 

 

7. Although exempt due to location within the Downtown Historical Overlay District, each residence shall  

 provide 2 off-street parking spaces. 

 

 

 

 

186

Item 3.



 

SHORT TITLE 
 

This Ordinance shall be known and cited as:  

"Montgomery Street Veterans Housing Planned Development Overlay Ordinance" 

  

187

Item 3.



 

SECTION I 

 

PROPERTY OWNERSHIP AND DESCRIPTION 

 

 

1.1 PURPOSE 
 

The purpose of this Section is to set forth the location and ownership of the property, and to describe the 

existing conditions of the property proposed to be developed under the project name of Oroville Veterans 

Housing Project. 

 

1.2 LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

The subject property being 0.64 acres is described as:  

Parcel # (APN) 012-064-001-000 

 

LOTS 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 AND 6, IN BLOCK 3, AS SHOWN ON THAT CERTAIN MAP ENTITLED, 

"OFFICIAL MAP OF HAMMON'S ADDITION TO THE CITY OF OROVILLE, BUTTE COUNTY, 

CALIFORNIA", WHICH MAP WAS RECORDED IN THE OFFICE OF THE RECORDER OF THE 

COUNTY OF BUTTE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, ON JUNE 5, 1907, IN BOOK 6 OF MAPS, AT 

PAGE(S) 85. 

 

1.3 PROPERTY OWNERSHIP 

The subject property is currently under the ownership of: 

City of Oroville 

 

1.4 GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY AREA 
 

APN: 012-064-001 

Site Address: 711 MONTGOMERY ST, OROVILLE CA 95965 

Municipal Code 2030: City of Oroville 

Municipal Code Zoning: City of Oroville 

Approximate Acres: 0.64 

 

1.5 ZONING 

The zoning classification of the subject property prior to the date of this approved PD-O Document was 

C-2 Commercial  

 

1.6 PHYSICAL DESCRIPTION 
 

The project site is currently vacant. It is located on Montgomery Street between 6th and 7th Avenues with 

Fir Alley along the south border. It is located near the intersection of Feather River Boulevard and 

Montgomery Street and east of the onramp to State Highway 70.  

The previous use was a motel.  

Adjacent zoning includes R-1, R-3, C-2 and C-1 

Service providers for the site are: 

• Cal Water  

• Pacific Gas and Electric 

• SCORE  

• No storm water service is adjacent to the parcel. 

 

Water Management for the proposed project is planned to be the onsite retention type. Elevation of the  

parcel is approximately 161 feet above mean sea level relatively little change in elevation across the site. 

 

 
188

Item 3.



 

1.7 PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 

The development project will create twelve (12) 2-story residential units on separate parcels for sale to US  

veterans. The units will be built in 4 phases of 3, zero lot line units. This project will require a rezone of the 

parcel to R3 to allow for Medium High Density Residential. 
 

189

Item 3.



 

SECTION II 

PROJECT DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS 
 

2.1 PURPOSE 
 

The purpose of this Section is to delineate and generally describe the project plan of development, 

relationships to applicable County ordinances, the respective land uses of the tracts included in the project, 

as well as other project relationships. 

 

2.2 GENERAL 
 

A. Regulations for development of Montgomery Street Veterans Housing Project shall be in 

accordance with the contents of this document, PD-O Planned Development Overlay Ordinance 

and other applicable sections and parts of the City of Oroville Municipal Code and General Plan in 

effect at the time of building permit application. Where these regulations fail to provide 

developmental standards then the provisions of the most similar district in the City of Oroville 

Municipal Code shall apply. 

 

B. Unless otherwise noted, the definitions of all terms shall be the same as the definitions set forth  

 in City of Oroville Municipal Code in effect at the time of building permit application. 

 

C. All conditions imposed and all graphic material presented depicting restrictions for the 

development of Montgomery Street Veterans Housing Project shall become part of the regulations 

that govern the manner in which the PD-O site may be developed. 

 

D. Unless modified, waived, or excepted by this PD-O the provisions of other Municipal Code 

requirements where applicable remain in full force and effect with respect to the development of 

the land which comprises this PD-O. 

 

E. Development permitted by the approval of this petition will be subject to a concurrency review 

under the provisions of Development Review Board at the earliest or next to occur of either final 

DRB approval, final plat approval, or building permit issuance applicable to this development. 

 

2.3. DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT PLAN AND PROPOSED LAND USES 
 

A. The project Master Plan is illustrated graphically by Exhibit "E", PD-O Master Development Plan.  

190

Item 3.



 

 

2.4. DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT DENSITY OR INTENSITY OF LAND USE 
 

 

A. A maximum of 12 residential dwelling units, single family, shall be constructed in the total project 

area. 

 

B. The gross project area is 0.64acres. The gross project density, therefore, will be a maximum of 20 

units per acre. 

 

 

2.5. RELATED PROJECT PLAN APPROVAL REQUIREMENTS 
 

A. Prior to the recording of a Record Plat, for all or part of the PD-O, final plans of all required 

improvements shall receive approval of the appropriate City of Oroville governmental agency to 

insure compliance with the PD-O Master Plan, the City of Oroville Subdivision Code and the platting 

laws of the State of California. 

 

B. Exhibit "E", PD-O Master Plan, constitutes the required PD-O Development Plan. Subsequent to or 

concurrent with PD-O approval, a Preliminary Subdivision Plat if applicable shall be submitted for 

the entire area covered by the PD-O Master Plan. Any division of property and the development of 

the land shall be in compliance with the City of Oroville Municipal Code, and the platting laws of 

the State of California. 

 

C. The provisions of the City of Oroville Municipal Code, when applicable, shall apply to the 

development of all platted tracts, or parcels of land as provided in said Division prior to the issuance 

of a building permit or other development order. 

 

D. The development of any tract or parcel approved for residential development contemplating fee 

simple ownership of land for each dwelling unit shall be required to submit and receive approval of 

a Preliminary Subdivision Plat in conformance with requirements of  the City of Oroville Municipal 

Code prior to the submittal of construction plans and a final plat for any portion of the tract or parcel. 

 

E. Appropriate instruments will be provided at the time of infrastructural improvements regarding any 

dedications and method for providing perpetual maintenance of common facilities. 

 

 
2.6. AMENDMENTS and MODIFICATIONS TO PD-O DOCUMENT 
 

Amendments may be made to the PD-O as provided in the City of Oroville Municipal Code. Minor 

modifications may be approved by the City of Oroville Planning Director. Modifications that are not 

considered minor modifications shall be approved by a zoning code amendment per Section 17.56.090. 

 

2.7 ASSOCIATION OF PROPERTY OWNERS FOR COMMON AREA MAINTENANCE 
 

Whenever the developer elects to create land area and/or recreation amenities whose ownership and 

maintenance responsibility is a common interest to all of the subsequent purchasers of property within said 

development in which the common interest is located, that developer entity shall provide appropriate legal 

instruments for the establishment of a Property Owners Association whose function shall include provisions 

for the perpetual care and maintenance of all common facilities and open space subject further to the 

provisions of the City of Oroville Municipal Code. 

 
2.8 PROJECT PHASING 
 

This project may be constructed in up to 4 phases consisting of a minimum of 25 percent of the total planned 

units in each phase.   Infrastructure construction for each phase may be included in that phase.

191

Item 3.



 

SECTION III 

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 

3.1. PURPOSE 
 

The purpose of this Section is to identify specific development standards for areas designated on Exhibit 

"E".  

 

3.2. MAXIMUM DWELLING UNITS 
 

The maximum number of dwelling units allowed within the PD-O shall be 12. 

 

3.3. USES PERMITTED 
 

No building or structure, or part thereof, shall be erected, altered, or used, or land used, in whole or part, 

for other than the following: 

 

A. Principal Uses: 

 

(1) Single Family Dwelling Unit 

 

(2) Single Family Attached (No dwelling unit above another) Dwelling Units. 

 

B. Accessory Uses: 

 

(1) Customary accessory uses and structures, including private garages. 

 

3.4. DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS (See Table 1) 

 

A. GENERAL: All yards, setbacks, etc.  shall be in relation to the individual parcel boundaries, 

except as otherwise provided (See Table 1 of Development Standards) 

 

B. MINIMUM LOT AREA: 1800 square feet. 

 

C. MINIMUM LOT WIDTH: (See Table 1) 

 

(1) Corner Lots – 28 feet 

 

(2) Interior Lots- 18 feet 

 

D. MINIMUM YARDS: (Waterfront and non-waterfront) (See Table 1) 

 

(1) Front Yard – 0 feet 

 

(2) Side Yard – 0 feet 

 

(3) Rear Yard – 5 feet 

 

C. MINIMUM FLOOR AREA:  1000 square feet (for various size bedroom units) 
 

D. OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING REQUIREMENTS 
 

As required by 17.12.070 of the City of Oroville Municipal Code in effect at the time of building 

192

Item 3.



 

permit application. 

 

E. MAXIMUM HEIGHT: (See Table 1) 

 

(1) Principal Structure – 35 feet and 3 stories  

(2) Accessory Structure - 20 feet and 1stories above the minimum base flood elevation 

 

 

Development Standards for Residential Areas: 

Table 1 - PD-O Development Standards 

  Minimum Maximum 

Lot Standards    

Width 18' 40' 

Length 100' 150' 

Density - 20 units/acre 

Building Standards   

Setbacks     

  Exterior - 30' 

  Interior, Side 0' 8' 

  Interior, Rear 5' 30' 

Height - 35' 

Stories - 3 

193

Item 3.



 

SECTION IV 

DEVELOPMENT COMMITMENTS 

7.1 PURPOSE 
 

The purpose of this Section is to set forth the development commitments for the development of the project. 

 

7.2. GENERAL 
 

All facilities shall be constructed in strict accordance with Final Site Development Plans, Final Subdivision Plans 

and all applicable State and local laws, codes, and regulations applicable to this PD-O. Except where specifically 

noted or stated otherwise, the standards and specifications of Division 3.2 of the Municipal Code shall apply to this 

project even if the land within the PD-O is not to be platted. The developer, his successor and assigns shall be 

responsible for the commitments outlined in this document. 

 

The developer, his successor or assignee shall agree to follow the Master Plan and the regulations of the PD-O as 

adopted, and any other conditions or modifications as may be agreed to in the rezoning of the property. In addition, 

the developer will agree to convey to any successor or assignee in title any commitments within this agreement. 

 

7.3. PD-O MASTER PLAN 
 

A. Exhibit E of the PD-O   Master   Plan illustrates the proposed development and is conceptual in nature. 

Proposed tract, lot or land use boundaries or special land use boundaries shall not be construed to be final 

and may be varied at any subsequent approval phase such as final platting or site development plan 

application. Subject to the provisions of the City of Oroville Municipal Code amendments may be made 

from time to time. 

 

B. All necessary easements, dedications, or other instruments shall be granted to insure the continued operation 

and maintenance of all service utilities and all common areas in the project. 

 

 

7.4. SCHEDULE OF DEVELOPMENT/MONITORING REPORT AND SUNSET PROVISION 
 

A. Identify proposed start and completion dates of the project, stages of development, and area and location of 

common open space or other recreation facility if applicable to be provided at or by each stage. All PD-O's 

shall be subject to the Sunset Provisions of the City of Oroville Municipal Code. 

 

B. Monitoring Report:   An annual monitoring report shall be submitted pursuant to of the City of  

 Oroville Municipal Code. 

 
7.5 WATER MANAGEMENT 
 

The development of this PD-O Master Plan shall be subject to and governed by the following conditions: 

 

7.6 UTILITIES 
 

The development of this PD-O Master Plan shall be subject to and governed by the following conditions: 

 

7.7 ENGINEERING 
 

The development of this PD-O Master Plan shall be subject to and governed by the following conditions: 

 

194

Item 3.



 

 

7.8 ENVIRONMENTAL  
 

The development of this PD-O Master Plan shall be subject to and governed by the following conditions: 

 

7.9 OTHER INFRASTRUCTURE 
 

The development of this PD-O Master Plan shall be subject to and governed by the following conditions: 

 

7.10 SIGNS 
 

All signs shall be in accordance with of the City of Oroville Municipal Code. 

 

7.11 LANDSCAPING FOR OFF-STREET PARKING AREAS 
 

All landscaping for off-street parking areas shall be in accordance with the of the City of Oroville Municipal Code 

in effect at the time of building permit application. 

 

7.12 SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

 

There are no special conditions. 
 

 

195

Item 3.



7t
h 

AV
EN

U
E 6t

h 
AV

EN
U

E

MONTGOMERY STREET

FIR ALLEY

1

2

3

4

PROPERTY LINE

LIMIT OF WORK

EXISTING TREE

SCALE: 1"= 10'-0"

SOLAR INFLUENCE

0 10 20

W
EST

M
M

W

S T
E R

RE

I N

U

EAST
RISE

SET

DESIGN
NORTH

TRUE

NO
RTH

5

6

7

8

BOULDER

BIOSWALE

UTILITIES

CONCRETE WALKWAY/
DRIVEWAY

9
EXISTING UTILITY POLE AND
OVERHEAD LINE

CITY OF OROVILLE SIDEWALK

10

3

4

2

1

4

12 12 12 12 12 12

12

12

11

3
2 10

1

13 10

14 33

4

4

4

9

2

10

1

3

1

1 21 2

6
8

88 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8

8

5

6

4

56

6

8

6

Fi
le

 N
am

e:
 Z

:\
BF

LA
 (2

20
0-

22
99

)\
22

04
 O

ro
vi

lle
 V

et
er

an
s 

H
ou

si
ng

\2
20

4 
C

AD
\2

20
4 

C
D

s\
22

04
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

11
-2

4-
20

.d
w

g

Plot Date:  November 30,  2020 - 11:55 am

   BFLA 2020 ALL RIGHTS RESERVEDC

SHEET NUMBER

RGA PROJECT #:  20 600

BFLA  PROJECT #: 2204

PROJECT NUMBERS

NO.    DESCRIPTION

DATES

SHEET TITLE

PROJECT

PROJECT ARCHITECT:

OWNER AND APPLICANT
DEVELOPER:

LICENSE

627 BROADWAY, SUITE 220,
CHICO, CALIFORNIA 95928

PHONE: (530) 899-1130

www.BFLAdesign.com
www.facebook.com/BFLAdesign

BRIAN FIRTH
LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT, INC.

12-1-20

OROVILLE VETERANS'
HOUSING

711 MONTGOMERY
STREET

OROVILLE,
CALIFORNIA

RUSSELL GALLAWAY
ASSOCIATES INC.

115 MEYERS ST #110,
CHICO, CA 95928

PHONE: (530) 342-0302

DESCRIPTION DATE
CD SUBMITTAL

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y

NO
T F

O
R C

O
NST

RU
CTIO

N

VETERANS HOUSING
DEVELOPMENT

CORPORATION (VHDC)
153 HARTNELL AVE SUITE

200
REDDING CA 96002

L-1.0

LANDSCAPE
CONSTRUCTION

PLAN

CONSTRUCTION LEGEND
SYMBOL DESCRIPTION REMARKS DETAIL

--

--

--

--

--

--

--

--

--

TO REMAIN. RETAIN AND PROTECT. SEE TREE
PROTECTION NOTES, CIVIL ENGINEER'S PLANS.

2-1/2' TO 3' DIAMETER MOSS AND LICHEN COVERED
FIELDSTONE BOULDERS. TYPICAL SYMBOL.

SEE CIVIL ENGINEER'S PLANS FOR GRADES AND
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SHOWN FOR REFERENCE ONLY. SEE CIVIL ENGINEER'S
PLANS.

TO REMAIN. RETAIN AND PROTECT.

SHOWN FOR REFERENCE ONLY. SEE CIVIL ENGINEER'S
PLANS.

TO REMAIN. RETAIN AND PROTECT. SEE CIVIL
ENGINEER'S PLANS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

10

11 EXISTING STREET LIGHT

PERIMETER FENCING

CONSTRUCTION LEGEND (CONTINUED)
SYMBOL DESCRIPTION REMARKS DETAIL

--

--

12 EXISTING STREET TREE --

13 ROOT BARRIER
1/ L-1.1

AND
LS-1/
L-2.1

TO BE REMOVED AND DISPOSED OF OFF-SITE.

14 SOIL DECOMPACTION LS-16/
L-1.1

6 FOOT HIGH TUBULAR STEEL FENCING. PAINT: GLOSS
BLACK. MATCH FENCING ACROSS SEVENTH AVENUE
AT CAL WATER FACILITY.

TO REMAIN. RETAIN AND PROTECT.

15 STEEL HEADER LS-17/
L-1.1

16 GATE --TO MATCH 6 FOOT HIGH TUBULAR STEEL FENCING.
PAINT: GLOSS BLACK.KEYPAD  LOCKING HARDWARE
AS PER OWNER AND SHALL BE MADE ACCESSIBLE TO
THE OROVILLE FIRE DEPARTMENT.

NOTE:
SEE SHEET L-1.1 FOR
CONSTRUCTION NOTES, TREE
PROTECTION NOTES, AND
LANDSCAPE CONSTRUCTION
DETAILS.

12

12

12

12

2

1

13

14
13

14

13

14

13

14

13

14

6 14
6

1514

14
6

14

15 6

6 6

16 16

16 16 16

14
6

14

14 14 14 14 14

13

14

SITE SOIL NOTE
THE SOILS AT THIS SITE ARE KNOWN TO CONTAIN
'REGRADED MINE TAILING AND RIVER DEPOSITS'
(COMPRISED OF LARGE AND SMALL COBBLE).
CONTRACTOR SHALL TAKE INTO ACCOUNT THESE
CONDITIONS WITH REGARDS TO GRADING,
TRENCHING, AND EXCAVATION ACTIVITIES.  COBBLE
MAY ONLY BE STOCKPILED REUSED UPON WRITTEN
APPROVAL BY THE CITY'S REPRESENTATIVE. ALL
REJECTED COBBLE SHALL BE REMOVED FROM THE SITE
AND DISPOSED OF LEGALLY OFF-SITE. IMPORT SOIL
WILL BE REQUIRED TO FILL VOIDS LEFT BY THE
REMOVAL OF TREE TRUNKS AND OF COBBLE FROM
TRENCHES AND PLANTING PITS. REFER TO BOOK
FORM SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION REGARDING SOIL PREPARATION AND
TRENCH BACKFILL.

SEE SITE SOIL NOTE, THIS SHEET.

196

Item 3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXP. 06-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
#

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGNATURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RENEWAL DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE



Fi
le

 N
am

e:
 Z

:\
BF

LA
 (2

20
0-

22
99

)\
22

04
 O

ro
vi

lle
 V

et
er

an
s 

H
ou

si
ng

\2
20

4 
C

AD
\2

20
4 

C
D

s\
22

04
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

11
-2

4-
20

.d
w

g

Plot Date:  November 30,  2020 - 11:55 am

   BFLA 2020 ALL RIGHTS RESERVEDC

SHEET NUMBER

RGA PROJECT #:  20 600

BFLA  PROJECT #: 2204

PROJECT NUMBERS

NO.    DESCRIPTION

DATES

SHEET TITLE

PROJECT

PROJECT ARCHITECT:

OWNER AND APPLICANT
DEVELOPER:

LICENSE

627 BROADWAY, SUITE 220,
CHICO, CALIFORNIA 95928

PHONE: (530) 899-1130

www.BFLAdesign.com
www.facebook.com/BFLAdesign

BRIAN FIRTH
LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT, INC.

12-1-20

OROVILLE VETERANS'
HOUSING

711 MONTGOMERY
STREET

OROVILLE,
CALIFORNIA

RUSSELL GALLAWAY
ASSOCIATES INC.

115 MEYERS ST #110,
CHICO, CA 95928

PHONE: (530) 342-0302

DESCRIPTION DATE
CD SUBMITTAL

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y

NO
T F

O
R C

O
NST

RU
CTIO

N

VETERANS HOUSING
DEVELOPMENT

CORPORATION (VHDC)
153 HARTNELL AVE SUITE

200
REDDING CA 96002

THIS SIDE
TO TREE

ESTE LADO
HACIA EL

ARBOL

PATENT NO.
5,528,857
5,305,549

TREE ROOT BARRIER

UB 18-2

D790B

D638
D638

Flexural Modulus
Yield Elongation - Hinge
Yield Elongation - Wall

Tensile strength @ yield - Wall

7.44%

2.354 PSI

Rockwell Hardness r. scale - Wall

Tensile strength @ yield - Hinge

Notched Izod Impact - Wall D256A
D785A

D638
D638

2.846 PSI

7.01%
119.625 PSI
3.84 (ft-lbs)
84.4

Specified tree root barrier is a mechanical barrier and root deflector
used to prevent tree roots from damaging hardscapes and landscapes.
Assembled in 24" (609 mm) long modules to create varying lengths for
linear applications, or perimeter surround applications in varying sizes.

A. Materials
1. The contractor shall furnish and install tree root barrier as specified.

The tree root barrier shall be either product #UB 18-2 as
manufactured by DeepRoot® Green Infrastructure, LLC, 530
Washington Street, San Francisco, CA, www.deeproot.com
(800.458.7668).

2. Root barrier shall be recyclable, black, injection molded panels
with 0.75" (1.90 mm) wall thickness in modules 24" (609 mm)
long and 18" (460 mm) deep.

3. Root barrier shall be manufactured with 75% reprocessed
polypropylene with added ultraviolet inhibitors.

4. Root barrier shall be comprised of 24" (609 mm) panels. Each
panel shall have no less than four (4) Molded Integral Vertical
Root Directing Ribs of a minimum 0.060" (1.52 mm) thickness,
protruding 1/2" (12.7 mm) at 90° from interior of the barrier
panel, spaced 6" (152.4 mm) apart. (See Details A & D)

5. Root barrier shall have a Double Top Edge consisting of two
parallel, integral, horizontal ribs at the top of the panel at
0.060" (1.52 mm) thickness, 3/8" (9.53 mm) wide and 1/4" (6.35
mm) apart with the lower rib attached to the vertical Root
Directing Ribs (See Detail A).

6. Root barrier shall have a minimum of nine (9) Anti-Lift Ground
Lock Tabs consisting of integral horizontal ridges of minimum
0.060" (1.52 mm) thickness in the shape of a segment of a
circle, the 2-1/4" (57.15 mm) chord of the segment joining the
panel wall and the segment, protruding 3/8" (9.53 mm) from
the panel. The ground locks on each panel shall be about
equally spaced between each of the  vertical root directing ribs
(See Details B & D).

7. Root barrier shall have an integrated Zipper Joining System for
assembly by sliding one panel into another (See Detail C).

U.S. Patents: 5,305,549; and 5,528,857. Other Patents Pending.

ASTM Test MethodProperties Typical Value

Patented Double Top Edge for prevention of
root over-growth, extra strength, ultraviolet
protection and improved appearance.
(See Detail A)

DeepRoot® name on every panel.
U.S. Patent Nos. 5,305,549 and 5,528,857
and other patents pending

90° Root Directing Rib, integral to panel

Root Barrier Panel, 0.075" (1.90 mm) thick
75% reprocessed polypropylene

Patented  Anti-Lift Ground Lock Tabs
(See Detail B)

Rounded edges for safety and strength

DETAIL  A
DOUBLE TOP EDGE AND VERTICAL ROOT DIRECTING RIB

3/8" (9.53 mm)

0.075" (1.90mm)

0.060" (1.52 mm)

1/2" (12.7 mm)

0.060" (1.52 mm)

0.060" (1.52 mm)1/4" (6.35 mm)

Double Top Edge

Integral Vertical Root Directing Rib

DETAIL  B -
ANTI-LIFT GROUND LOCK TAB

DETAIL  C - ZIPPER JOINING SYSTEM

DETAIL  D - TREE ROOT BARRIER PANEL

2-1/4" (57.15 mm)

0.060" (1.52 mm)

3/8" (9.53 mm)

18
" (

46
0 m

m
)

6" (152 mm)
Patented Zipper Joining System

UB 18-2 Specifications
18" DeepRoot® Tree Root Barrier

24" (609 mm)

© Copyright 2014 DeepRoot Green Infrastructure, LLC

CONFIRM ALL LOCATIONS OF EXISTING UTILITIES WITHIN PROJECT SITE PRIOR
TO EXCAVATION. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE PROTECTION
AND REPAIR OF DAMAGE TO ALL EXISTING UTILITIES.

INSTALL ALL ELEMENTS PER MANUFACTURERS' SPECIFICATIONS.

CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO COORDINATE HIS WORK WITH THE WORK
OF OTHERS.
MAINTAIN ENGINEER'S DESIGNED GRADES.  IF DURING THE COURSE OF
LANDSCAPE CONSTRUCTION THE  ROUGH GRADE DESIGNED AND
ESTABLISHED BY OTHERS IS DISTURBED, IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE
LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR TO REESTABLISH THIS GRADE PER INTENT OF CIVIL
ENGINEER.  REFER TO CIVIL ENGINEER'S PLANS.

CONTRACTOR SHALL OBSERVE ALL SAFETY REGULATIONS PERTAINING TO THIS
PROJECT.
ANY CHANGES SHALL BE APPROVED BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO
CONSTRUCTION.

SEE DETAILS AND SHEET FORM SPECIFICATIONS WHEN APPLICABLE FOR
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5.  

6. 

7. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO ALLOW FOR ADEQUATE LEADTIME FOR
PRODUCT DELIVERY SO AS NOT TO IMPEDE THE PROJECT SCHEDULE.

8.

CONSTRUCTION NOTES

ROOT BARRIER 1

L-1.1

LANDSCAPE
CONSTRUCTION

DETAILS

197

Item 3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXP. 06-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
#

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGNATURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RENEWAL DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPLAN VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USECTION VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS-17

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL HEADER DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/16" X 4" SURE-LOC STEEL EDGING (OR APPROVED EQUAL). COLOR: BLACK. CUT AS REQUIRED. GRIND TO ELIMINATE SHARP EDGES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE FOR SOIL IN TURF AREA -1".

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE FOR SOIL IN HARDSCAPE AREA -3-1/2".

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE FOR SOIL IN SHRUB OR GROUNDCOVER AREA -3-1/2".

AutoCAD SHX Text
15" LONG SURE LOC STEEL STAKES. COLOR: BLACK. STAKE AT 3'-0" O.C. MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPLICE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPLICE PROFILE VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP DRESSING PER SPECIFCIATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECOMPOSED GRANITE, ROCK DUST OR PAVING IN HARDSCAPE AREA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
EQ. 3' MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EQ. 3' MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL DECOMPACTION DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS-16

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIP PLANTER SOIL IN PLACE TO DECOMPACT. 30" MINIMUM DEPTH AT MEDIAN, 12 MINIMUM DEPTH AT BACKUP LANDSCAPE). LEAVE IN PLACE. COMPACT TO 85% RELATIVE DENSITY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE MEDIAN CURB (WHERE APPLICABLE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJACENT HARDSCAPE (WHERE APPLICABLE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE. HOLD DOWN: 1/2" IN SEED, 1-1/2" IN SOD, 3-1/2" IN PLANTER OR DECOMPOSED GRANITE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
30"

AutoCAD SHX Text
FULL WIDTH MEDIAN OR PARKWAY STRIP OR AS DESCRIBED ON PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKUP LANDSCAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE OR SOUNDWALL (WHERE APPLICABLE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE ROOT CONTROL BARRIER (WHERE APPLICABLE). "DEEP ROOT CORP." OR APPROVED EQUAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAINTENANCE STRIP(WHERE APPLICABLE). 

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP DRESSING. SEE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UNOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.	COMPACT TO 85% RELATIVE DENSITY AND ALLOW FOR SETTLING.COMPACT TO 85% RELATIVE DENSITY AND ALLOW FOR SETTLING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.	CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING A SOILS ANALYSIS OF SITE SOIL FROM AN ANALYTICAL LABORATORY AND CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING A SOILS ANALYSIS OF SITE SOIL FROM AN ANALYTICAL LABORATORY AND SHALL AMEND THE SOIL PER THE LABORATORY RECOMMENDATIONS. SOIL SAMPLING SHALL BE CONDUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH LABORATORY PROTOCOL, INCLUDING PROTOCOLS REGARDING ADEQUATE SAMPLING DEPTH FOR THE INTENDED PLANTS.  THE SOIL ANALYSIS SHALL INCLUDE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.	REMOVE ALL DEBRIS, CONCRETE POUR-OVER, ASPHALT, ROAD BASE, AND ROCKS OVER 2" IN DIAMETER. REMOVE ANY REMOVE ALL DEBRIS, CONCRETE POUR-OVER, ASPHALT, ROAD BASE, AND ROCKS OVER 2" IN DIAMETER. REMOVE ANY SOIL CONTAMINATED BY BUILDING CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS SUCH AS PAINT, CONCRETE, STUCCO, ETC. AND DISPOSE OF OFF-SITE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.	CONFIRM EXACT LOCATIONS OF ALL UTILITIES PRIOR TO THE START OF WORK.CONFIRM EXACT LOCATIONS OF ALL UTILITIES PRIOR TO THE START OF WORK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.	SOIL TEXTURESOIL TEXTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.	INFILTRATION RATE DETERMINED BY LABORATORY TEST INFILTRATION RATE DETERMINED BY LABORATORY TEST OR SOIL TEXTURE INFILTRATION RATE TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.	PHPH

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.	TOTAL SOLUBLE SALTSTOTAL SOLUBLE SALTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.	SODIUMSODIUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.	ORGANIC MATTERORGANIC MATTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
G.	WATER PENETRATION OF SOIL DUE TO CHEMICAL WATER PENETRATION OF SOIL DUE TO CHEMICAL CHARACTERISTICS

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.	SOIL MACRONUTRIENTSSOIL MACRONUTRIENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.	SOIL MICRONUTRIENTSSOIL MICRONUTRIENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
J.	RECOMMENDATIONS FOR LANDSCAPES STATED IN RATES OF RECOMMENDATIONS FOR LANDSCAPES STATED IN RATES OF COMMONLY AVAILABLE AMENDMENTS (CUBIC YARDS OR WEIGHT PER 1,000 SF)

AutoCAD SHX Text
K. TEST LPT 4 FROM SUNLAND ANALYTICAL LAB OR EQUAL



328 SF 264 SF 129 SF 148 SF 179 SF 182 SF 544 SF 192 SF 189 SF

7t
h 

AV
EN

U
E 6t

h 
AV

EN
U

E

MONTGOMERY STREET

FIR ALLEY

SCALE: 1"= 10'-0"

SOLAR INFLUENCE

0 10 20

W
EST

M
M

W

S T
E R

RE

I N

U

EAST
RISE

SET

QUANTITYLATIN NAME/ COMMON NAME

TREES

SYMBOL
TREE LIST

WATER
USE

ROSA 'MEIDILAND'
RED MEIDILAND ROSE

MED

LOWDIETES BICOLOR
FORTNIGHT LILY

PYRACANTHA COCCINEA 'LOWBOY'
LOWBOY PYRACANTHA

LOW

BERBERIS THUNBERGII 'MONOMB'
CHERRY BOMB® JAPANESE BARBERRY

LOW

CISTUS PULVERULENTUS 'SUNSET'
SUNSET ROCKROSE

LOW

106

46

10

9

16

NANDINA DOMESTICA
HEAVENLY BAMBOO

LOW 32

ARCTOSTAPHYLOS 'HOWARD MCMINN'
MCMINN MANZANITA

3LOW

SHRUB LIST

KEITH DAVIES CHINESE PISTACHE
PISTACHIA CHINENSIS 'KEITH DAVIES'

5LOW

MARINA STRAWBERRY TREE
ARBUTUS 'MARINA' 8LOW

RED FLOWERING  CRAPE MYRTLE
LAGERSTROEMIA INDICA X FAURIEI 'DYNAMITE' 6LOW

QUANTITYLATIN NAME/ COMMON NAMESYMBOL WATER
USE

DESIGN
NORTH

TRUE

NO
RTH

CONTAINER
SIZE

5 GAL.

5 GAL.

5 GAL.

5 GAL.

5 GAL

5 GAL.

5 GAL

15 GAL

15 GAL

15 GAL RHAPHIOLEPIS UMBELLATA 'MINOR'
DWARF YEDDA HAWTHORN

51LOW5 GAL.

SALVIA GREGGII 'FURMAN'S RED'
FURMAN'S RED AUTUMN SAGE

57LOW5 GAL.

CONTAINER
SIZE

SHRUBS

SHRUB LIST
QUANTITYLATIN NAME/ COMMON NAMESYMBOL WATER

USE

GROUNDCOVER

LOWARCTOSTAPHYLOS UVA URSI 'WOOD'S COMPACT'
WOOD'S COMPACT MANZANITA

1 GAL.

PENNISETUM ALOPECUROIDES 'LITTLE
BUNNY'
LITTLE BUNNY DWARF FOUNTAIN GRASS

56LOW1 GAL.

CALAMAGROSTIS X ACUTIFLORA 'KARL
FOERSTER'
FOERSTER'S FEATHER REED GRASS

25LOW1 GAL.

ACHILLEA X 'MOONSHINE'
MOONSHINE YARROW

64LOW1 GAL.

LOWJUNIPERUS CONFERTA
SHORE JUNIPER

1 GAL.

BIOFILTRATION SOD
PURPLE NEEDLEGRASS (NASELLA
PULCHRA), MOLATE FESCUE (FESTUCA
RUBRA), CALIFORNIA BARLEY  (HORDEUM
CALIFORNICUM), MEADOW BARLEY
(HORDEUM BRACHYANTHERUM)

2,408 SFMEDIUMSOD

CONTAINER
SIZE

SHRUBS

Fi
le

 N
am

e:
 Z

:\
BF

LA
 (2

20
0-

22
99

)\
22

04
 O

ro
vi

lle
 V

et
er

an
s 

H
ou

si
ng

\2
20

4 
C

AD
\2

20
4 

C
D

s\
22

04
 P

la
nt

in
g 

11
-2

4-
20

.d
w

g

Plot Date:  November 30,  2020 - 11:56 am

   BFLA 2020 ALL RIGHTS RESERVEDC

SHEET NUMBER

RGA PROJECT #:  20 600

BFLA  PROJECT #: 2204

PROJECT NUMBERS

NO.    DESCRIPTION

DATES

SHEET TITLE

PROJECT

PROJECT ARCHITECT:

OWNER AND APPLICANT
DEVELOPER:

LICENSE

627 BROADWAY, SUITE 220,
CHICO, CALIFORNIA 95928

PHONE: (530) 899-1130

www.BFLAdesign.com
www.facebook.com/BFLAdesign

BRIAN FIRTH
LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT, INC.

12-1-20

OROVILLE VETERANS'
HOUSING

711 MONTGOMERY
STREET

OROVILLE,
CALIFORNIA

RUSSELL GALLAWAY
ASSOCIATES INC.

115 MEYERS ST #110,
CHICO, CA 95928

PHONE: (530) 342-0302

DESCRIPTION DATE
CD SUBMITTAL

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y

NO
T F

O
R C

O
NST

RU
CTIO

N

VETERANS HOUSING
DEVELOPMENT

CORPORATION (VHDC)
153 HARTNELL AVE SUITE

200
REDDING CA 96002

L-2.0

LANDSCAPE
PLANTING

PLANDETAIL

LS-6/ L-2.1

SEE L-2.1

LS-6/ L-2.1

LS-6/ L-2.1

LS-6/ L-2.1.
PLANT @ 49"

OC.
LS-6/ L-2.1.

PLANT @ 60"
OC.

DETAIL

LS-6/ L-2.1

LS-6/ L-2.1

LS-6/ L-2.1

LS-6/ L-2.1

LS-6/ L-2.1

LS-6/ L-2.1

LS-6/ L-2.1

LS-6/ L-2.1

LS-6/ L-2.1

DETAIL

LS-1/ L-2.1

NOTE:
SEE SHEET L-2.1 FOR
PLANTING
SPECIFICATIONS,
PLANTING NOTES,
MODEL WATER
EFFICIENT LANDSCAPE
ORDINANCE (MWELO)
SOILS MANAGEMENT
REPORT NOTE, SOIL
REPORT NOTE,
LANDSCAPE AND
SHADE CALCULATIONS
AND LANDSCAPE
PLANTING DETAILS.

1,657 SF
(@ 110)

1,716 SF
(@75)

LS-1/ L-2.1
(ON SITE

TREES
ONLY-
STREET

TREES PER
OROVILLE)

NOTE: TREES IN PARKWAY STRIPS SHALL BE PLANTED PER
CITY OF OROVILLE STANDARD FOR STREET TREE
DETAILS (MS-06), SHEET L-2.1.

LS-1/ L-2.1
(ON SITE

TREES
ONLY-
STREET

TREES PER
OROVILLE)

198

Item 3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXP. 06-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
#

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGNATURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RENEWAL DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE



Fi
le

 N
am

e:
 Z

:\
BF

LA
 (2

20
0-

22
99

)\
22

04
 O

ro
vi

lle
 V

et
er

an
s 

H
ou

si
ng

\2
20

4 
C

AD
\2

20
4 

C
D

s\
22

04
 P

la
nt

in
g 

11
-2

4-
20

.d
w

g

Plot Date:  November 30,  2020 - 11:57 am

   BFLA 2020 ALL RIGHTS RESERVEDC

SHEET NUMBER

RGA PROJECT #:  20 600

BFLA  PROJECT #: 2204

PROJECT NUMBERS

NO.    DESCRIPTION

DATES

SHEET TITLE

PROJECT

PROJECT ARCHITECT:

OWNER AND APPLICANT
DEVELOPER:

LICENSE

627 BROADWAY, SUITE 220,
CHICO, CALIFORNIA 95928

PHONE: (530) 899-1130

www.BFLAdesign.com
www.facebook.com/BFLAdesign

BRIAN FIRTH
LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT, INC.

12-1-20

OROVILLE VETERANS'
HOUSING

711 MONTGOMERY
STREET

OROVILLE,
CALIFORNIA

RUSSELL GALLAWAY
ASSOCIATES INC.

115 MEYERS ST #110,
CHICO, CA 95928

PHONE: (530) 342-0302

DESCRIPTION DATE
CD SUBMITTAL

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y

NO
T F

O
R C

O
NST

RU
CTIO

N

VETERANS HOUSING
DEVELOPMENT

CORPORATION (VHDC)
153 HARTNELL AVE SUITE

200
REDDING CA 96002

L-2.1

LANDSCAPE
PLANTING
DETAILS

PLANT 

- PLANT HOLES SHALL BE EXCAVATED TO DIMENSIONS SHOWN ON PLAN.  PLACE PLANT IN
CENTER OF HOLE AND SLIGHTLY ABOVE FINISH GRADE.  BACKFILL PLANT WITH ONE PART  0
TO 1/4 INCH FIR BARK MULCH, THREE PARTS NATIVE SOIL, SINGLE SUPERPHOSPHATE,
GROW POWER AND AGRIFORM FERTILIZER TABLETS ALL AS PER MANUFACTURER'S
RECOMMENDATIONS. WATER THOROUGHLY TO SETTLE BACKFILL AROUND SOIL BALL.  ALL
HEDGEROW PLANTINGS  SHALL BE PLANTED IN A STRAIGHT ROW.  GROUND COVERS SHALL
BE PLANTED BASED ON  TRIANGULAR SPACING UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN ON PLAN.
STAKE ALL STANDARD TREES AS PER DETAIL WITH 2 INCH DIAMETER POLES.

 - THE CONTRACTOR SHALL APPLY PRE-EMERGENT FERTILIZER TO ALL SHRUB AREAS WITHIN 4
DAYS AFTER COMPLETION OF PLANTING OF GIVEN AREA AND PRIOR TO THE PLACEMENT
OF MULCH TOP DRESSING, THE PLANTING AREAS SHALL BE FREE FROM EXISTING WEED
GROWTH.  APPLY AS PER MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS. DO NOT APPLY
PRE-EMERGENT TO HYDROSEEDED AREAS

- APPLY A UNIFORM 3 INCH LAYER OF 3/4" BROWN LAVA ROCK  TO ALL SHRUB  AREAS.
ALLOW FOR SETTLING.

 - AFTER ALL PLANTING OPERATIONS HAVE BEEN COMPLETED REMOVE ALL TRASH, EXCESS
SOIL AND RUBBISH FROM SITE.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL LEAVE THE SITE BROOM CLEAN
AND SHALL WASH DOWN ALL PAVED AREAS LEAVING THE SITE IN A CLEAN CONDITION
ACCEPTABLE TO THE OWNER.

 - THE CONTRACTOR SHALL GUARANTEE ALL PLANT MATERIAL FOR A PERIOD OF 120 DAYS
COMMENCING FROM PROJECT COMPLETION.  ALL PLANTS THAT DIE OR ARE IN A
DECLINING CONDITION SHALL BE REPLACED AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER.
ALL PLANT  REPLACEMENTS SHALL BE MADE WITHIN 15 DAYS OF WRITTEN NOTIFICATION.
PROVIDE 60 DAY MAINTENANCE PERIOD AT OPTION OF THE OWNER.

1.

3.

4.

2.

PLANTING NOTES

GUARANTEE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BID AND INSTALL LANDSCAPE PER THESE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS,
UNLESS GIVEN FURTHER WRITTEN INSTRUCTIONS OR REVISED PLANS PER OWNER OR LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT.  WORK INCLUDES BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO ALL LABOR, EQUIPMENT, AND MATERIALS
NECESSARY TO COMPLETE THE WORK.

ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE OF THE SPECIES, VARIETY, SIZE AND CONDITION SPECIFIED ON
THE PLANS.  ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE HEALTHY, FREE OF DISEASE AND PESTS, AND NOT
ROOT BOUND.  ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL CONFORM TO AMERICAN NURSERY STANDARDS
ANSI Z60.1-1990.  ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE SUBJECT TO THE APPROVAL OF THE PROJECT
REPRESENTATIVE.  IN THE EVENT THAT ANY PLANT MATERIAL IS REJECTED IT SHALL BE  REMOVED
FROM SITE AND REPLACED WITH SUITABLE PLANT MATERIAL.  WHERE PLANTING SPACINGS ARE
INDICATED ON THE PLAN THE CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO PROVIDE AS MANY PLANTS
ON THE PLAN AS ARE REQUIRED BY THE SPACING INDICATED ON THE PLANS.   CONTRACTOR TO
VERIFY ALL PLANT QUANTITIES.

ELIMINATE ALL UNEVEN AREAS AND LOW SPOTS.  REMOVE ALL DEBRIS, ROOTS, STONES, SOIL
CLODS, ETC.  REMOVE ANY SOIL CONTAMINATED BY BUILDING CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS SUCH
AS  PAINT, CONCRETE, STUCCO, ETC.  THE FINISH GRADE OF ALL SHRUB AND GROUND COVER
AREAS SHALL BE 3-1/2 INCHES BELOW ADJACENT WALKS, CURBS, HARDSCAPE.  ALL TURF AREAS
SHALL BE 1 INCH BELOW.
MAINTAIN ENGINEER'S DESIGNED GRADES AND AND EXTENTS OF MOUNDING.  IF DURING THE
COURSE OF LANDSCAPE CONSTRUCTION THE  ROUGH GRADE DESIGNED AND ESTABLISHED BY
OTHERS IS DISTURBED, IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR TO
REESTABLISH THIS GRADE PER INTENT OF CIVIL ENGINEER.  REFER TO CIVIL ENGINEER'S PLANS.

6.

7.

8.

9.

TOP DRESSING

CLEAN-UP

POST PLANTING
WEED CONTROL

3.

4. PLANTING

FINISH GRADING

1.

2. PLANT MATERIAL

GENERAL

PLANT SPECIFICATIONS

PLANT MATERIALS SHALL BE BID ON THE BASIS OF SPECIES AND CONTAINER SIZE, NOT ON CONTAINER SIZE ALONE.

VERIFY EXACT LOCATION OF ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

PLANT QUANTITIES ARE FOR CONVENIENCE OF THE CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR TO CONFIRM EXACT NUMBER.

REFER TO PLANS, DETAILS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

IN ORDER TO REDUCE RUNOFF AND ENCOURAGE HEALTHY PLANT GROWTH, A SOIL MANAGEMENT REPORT SHALL
BE COMPLETED BY THE PROJECT APPLICANT, OR HIS/HER DESIGNEE, AS FOLLOWS:
SUBMIT SOIL SAMPLES TO A LABORATORY FOR ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATIONS (SUNLAND ANALYTICS OR
EQUAL- PHONE: 916-852-8557).
SOIL SAMPLING SHALL BE CONDUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH LABORATORY PROTOCOL, INCLUDING PROTOCOLS
REGARDING ADEQUATE SAMPLING DEPTH FOR THE INTENDED PLANTS.
THE SOIL ANALYSIS SHALL INCLUDE:
SOIL TEXTURE;
INFILTRATION RATE DETERMINED BY LABORATORY TEST OR SOIL TEXTURE INFILTRATION RATE TABLE;
PH;
TOTAL SOLUBLE SALTS;
SODIUM;
PERCENT ORGANIC MATTER; AND
RECOMMENDATIONS.
IN PROJECTS WITH MULTIPLE LANDSCAPE INSTALLATIONS (I.E. PRODUCTION HOME DEVELOPMENTS) A SOIL
SAMPLING RATE OF 1 IN 7 LOTS OR APPROXIMATELY 15% WILL SATISFY THIS REQUIREMENT. LARGE LANDSCAPE
PROJECTS SHALL SAMPLE AT A RATE EQUIVALENT TO 1 IN 7 LOTS.

THE PROJECT APPLICANT, OR HIS/HER DESIGNEE, SHALL COMPLY WITH ONE OF THE FOLLOWING:
IF SIGNIFICANT MASS GRADING IS NOT PLANNED, THE SOIL ANALYSIS REPORT SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE LOCAL
AGENCY AS PART OF THE LANDSCAPE DOCUMENTATION PACKAGE; OR
IF SIGNIFICANT MASS GRADING IS PLANNED, THE SOIL ANALYSIS REPORT SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE LOCAL
AGENCY AS PART OF THE CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION.
THE SOIL ANALYSIS REPORT SHALL BE MADE AVAILABLE, IN A TIMELY MANNER, TO THE PROFESSIONALS PREPARING
THE LANDSCAPE DESIGN PLANS AND IRRIGATION DESIGN PLANS TO MAKE ANY NECESSARY ADJUSTMENTS TO THE
DESIGN PLANS.
THE PROJECT APPLICANT, OR HIS/HER DESIGNEE, SHALL SUBMIT DOCUMENTATION VERIFYING IMPLEMENTATION OF
SOIL ANALYSIS REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE LOCAL AGENCY WITH CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION.

MODEL WATER EFFICIENT LANDSCAPE
ORDINANCE (MWELO) SOILS
MANAGEMENT REPORT NOTE

THE PROJECT LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING SOILS ANALYSIS OF  LANSCAPE SOIL FOR
PLANTING AREAS FROM AN ANALYTICAL LABORATORY AND AMENDING THE LANDSCAPE  SOIL AS PER THE
ANALYTICAL LABORATORY'S  RECOMMENDATIONS FOR LANDSCAPES STATED IN RATES OF COMMONLY AVAILABLE
AMENDMENTS (CUBIC YARDS OR WEIGHT PER 1,000 SF).  SOILS TEST SHALL BE SUNLAND ANALYICAL (916-852-8557
)LANDSCAPE PACKAGE LTP.4 OR APPROVED EQUAL.

SOIL REPORT NOTE

SHADE CALCULATIONS

SHADE AREA PROVIDED (SEE SHEET 2)

DESCRIPTION

TOTAL DRIVEWAY AREA

LANDSCAPE ADJACENT TO DRIVEWAYS

DESCRIPTION
TOTAL DRIVEWAY AREA

TREE SHADE AREA PROVIDED OVER DRIVEWAYS 54.4%2,155 SF

PERCENT

AREA

3,960 SF

2,347 SF

PERCENT

59%

DRIVEWAY LANDSCAPE

TOTAL
3,960 SF

124 SF

SYMBOL

DESCRIPTION

GROSS PARCEL AREA

TOTAL LANDSCAPE AREA

AREA

28,619 SF

PERCENT

39.6%

LANDSCAPE AREA

11,336 SF

199

Item 3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXP. 06-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
#

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGNATURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RENEWAL DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USECTION VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPLAN VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEEP ROOT ARBOR TIE (OR APPROVED EQUAL). STAPLE OR SCREW TO TREE STAKES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'L X 2" DIAM. UNTREATED LODGEPOLE STAKE. CUT OFF BELOW LOWEST LIMB. PLACE POSTS PERPENDICULAR TO PREVAILING WINDS AND OUTSIDE ROOTBALL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB AND GUTTER OR OTHER PAVING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOT CONTROL BARRIER BY "DEEP ROOT CORP." OR APPROVED EQUAL. SET AT LEVEL OF SURROUNDING PAVING OR SOIL. 10' LONG CENTERED ON TREE, 12" DEPTH (UB 12-2) NEXT TO SIDEWALKS AND 18" DEPTH (UB 18-2) NEXT TO CURBING. OFFSET ROOT BARRIER AS REQUIRED FOR LANDSCAPE IRRIGATION UTILITIES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE NURSERY SOIL IF NEEDED SO THAT FIRST ROOTS ARE VISIBLE AT TOP OF ROOTBALL. SET TOP OF ROOTBALL 1" ABOVE FINISH GRADE TO ALLOW FOR SETTLEMENT. BREAK UP SIDES OF BALL AND SPREAD OUT ROOTS. NO CIRCLING ROOTS SHALL REMAIN WITHIN 12" OF THE TREE TRUNK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL MIX PER SPECIFICATIONS. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING FERTILIZER TABLETS PER SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING HOLE SHALL BE TWICE THE DIAMETER OF THE ROOTBALL AND NO DEEPER THAN THE TREE ROOTBALL. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPTIONAL/ TEMPORARY WATER RETENTION BERM.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE NURSERY  STOCK PER SPECIFICATIONS AND ANSI Z 60.1. ALL TREES SHALL HAVE A STRONG CENTRAL LEADER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP DRESSING. SEE SPECIFCIATIONS. HOLD BACK 4" FROM TRUNK OF TREE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS-6

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTAINERIZED SHRUB PLANTING DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET TOP OF ROOTBALL 1" ABOVE FINISH GRADE SOIL TO ALLOW FOR SETTLEMENT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FERTILIZER TABLET(S) PER SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL MIXTURE PER SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHRUB ROOTBALL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING HOLE SHALL BE TWICE DIAMETER OF ROOTBALL & NO DEEPER THAN THE SHRUB ROOTBALL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USECTION VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL DECOMPACTION. SEE PLANS AND DETAIL LS-16, SHEET L-1.1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHRUB NURSERY STOCK PER ANSI Z-60.1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIFTEEN GALLON TREE PLANTING DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP DRESSING. SEE SPECIFCIATIONS. HOLD BACK 2" FROM BASE OF SHRUB.



7t
h 

AV
EN

U
E 6t

h 
AV

EN
U

E

MONTGOMERY STREET

FIR ALLEY

7t
h 

AV
EN

U
E 6t

h 
AV

EN
U

E

MONTGOMERY STREET

FIR ALLEY

C

CONTROLLER

FSABFP

BACKFLOW PREVENTER

FLOW SENSING MASTER
VALVE ASSEMBLY

WATER POINT OF
CONNECTION

RF

RAIN/ FREEZE
SENSOR

NOTE:
BACKFLOW AND FLOW

SENSING ASSEMBLY SHOWN
IN PAVING ARE DEPICTED

FOR GRAPHIC CLARITY.
INSTALL WITHIN LANDSCAPE

INSIDE PROJECT FENCING

T

T

T

T

T

T

T T T
T

T T

T

T TT T
T

T T
T T T T

T
T T T T

T TT T T T T T T T T T T

T

T
T

T T T

T

F F

F F

FF

FF

F

F

F F

T
T T T

F F

F F

F

F

F

F

F

F

F

F F

F

F

F

F

F

F

F

F

F

F
F

F
F

F
F F

F

F

F

6
1" 

MONTGOMERY
PARKWAY

STRIP
4
1" 

ROSES
OUTSIDE

OF
FENCING

3
1" 

SHRUBS
NORTH
INSIDE

FENCING

2
1" 

SHRUBS
NORTH

OF
BUILDINGS

5
1" 

7TH AVE
PARKWAY

STRIP

8
1" 

BIO-
SWALE

NOTE:
INSTALL 4 EMITTERS EQUALLY

SPACED AROUND EXISTING
TREES. TYPICAL AT ALL

EXISTING CITY STREET TREES.

NOTE:
INSTALL 4 EMITTERS EQUALLY

SPACED AROUND EXISTING
TREES. TYPICAL AT ALL

EXISTING CITY STREET TREES.

9
1" 

ALL NEW
TREES

1
1" 

SHRUBS
SOUTH

OF
BUILDUINGS

NOTE:
PIPES SHOWN IN
PAVING ARE DEPICTED
FOR GRAPHIC CLARITY
AND SHOULD BE RUN
IN ADJACENT
LANDSCAPE PLANTERS
WHENEVER POSSIBLE.

7
1" 

6TH AVE
PARKWAY

STRIP

1.843.44.04

3.6

.94

24.08

4.18 7.4

.84

2"

2"

2"

2"

2"2"

2"
2"

2"

2"

1"

1"

1"

1"

1"

1"

1"

1-1/2" 1-1/2"

1-1/2"

1-1/2"

1-1/2"

6" SLV. 3" SLV.

8" SLV.

8"
 S

LV
.

2" SLV.2" SLV.
2" SLV.

2" SLV.

2" SLV.
2" SLV.

2" SLV. 2" SLV.
2" SLV.2" SLV.

2" SLV. 2" SLV.
2" SLV.

2" SLV.

2" SLV.
2" SLV.

2" SLV.

8" SLV. 8" SLV. 8" SLV. 8" SLV. 8" SLV. 8" SLV. 8" SLV. 8" SLV. 8" SLV. 8" SLV. 8" SLV.8" SLV.

3"
 S

LV
.

8"
 S

LV
.

PB PB

PB PB

PB PB

2"

2"

2"

2" 2"

2"

2"

2"

2"

2"2"

SCALE: 1"= 10'-0"

SOLAR INFLUENCE

0 10 20

W
EST

M
M

W

S T
E R

RE

I N

U

EAST
RISE

SET

DESIGN
NORTH

TRUE

NO
RTH

Fi
le

 N
am

e:
 Z

:\
BF

LA
 (2

20
0-

22
99

)\
22

04
 O

ro
vi

lle
 V

et
er

an
s 

H
ou

si
ng

\2
20

4 
C

AD
\2

20
4 

C
D

s\
22

04
 Ir

rig
at

io
n 

11
-2

4-
20

.d
w

g

Plot Date:  November 30,  2020 - 12:07 pm

   BFLA 2020 ALL RIGHTS RESERVEDC

SHEET NUMBER

RGA PROJECT #:  20 600

BFLA  PROJECT #: 2204

PROJECT NUMBERS

NO.    DESCRIPTION

DATES

SHEET TITLE

PROJECT

PROJECT ARCHITECT:

OWNER AND APPLICANT
DEVELOPER:

LICENSE

627 BROADWAY, SUITE 220,
CHICO, CALIFORNIA 95928

PHONE: (530) 899-1130

www.BFLAdesign.com
www.facebook.com/BFLAdesign

BRIAN FIRTH
LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT, INC.

12-1-20

OROVILLE VETERANS'
HOUSING

711 MONTGOMERY
STREET

OROVILLE,
CALIFORNIA

RUSSELL GALLAWAY
ASSOCIATES INC.

115 MEYERS ST #110,
CHICO, CA 95928

PHONE: (530) 342-0302

DESCRIPTION DATE
CD SUBMITTAL

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y

NO
T F

O
R C

O
NST

RU
CTIO

N

VETERANS HOUSING
DEVELOPMENT

CORPORATION (VHDC)
153 HARTNELL AVE SUITE

200
REDDING CA 96002

L-3.0

LANDSCAPE
IRRIGATION

PLAN

ISOLATION VALVE

TIE INTO 1" DEDICATED LANDSCAPE WATER METER. SEE
CIVIL ENGINEER'S PLANS.

IRRIGATION LEGEND

BACKFLOW PREVENTER

WATER POINT OF CONNECTION

HUNTER

WILKINS

SYM. MFG'R   

HUNTER HYDRAWISE COMMERCIAL CONTROLLER

DESCRIPTION MODEL

975XL2 (LEAD FREE)

REMARKS DETAILS

BFP

C

QUICK COUPLER VALVE

1" SIZE.  INSTALL IN ENCLOSURE ON CONCRETE PAD.
PROVIDE AND INSTALL LEAD FREE PRESSURE REGULATOR
(LINE SIZE). PROVIDE AND INSTALL INSULATED BLANKET.
INSTALL PRESSURE REDUCER AT BACKFLOW PREVENTER  IN
THE EVEN THAT WATER PRESSURE EXCEEDS 70 PSI

1/
L-3.1

LS-23/
L-3.1

--

LS-28/
L-3.2

LS-29/
L-3.2

--

EXTERIOR WALL MOUNT TO BUILDING. SEE ARCHITECT'S
PLANS FOR ELECTRICAL POINT OF CONNECTION.
GROUND PER  ASIC EARTH GROUNDING GUIDELINES
100-2002.  CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBLE TO CONNECT
TO BUILDING WiFi AND HYDRAWISE CLOUD BASED
IRRIGATION MANAGEMENT SOFTWARE AND TO
PROGRAM TO COMMUNICATE WITH AT LEAST ONE
LOCAL WEATHER STATION. PROVIDE OWNER WITH ALL
ADMINISTRATIVE PASSWORDS AND PERMISSIONS.
CONTRACTOR IS ALSO RESPONSIBLE TO SET FLOW
SENSOR PARAMETERS FOR THE MASTER VALVE ASSEMBLY.

FLOW SENSING / MASTER VALVE ASSEMBLY LS-27/
L-3.1

INSTALL AS PER MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS.
CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO CONFIGURE SENSOR.

FSA HC-100-FLOW (1" SIZE) WITH ICV 101GHUNTER/
HUNTER

HUNTER

HUNTER HQ-44LRC
INSTALL A MINIMUM OF 6 FEET AWAY FROM TREE
PLANITNGS EXCEPT WHERE OTHERWISE NOTED. PROVIDE
OWNER WITH 2 COMPATIBLE KEYS PRIOR TO CLOSEOUT.

ICZ 1"-LF

NIBCO T-113-LF LINE SIZE. VALVE MUST BE LEAD FREE.

DRIP CONTROL ZONE KIT

MODEL: HPC-400
WITH PCM-300 MODULE AND PCM-900
MODULE (16 STATIONS TOTAL)

LS-31/
L-3.2

--HUNTER ICZ 101REMOTE CONTROL VALVE

HUNTER RAIN/ FREEZE SENSORRF INSTALL AS PER MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS.WRF-CLIK --

LS-26/
L-3.1

SEE SHEET L-3.1 FOR IRRIGATION
NOTES AND SPECIFICATIONS. SEE
SHEETS L-3.1, L-3.2, & L-3.3FOR
IRRIGATION DETAILS. SEE SHEET
L-3.4 FOR WATER USE
CALCULATIONS

FLUSH VALVEF INSTALL IN VALVE BOX AS PER PLANS AND DETAILS

CONTROL WIRE CHASE

VALVE #/CONTROLLER STATION

FLOW IN GALLONS PER MINUTE

NON-PRESSURE LATERAL PIPE

IRRIGATION SLEEVE 

PRESSURE MAINLINE

VALVE SIZE

IRRIGATION LEGEND
SYM. MFG'R   DESCRIPTION MODEL REMARKS DETAILS

1

28.4
1-1/2"

PVC SCHEDULE 40

PVC SCHEDULE 40

2" DIAM SCHEDULE 40 PVC CONDUIT FOR CONTROL
AND COMMON WIRES

TRANSITION TO DRIP

LS-19 &
LS-20/

L-3.1 AND
LS-21/
L-3.2

T INSTALL IN CARSON 910 VALVE BOX OR EQUAL SET
ELBOW A MINIMUM OF 1" BELOW TOP OF BOX

LS-39/
L-3.2

SYMBOLS

PULL BOX INSTALL IN CARSON 910 VALVE BOX OR EQUAL SET
ELBOW A MINIMUM OF 1" BELOW TOP OF BOX

LS-52/
L3.2

PB

CONTROLLER GROUNDING ROD OR PLATE INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS --

LS-43/
L-3.2

HUNTER

HUNTER

HUNTER

HUNTER DRIPPERLINE AT TREES

PLD-BV

PLD-075-TBTEE

#14

LANDSCAPE DRIPPERLINE WITH EMITTERSHUNTER HDL DRIPPERLINE WITH HE-10-B
EMITTERS AND HE-DIFF DIFFUSER
CAPS (APPROX 1,574 TOTAL
QUANTITY)

LS-45/
L-3.4

TWO EMITTERS PER TREE. SEE DETAIL.HEB-05 AND PLD-06-12

1 GPH (0.01 GPM) PER BUBBLER. INSTALL 2 PER SHRUB
2GPH (.03 GPM) PER SHRUB PLANTING LOCATED WITHIN
WATER RETENTION BERM. INSTALL WITH 6" STEEL "U" PINS
AT 4'-0" O.C. AND AT EACH SIDE OF PLANTINGS. SEE
DETAIL.

PAIGESPEC 182000 OR 182199IC

LS-44/
L-3.3

PVC SCHEDULE 40. SIZE PER PLAN OR AS REQUIRED. NO
LESS THAN 2" DIAMETER.

SUBSURFACE LANDSCAPE DRIPPERLINEHUNTER HDL-06-12 WITH ECO-WRAP
????/
L-3.4

INSTALL AT 6" FROM ADJACENT HARDSCAPE AND AT 12"
O.C.

200

Item 3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXP. 06-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
#

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGNATURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RENEWAL DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE



Fi
le

 N
am

e:
 Z

:\
BF

LA
 (2

20
0-

22
99

)\
22

04
 O

ro
vi

lle
 V

et
er

an
s 

H
ou

si
ng

\2
20

4 
C

AD
\2

20
4 

C
D

s\
22

04
 Ir

rig
at

io
n 

11
-2

4-
20

.d
w

g

Plot Date:  November 30,  2020 - 12:06 pm

   BFLA 2020 ALL RIGHTS RESERVEDC

SHEET NUMBER

RGA PROJECT #:  20 600

BFLA  PROJECT #: 2204

PROJECT NUMBERS

NO.    DESCRIPTION

DATES

SHEET TITLE

PROJECT

PROJECT ARCHITECT:

OWNER AND APPLICANT
DEVELOPER:

LICENSE

627 BROADWAY, SUITE 220,
CHICO, CALIFORNIA 95928

PHONE: (530) 899-1130

www.BFLAdesign.com
www.facebook.com/BFLAdesign

BRIAN FIRTH
LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT, INC.

12-1-20

OROVILLE VETERANS'
HOUSING

711 MONTGOMERY
STREET

OROVILLE,
CALIFORNIA

RUSSELL GALLAWAY
ASSOCIATES INC.

115 MEYERS ST #110,
CHICO, CA 95928

PHONE: (530) 342-0302

DESCRIPTION DATE
CD SUBMITTAL

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y

NO
T F

O
R C

O
NST

RU
CTIO

N

VETERANS HOUSING
DEVELOPMENT

CORPORATION (VHDC)
153 HARTNELL AVE SUITE

200
REDDING CA 96002

L-3.1

LANDSCAPE
IRRIGATION

DETAILS

1.         

2.        

3.      

4.       

5.        

6.         

7.        

8.         

9.

10.

11.

IRRIGATION NOTES
THIS SYSTEM IS DESIGNED TO IRRIGATE THE ENTIRE LANDSCAPE WITHIN AN EIGHT HOUR WINDOW  USING A MINIMUM DESIGN CAPACITY OF 25 GPM.  DESIGN  PRESSURE IS 55 PSI MINIMUM AT THE POINT OF CONNECTION AND 30 PSI AT THE FARTHEST IRRIGATION HEAD.  CONTACT THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT IN THE EVENT THAT FIELD TESTED  PRESSURE IS LESS THAN
STATED, PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

THE INTENT OF THIS IRRIGATION SYSTEM IS TO PROVIDE THE MINIMUM AMOUNT OF WATER REQUIRED TO SUSTAIN GOOD PLANT HEALTH. ADJUST CLOCK AS REQUIRED TO ACHIEVE THIS GOAL AS REQUIRED BY THE TIME OF YEAR.

IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE CONTRACTOR AND/OR OWNER TO PROGRAM THE IRRIGATION CONTROLLER TO PROVIDE THE MINIMUM AMOUNT OF WATER NEEDED TO SUSTAIN GOOD PLANT HEALTH.  THIS INCLUDES MAKING ADJUSTMENTS TO THE PROGRAM FOR SEASONAL CHANGES, PLANT MATERIAL, WATER REQUIREMENTS, MOUNDS
AND SLOPES, AND SUN, SHADE AND WIND EXPOSURES.

THIS DRAWING IS DIAGRAMMATIC.  IRRIGATION COMPONENTS SHOWN BENEATH PAVING OR PLANTINGS ARE FOR GRAPHIC CLARITY ONLY.  PLACE ALL PIPING, VALVES, AND OTHER IRRIGATION COMPONENTS WITHIN THE ADJACENT PLANTER EXCEPT WHERE PIPES CROSS PAVING. PLACE PIPING TO PREVENT CONFLICT WITH SUBSEQUENT PLANTING.  REFER TO PLANTING
PLAN.

CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE COMPLETE 'AS-BUILT' DRAWINGS  (DIGITAL AND HARD COPY) TO THE CITY AT COMPLETION OF PROJECT AND CONFIRM CONNECTION OF CONTROLLER TO CENTRAL CONTROL WITH THE CITY AND THAT THE SYSTEM FUNCTIONS PROPERLY.

TRENCH ALL MAIN LINES TO A DEPTH OF 18", TRENCH ALL LATERAL LINES TO A DEPTH OF 12".  TRENCH ALL MAIN OR LATERAL LINES TO A DEPTH OF 24" WHERE CROSSING UNDER DRIVEWAY PAVEMENT AND PLACE WITHIN A SCHEDULE 40 SLEEVE, SIZE AS SHOWN.

INSTALL SLEEVES WHERE SHOWN ON PLAN AND AS REQUIRED, PRIOR TO THE PLACEMENT OF PAVING.  COORDINATE WITH PAVING CONTRACTOR.

ALL REMOTE CONTROL VALVES, QUICK COUPLER VALVES, AND FLUSH VALVES SHALL BE INSTALLED IN PLANTER AND IN VALVE BOXES.

CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR COMPLETE COVERAGE OF ALL PLANT MATERIAL.  INSTALL ADDITIONAL EMITTERS OR ADJUST SPACING AS REQUIRED.

MAIN LINE PIPE SIZE DOWNSTREAM OF LAST PIPE SIZE CALLOUT TO BE 1" PIPE (MAIN LINE PIPE SIZE DIAMETER NOT TO BE LESS THAN 1"). LATERAL PIPE SIZE DOWNSTREAM OF LAST PIPE SIZE CALLOUT TO BE 3/4" PIPE (LATERAL PIPE SIZE DIAMETER NOT TO BE LESS THAN 3/4").

IT IS IMPORTANT THAT THE CONTROLLER  IS GROUNDED TO GROUND RODS OR PLATES WITH LESS THAN 10 OHMS RESISTANCE. THE GROUND SHOULD ALWAYS BE MEASURED WITH A GROUND RESISTANCE METER. A "CLAMP ON METER" CANNOT BE USED FOR GROUND MEASUREMENT, SINCE THIS IS AN ISOLATED SYSTEM. GROUND RESISTANCE MEASUREMENTS SHOULD BE
PERFORMED WITH A "FALL OF POTENTIAL" TYPE METER IN DECODER SYSTEMS. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO PROVIDE THE OWNER AND THE CITY OF CHICO WITH A CERTIFIED GROUNDING REPORT SHOWING THE RESULTS OF THE TEST.

13. SEE DETAILS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

12. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO PROVIDE AND INSTALL A HUNTER COMPATIBLE WIRELESS MODEM TO CONNECT TO THE CITY CENTRAL CONTROL. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR WORKING WITH CITY TO MAKE CONNECTION.

1.  GENERAL - CONTRACTOR SHALL BID AND INSTALL IRRIGATION PER THESE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS UNLESS GIVEN
FURTHER WRITTEN  INSTRUCTIONS OR REVISED PLANS PER OWNER OR LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.  WORK INCLUDES BUT IS
NOT LIMITED TO ALL LABOR, EQUIPMENT, AND   MATERIALS NECESSARY TO FURNISH, INSTALL AND TEST IRRIGATION
SYSTEM AS SHOWN ON THE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFIED HEREIN.

2.  QUALITY ASSURANCE - MANUFACTURERS DIRECTIONS AND DETAILED DRAWINGS SHALL BE FOLLOWED IN ALL CASES
WHERE THE MANUFACTURERS OF COMPONENTS USED IN THIS CONTRACT COVER POINTS NOT SHOWN ON DRAWINGS
AND SPECIFICATIONS.

3.  ORDINANCES AND REGULATIONS - THE CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN AND PAY FOR ANY AND ALL PERMITS AND
INSPECTIONS AS REQUIRED.  THE  MATERIALS AND WORK SHALL CONFORM TO ALL APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE
LATEST EDITION OF THE UNIFORM PLUMBING CODE AND THE  NATIONAL ELECTRIC CODE.

4.  EXPLANATION OF DRAWINGS - ALL OFFSETS, FITTINGS, SLEEVES, ETC. NOT INDICATED DUE TO SCALE OF DRAWINGS
ARE TO BE FURNISHED AS REQUIRED.  BEFORE PROCEEDING WITH ANY WORK, CONTRACTOR SHALL CHECK AND VERIFY
ALL DIMENSIONS AND QUANTITIES AND SHALL INFORM THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OF ANY DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN
DRAWINGS AND ACTUAL CONDITIONS.  CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSUME ALL RESPONSIBILITY FOR WORK INSTALLED IN SUCH
AN AREA, FOR WORK MODIFIED WITHOUT APPROVAL.  PIPE SIZES ON PLANS ARE MINIMUM ALLOWABLE.

5.  SUBMITTALS - CONTRACTOR SHALL SUPPLY OWNER WITH AS-BUILT RECORD OF IRRIGATION ILLUSTRATING EXACT
LOCATION OF LATERAL AND MAIN  LINES, REMOTE CONTROL VALVES, POINTS OF CONNECTION, BACKFLOW PREVENTER,
AND CONTROLLER.  CONTRACTOR SHALL FURNISH TO OWNER KEYS TO CONTROLLER ENCLOSURE, AND ANY SPECIAL
TOOLS REQUIRED FOR MAINTENANCE OF ALL IRRIGATION COMPONENTS.

6.  GUARANTEE - THE CONTRACTOR SHALL GUARANTEE THE IRRIGATION SYSTEM FOR A PERIOD OF 120 DAYS THAT THE
SYSTEM SHALL BE FREE FROM  DEFECTS IN MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP AND THAT THE WORK HAS BEEN COMPLETED IN
ACCORDANCE TO THE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REPAIR OR REPLACE ANY DEFECTS
FOR THE ABOVE MENTIONED TIME PERIOD AT NO COST TO THE OWNER.  SUCH REPAIRS OR REPLACEMENTS SHALL BE
COMPLETED WITHIN A 48 HOUR TIME PERIOD.

7.  CONTROL WIRES - CONNECTIONS BETWEEN THE CONTROLLER AND THE REMOTE CONTROL VALVES SHALL BE MADE
WITH DIRECT BURIAL COPPER WIRE  AWG-U.F. 600 VOLT.  WIRE SHALL BE SIZED NO LESS THAN #14, SHALL BE TAPED TO
THE MAIN LINE AT 10 FOOT INTERVALS EXCEPT WHERE  INDEPENDENTLY SLEEVED.  AN EXPANSION CURL SHALL BE
PROVIDED  WITHIN 3 FEET OF EACH WIRE CONNECTION.  EXPANSION CURLS SHALL BE  18 INCHES IN LENGTH AT EACH
SPLICE CONNECTION AND AT EACH CONTROL VALVE SO THAT IN CASE OF REPAIR THE VALVE BONNET CAN BE  BROUGHT
TO THE SURFACE WITHOUT DISCONNECTION OF CONTROL WIRES.  ALL SPLICES SHALL BE MADE WITH TOM KING
HARMONY PRODUCTS SNAPLOC LV-9000 SEALING PACKS, DRI-SPLICE DS-400 WIRE CONNECTORS, 3M DBY SEALING
PACKS OR APPROVED EQUAL.  ALL SPLICES SHALL BE WATERPROOF.

8.  BACKFILL - THE TRENCHES SHALL NOT BE BACKFILLED UNTIL ALL REQUIRED TESTS ARE PERFORMED.  BACKFILL SHALL BE
MECHANICALLY  COMPACTED IN LANDSCAPED AREAS TO A DRY DENSITY EQUAL TO ADJACENT UNDISTURBED AREAS.
BACKFILL SHALL CONFORM TO ADJACENT GRADES WITHOUT DIPS, SUNKEN AREAS, HUMPS, OR OTHER SURFACE
IRREGULARITIES.  IF SETTLEMENT OCCURS AND SUBSEQUENT ADJUSTMENTS ARE  NECESSARY, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL
MAKE ALL REQUIRED ADJUSTMENTS WITHOUT COST TO THE OWNER.

9.  ADJUSTMENT OF THE SYSTEM - THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FLUSH AND ADJUST ALL IRRIGATION HEADS FOR OPTIMUM
PERFORMANCE AND TO PREVENT OVER SPRAY ONTO BUILDINGS, WALKS, WALLS AND FENCES AS MUCH AS POSSIBLE.

10. TESTING - TEST ALL PRESSURE LINES, PRIOR TO BACKFILLING, UNDER HYDROSTATIC PRESSURE OF 150 PSI FOR A
PERIOD OF 2 HOURS.  IF  LEAKS DEVELOP, REPAIR SYSTEM AND REPEAT TEST UNTIL PRESSURE IS HELD.

11. BACKFLOW PREVENTION ASSEMBLY - INSTALL AS PER SPECIFICATIONS AND DETAILS.

12. VALVES - INSTALL IN VALVE BOXES WITH DRAIN ROCK.

13. SWING JOINTS - INSTALL IRRIGATION HEADS AS PER SPECIFICATIONS AND DETAILS.

14. CLEAN UP - CLEAN UP SHALL BE MADE AS EACH PORTION OF WORK PROGRESSES.  ALL PAVING AND WALKS SHALL BE
BROOMED OR WASHED DOWN  AND ANY DAMAGE SUSTAINED TO THE WORK OF OTHERS SHALL BE REPAIRED TO
ORIGINAL CONDITIONS ACCEPTABLE TO THE OWNER.

IRRIGATION SPECIFICATIONS

NOTES:

2

1

5

4

3

7

6

10

9

8

SECTION VIEW

6

7

9

8

5

3

10

2

4

1

1. SIDES OF TRENCH WILL BE DUG
SQUARE AND CLEAN OF ALL SHARP
MATERIAL.

2. ALLOW FOR SETTLING.

3. MAINLINE TO BE INSPECTED BY
OWNER'S  REPRESENTATIVE PRIOR
TO BACKFILL. SEE INSPECTION
SCHEDULE.

CONTROL WIRES OR DECODER
CABLE IN GRAY SCHEDULE 40 PVC
CONDUIT. SIZE PER PLAN, 2" DIAM.
MIN.

12
11 3" DETECTABLE TAPE. CHRISTY

MODEL TA-DT-03-B-IRR OR EQUAL.

PVC MAINLINE.

MAINLINE -18" MIN. COVER.

LATERAL -12" MIN. COVER.

2" MIN. SAND BEDDING BELOW
PIPING.

6" OR AS NEEDED TO PROVIDE FOR
A MINIMUM 4" CLEARANCE BETWEEN
PIPES.

PVC SCHEDULE 40 LATERAL LINE.

SIX INCHES SAND FILL COVER,
ABOVE MAINLINE.

TRENCH BACKFILL PER
SPECIFICATIONS.

FINISH GRADE.

2

1

5

4

3

7

6

10

9

8

SECTION VIEW

6

7

9

5

3 12

2

4

13

CONTROL WIRES OR DECODER CABLE
IN GRAY SCHEDULE 40 PVC CONDUIT.
SIZE PER PLAN, 2" DIAM. MIN.

11 3" DETECTABLE TAPE. CHRISTY MODEL
TA-DT-03-B-IRR OR EQUAL.

PVC MAINLINE.

18" MINIMUM COVER BENEATH NON
VEHICULAR PAVING.

SAND BACKFILL PER SPECIFICATIONS.

2" MINIMUM SAND BEDDING BELOW
PIPE.

6" OR AS NEEDED TO PROVIDE FOR A
MINIMUM 4" CLEARANCE BETWEEN
PIPES.

PVC SCHEDULE 40 LATERAL LINE.

SIX INCHES SAND FILL COVER, ABOVE
MAINLINE.

TRENCH BACKFILL PER
SPECIFICATIONS.

FINISH SURFACE OF PAVING.

11

11

12 IRRIGATION SLEEVE PER IRRIGATION
PLAN. SIZE PER PLAN, 4" MINIMUM.

10

14

1

13 PEDESTRIAN PAVING PER CITY
STANDARDS.

14 PAVING SUBGRADE PER CITY
STANDARDS.

12 2" MIN. SEPARATION.

NOTES:

1. SIDES OF TRENCH WILL BE DUG SQUARE AND
CLEAN OF ALL SHARP MATERIAL.

2. ALLOW FOR SETTLING.

3. SEE TRANSITION TO SLEEVING BENEATH PAVING
DETAIL FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

8

FLOW

SCH 80 PVC FEMALE ADAPTER (S X T)

13 SAND BACKFILL PER SPECIFICATIONS.

13

1

5

6

6

METAL CONDUIT OUTLET BODY
WITH COVER AND GASKET.

#8 BARE COPPER WIRE TO
GROUND ROD OR PLATE,
INSTALL PER N.E.C. AND LOCAL
CODES (INSTALL IN IRRIGATED
AREA)

METAL CONDUIT (PER
NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE)
TO POWER SUPPLY

5

8

7

7

HARDWIRE TO 120 V POWER
SUPPLY. SEE ARCHITECT'S PLAN
FOR POWER SUPPLY.
CONNECTION TO POWER
SHALL BE PERFORMED BY A
LICENSED ELECTRICIAN.

8

5

SCH 40 PVC SWEEP. INSTALL
BELOW GRADE.

9

9

PER PLANS.

201

Item 3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXP. 06-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
#

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGNATURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RENEWAL DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPLAN VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USECTION VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS-23

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REDUCED PRESSURE BACKFLOW PREVENTER DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
REDUCED PRESSURE BACKFLOW PREVENTER. SEE PLANS FOR MAKE, MODEL, AND SIZE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRESSURE REGULATOR-LINE SIZE (ONLY APPLICABLE IF SPECIFIED ON IRRIGATION PLAN).

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNION. LINE SIZE. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" CONCRETE PAD- MEDIUM BROOM FINISH. FINISH SURFACE OF CONCRETE PAD SHALL BE FLUSH WITH ADJACENT HARDSCAPE OR HEADER. EXTEND 4" BEYOND OUTSIDE DIMENSION OF ENCLOSURE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE. HOLD DOWN 3-1/2" IN GROUNDCOVER OR DECOMPOSED GRANITE, 1-1/2" IN TURF, 1/2" IN SEED. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC MAINLINE. SEE PLANS FOR SIZE AND TYPE. SEE DETAILS LS-19, LS-20, & LS-21.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WRAP ALL BURIED GALVANIZED PIPE WITH 20 ML CORROSION PROTECTIVE TAPE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC SCHEDULE 40 ADAPTER/BUSHING (MIPT x SLIP).

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAINLESS STEEL OR ALUMINUM ENCLOSURE, STRONG BOX SBBC AL SERIES OR APPROVED EQUAL.  SEE PLANS FOR SIZE AND MODEL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCH. 40 GALVANIZED PIPE AND FITTINGS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET FROM METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USECTION VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS-26

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE VALVE DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET TOP OF BOX ABOVE FINISH GRADE: 1/2" IN SEED, 1-1/2" IN SOD, 3-1/2" IN PLANTER OR DECOMPOSED GRANITE OR CRUSHED ROCK. LEVEL WITH ADJACENT HARDSCAPE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLOW 3" BETWEEN TOP OF VALVE BOX AND PVC PIPE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARSON 910 OR EQUAL 10" DIAMETER GREEN PLASTIC VALVE BOX WITH BOLT DOWN LOCKING LID.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" DIAMETER VERTICAL EXTENSION SCH 40 PVC PIPE. LENGTH AS REQUIRED. NOTCH TO ACCEPT MAINLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEA GRAVEL AS REQUIRED BETWEEN VALVE BOX AND VERTICAL PIPE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) COMMON BRICKS FOR SUPPORT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NIBCO T-113-K-LF LEAD FREE THREADED GATE VALVE WITH BRONZE CROSSHANDLE AND NON-RISING STEM (OR APPROVED EQUAL). LINE SIZE, MODEL PER PLANS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
34" DRAIN ROCK; 6" DEPTH.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCH. 80 NIPPLE, T.O.E. 6" MIN. LENGTH.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4" GALVANIZED WIRE CLOTH.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD TRENCHING DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS-20

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRENCHING DETAIL BENEATH PAVING (NON-VEHICULAR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" MIN. LAYER COMPACTED CLASS II AGGREGATE BASE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSULATED BLANKET- FROSTGUARD OR APPROVED EQUAL. SIZE AS REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO HAVE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO HAVE BACKFLOW PREVENTER CERTIFIED PRIOR TO ACCEPTANCE OF PROJECT BY CITY. 2. CONTRACTOR SHALL PERFORM A HYDROSTATIC CONTRACTOR SHALL PERFORM A HYDROSTATIC PRESSURE TEST IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROVIDE AND INSTALL PAD-LOCK. PROVIDE OWNER WITH 2 KEYS (MIN.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL HEADER (WHERE APPLICABLE).

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
HARDSCAPE FINISH SURFACE (WHERE APPLICABLE).

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
USE MIN. 5 WRAPS OF TEFLON TAPE AT EACH THREADED CONNECTION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 1 OF 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS-27

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW SENSOR/ MASTER VALVE ASSEMBLY DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 2 OF 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS-27

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1.  INSTALL FLOW SENSOR AS PER MANUFACTURERES SPECIFICATIONS. 2.  INSTALL FLOW SENSOR WIRES IN 1" MIN. DIAM. GRAY SCH 40 PVC CONDUIT FROM FLOW SENSOR TO CONTROLLER ENCLOSURE. 3. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO CONFIGURE THE FLOW METER USING THE HYDRAWISE ACCOUNT. CONTACT OWNER TO OBTAIN THE REQUIRED PERMISSIONS. 4. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROGRAM ONE STATION OF THE CONTROLLER TO ALLOW FOR THE USE OF QUICK COUPLING VALVES WITHOUT TRIGGERING A MASTER VALVE SHUTOFF.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
MASTER VALVE, NORMALLY CLOSED. INSTALL DOWNSTREAM OF BACKFLOW PREVENTER. MANUFACTURER AND MODEL PER PLANS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW SENSOR. MANUFACTURER AND MODEL PER PLANS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC FLOW SENSING MANIFOLD. DIAMETERS AS PER FLOW SENSOR MANUFACTURER SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTROL/ COMMON WIRE (OR DECODER CABLE) IN A 2" MIN. DIAM GRAY PVC CONDUIT. CONTROL WIRES (OR DECODER CABLE)MUST BE RUN IN A SEPARATE CONDUIT FROM FLOW SENSOR WIRES.MUST BE RUN IN A SEPARATE CONDUIT FROM FLOW SENSOR WIRES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERPROOF CONNECTIONS 3M MODEL DBY-6 OR APPROVED EQUAL. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREEN PLASTIC VALVE BOX WITH BOLT DOWN LOC-KIT; CARSON MODEL 1419 OR APPROVED EQUAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC SCHEDULE 80 UNION, S X S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC SCHEDULE 80 NIPPLE, T.0.E.; SIZE PER VALVE SIZE, 3" MINIMUM LENGTH.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
(4) COMMON BRICKS FOR VALVE BOX SUPPORT

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALVE BOX EXTENSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" CRUSHED DRAIN ROCK; 6" MINIMUM DEPTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4" GALVANIZED WIRE CLOTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE FINISH GRADE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW SENSOR/ MASTER VALVE ASSEMBLY NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
10 X PIPE DIAMETER

AutoCAD SHX Text
5 X PIPE DIAMETER

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO IRRIGATION SYSTEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
5 X PIPE DIAMETER

AutoCAD SHX Text
10 X PIPE DIAMETER

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
TWO WIRES TO FLOW SENSOR TERMINAL AT THE IRRIGATION CONTROLLER (18 AWG MIN.). SHIELDED WIRE WITH DIFFERENT COLOR FROM CONTROL/ COMMON WIRE OR DECODER CABLE. INSTALL IN GRAY SCH 40 PVC CONDUIT. WIRES MUST BE RUN IN A SEPARATE CONDUIT FROM CONTROL/ COMMON WIRES OR DECODER CABLE. PIGTAIL 18" MIN. EXTRA IN VALVE BOX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" IN SEED  1-1/2" IN SOD  3-1/2" IN PLANTER AND/ OR DECOMPOSED GRANITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEAD FREE STRAINER (ONLY APPLICABLE IF SPECIFIED ON IRRIGATION PLAN).

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" DETECTABLE TAPE. CHRISTY MODEL A-DT-03-B-IRR OR EQUAL. SEE DETAILS LS-19, LS-20, & LS-21.

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAND FILLED IRRIGATION MAINLINE TRENCH. SEE DETAILS LS-19, LS-20, & LS-21.

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAND FILLED IRRIGATION MAINLINE TRENCH. SEE DETAILS LS-19, LS-20, & LS-21.

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUPLING. SXS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRRIGATION MAINLINE. SEE DETAILS LS-19, LS-20, & LS-21.

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" DETECTABLE TAPE. CHRISTY MODEL TA-DT-03-B-IRR OR EQUAL. SEE DETAILS LS-19, LS-20, & LS-21.

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANDED MAINLINE TRENCH. SEE DETAILS LS-19, LS-20, & LS-21.SEE DETAILS LS-19, LS-20, & LS-21.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC MAINLINE. SEE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS. SEE DETAILS LS-19, LS-20, & LS-21.SEE DETAILS LS-19, LS-20, & LS-21.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" DETECTABLE TAPE. CHRISTY MODEL TA-DT-03-B-IRR OR EQUAL. INSTALL ABOVE ALL MAINLINE. SEE DETAILS LS-19, LS-20, & LS-21.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
19



Fi
le

 N
am

e:
 Z

:\
BF

LA
 (2

20
0-

22
99

)\
22

04
 O

ro
vi

lle
 V

et
er

an
s 

H
ou

si
ng

\2
20

4 
C

AD
\2

20
4 

C
D

s\
22

04
 Ir

rig
at

io
n 

11
-2

4-
20

.d
w

g

Plot Date:  November 30,  2020 - 11:59 am

   BFLA 2020 ALL RIGHTS RESERVEDC

SHEET NUMBER

RGA PROJECT #:  20 600

BFLA  PROJECT #: 2204

PROJECT NUMBERS

NO.    DESCRIPTION

DATES

SHEET TITLE

PROJECT

PROJECT ARCHITECT:

OWNER AND APPLICANT
DEVELOPER:

LICENSE

627 BROADWAY, SUITE 220,
CHICO, CALIFORNIA 95928

PHONE: (530) 899-1130

www.BFLAdesign.com
www.facebook.com/BFLAdesign

BRIAN FIRTH
LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT, INC.

12-1-20

OROVILLE VETERANS'
HOUSING

711 MONTGOMERY
STREET

OROVILLE,
CALIFORNIA

RUSSELL GALLAWAY
ASSOCIATES INC.

115 MEYERS ST #110,
CHICO, CA 95928

PHONE: (530) 342-0302

DESCRIPTION DATE
CD SUBMITTAL

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y

NO
T F

O
R C

O
NST

RU
CTIO

N

VETERANS HOUSING
DEVELOPMENT

CORPORATION (VHDC)
153 HARTNELL AVE SUITE

200
REDDING CA 96002

L-3.2

LANDSCAPE
IRRIGATION

DETAILS

8

6

7

3

5

4

1 15

16

17

18

12

13

14

11

10

9

19

2

20

21

1/4" GALVANIZED WIRE CLOTH PLACED ABOVE GRAVEL

REMOTE CONTROL DRIP VALVE ASSEMBLY; SIZE AND MODEL
PER PLAN

LOCKING WATERPROOF WIRE CONNECTOR, MODEL DBY-6
OR APPROVED EQUAL.

PLASTIC VALVE BOX WITH  LOCKING COVER.  CARSON  MODEL
1419 OR APPROVED EQUAL AS REQUIRED TO HOUSE ENTIRE
ASSEMBLY. SEE SPECIFICATIONS.

FINISH GRADE

1/2" IN SEED 1-1/2" IN SOD 3-1/2" IN PLANTER AND/ OR
DECOMPOSED GRANITE

PVC SCHEDULE 40 LATERAL LINE; PROVIDE 18" LENGTH PRIOR
TO FIRST FITTING. SEE DETAILS LS-19, LS-20, & LS-21.

SCHEDULE 80 PVC UNION, SxS

SCHEDULE 40 PVC ELBOW (SXS)

CONTROL AND COMMON WIRES PER PLANS AND
SPECIFICATIONS. PROVIDE MIN. 18" EXTRA COILED. SEE DETAILS
LS-19, LS-20, & LS-21.

SCHEDULE 40 PVC PIPE; LENGTH AS REQUIRED.

PVC MAINLINE. 18" MINIMUM COVER. SEE DETAILS LS-19, LS-20,
& LS-21.

3/4" CRUSHED ROCK; 6" DEPTH

SCHEDULE 80 PVC NIPPLE. THREAD ONE END.

GRAY PVC SCHEDULE 40 ELECTRICAL CONDUIT; SIZE AS
NEEDED. SEE SPECIFICATIONS. SEE DETAILS LS-19, LS-20, &
LS-21.

PVC SCHEDULE 40 CONDUIT SWEEP, COUPLED BOTH ENDS

SAND TRENCH BACKFILL. 6" ABOVE MAINLINE, 2" BELOW,
MINIMUM. SEE DETAILS LS-19, LS-20, & LS-21.

CHRISTY ID-MAX-P2-RC005 WITH CONTROLLER AND VALVE
NUMBER IDENTIFICATION TO VALVE STEM WITH NYLON CABLE
TIE. SEE SPECIFICATIONS.

NOTES:
1. ALL SLIP FITTINGS TO BE PRIMED AND GLUED.
2. ONE VALVE PER BOX
3. INSTALL MINIMUM OF 12" FROM STRUCTURES OR HARDSCAPE.
4. INSTALL IN PLANTER BEDS WHERE POSSIBLE.
5. PLACE VALVE BOX AT RIGHT ANGLES TO STRUCTURES OR

HARDSCAPE.
6. USE MIN. 3 WRAPS OF TEFLON TAPE AT EACH THREADED

CONNECTION.

SECTION VIEW

10

19

5

8

1

7

13

12

6"

16
17

2

3

4

9
10

12"

6

14

11

2

19

PVC BALL VALVE (SXS). LINE SIZE.

21

6

15

19 19

22 PVC CONDUIT COUPLER. SOLVENT WELD TO CONDUIT PIPE
ENDS. PROVIDE 4" CLEAR SPACE ABOVE CRUSHED ROCK.

4 COMMON BRICKS FOR VALVE BOX SUPPORT

20

18" MIN.
15 12

8

6

7

3

5

4

1

15

16

17

18

12

13

14

11

10

9

19

2

20

21

BLOCK OPENING AROUND PIPE AS REQUIRED TO PREVENT
SOIL INTRUSION.

1/4" GALVANIZED WIRE CLOTH PLACED ABOVE GRAVEL

REMOTE CONTROL DRIP VALVE ASSEMBLY; SIZE AND MODEL
PER PLAN

LOCKING WATERPROOF WIRE CONNECTOR, MODEL DBY-6
OR APPROVED EQUAL.

PLASTIC VALVE BOX WITH  LOCKING COVER.  CARSON  MODEL
1730 OR APPROVED EQUAL AS REQURED TO HOUSE ENTIRE
ASSEMBLY. SEE SPECIFICATIONS.

FINISH GRADE
1/2" IN SEED 1-1/2" IN SOD 3-1/2" IN PLANTER AND/ OR
DECOMPOSED GRANITE

PVC SCHEDULE 40 LATERAL LINE; PROVIDE 18" LENGTH PRIOR
TO FIRST FITTING. SEE DETAILS LS-19, LS-20, & LS-21.

SCHEDULE 80 PVC UNION, SxS

SCHEDULE 40 PVC ELBOW (SXS)

CONTROL AND COMMON WIRES PER PLANS AND
SPECIFICATIONS. PROVIDE MIN. 18" EXTRA COILED.

SCHEDULE 40 PVC PIPE; LENGTH AS REQUIRED

PVC MAINLINE. 18" MINIMUM COVER. SEE DETAILS LS-19, LS-20,
& LS-21.

3/4" CRUSHED ROCK; 6" DEPTH

SCHEDULE 80 PVC NIPPLE. THREAD ONE END.

GRAY PVC SCHEDULE 40 ELECTRICAL CONDUIT; 3" MINIMUM
DIAMETER. SEE SPECIFICATIONS. SEE DETAILS LS-19, LS-20, &
LS-21.

PVC SCHEDULE 40 CONDUIT SWEEP, COUPLED BOTH ENDS

SAND TRENCH BACKFILL. 6" ABOVE MAINLINE, 2" BELOW,
MINIMUM. SEE DETAILS LS-19, LS-20, & LS-21.

CHRISTY ID-MAX-P2-RC005 WITH CONTROLLER AND VALVE
NUMBER IDENTIFICATION TO VALVE STEM WITH NYLON CABLE
TIE. SEE SPECIFICATIONS.

NOTES:
1. ALL SLIP FITTINGS TO BE PRIMED AND GLUED.
2. ONE VALVE PER BOX
3. INSTALL MINIMUM OF 12" FROM STRUCTURES OR

HARDSCAPE.
4. INSTALL IN PLANTER BEDS WHERE POSSIBLE.
5. PLACE VALVE BOX AT RIGHT ANGLES TO STRUCTURES OR

HARDSCAPE.
6. USE MIN. 5 WRAPS OF TEFLON TAPE AT EACH THREADED

CONNECTION.

SECTION VIEW

10 24

5

8

1

7

13

12

6"

16
17

2

3 4

9
10

12"

6

14

11

2

19

PVC BALL VALVE. SxS. LINE SIZE.

21

SECTION VIEW

6

5

4

2

3

1

GRAY PLASTIC VALVE BOX WITH LOCKING COVER,
CARSON MODEL 910-GRAY OR 1419-GRAY OR
APPROVED EQUAL. INSTALL WITH LOCKING BOLT KIT.

3/4" CRUSHED ROCK; 6" MINIMUM DEPTH

SET TOP OF BOX ABOVE FINISH GRADE:
1/2" IN SEED
1-1/2" IN SOD
3-1/2" IN PLANTER OR DECOMPOSED GRANITE.

FINISH GRADE

9

10

8

7

CONTROL/ COMMON WIRES (WHERE APPLICABLE).
PROVIDE MINIMUM 18" COILED EXTRA.

1/4" GALVANIZED WIRE CLOTH

GRAY SCHEDULE 40 PVC ELECTRICAL CONDUIT

PVC SCHEDULE 40 CONDUIT SWEEP  ELBOWS WITH
COUPLERS BOTH ENDS

8

6

3

1
4

9

10

2

18"

NOTES:
1. PULL BOXES SHALL BE INSTALLED AT BOTH SIDES OF
CROSSINGS BENEATH ROADWAY PAVING AND AT BENDS
ALONG CONDUIT ROUTE.
2. USE LOCKING WATERPROOF WIRE CONNECTOR, MODEL
DBY-6 OR APPROVED EQUAL FOR ALL WIRE SPLICES

3 COMMON BRICKS FOR SUPPORT

5

SECTION VIEW- TRANSITION TO SLEEVING BENEATH PAVING

2

1 HARDSCAPE FINISH SURFACE.

10

9 PVC CONDUIT SWEEP (90°).

SAND FILLED AND PIPE BEDDING.

18"

PAVEMENT SUBGRADE PER CITY
SPECIFICATIONS.

7

6

10

4

9

3

5

8

LANDSCAPE FINISH GRADE. SEE
SPECIFICATIONS.

3 PVC IRRIGATION SLEEVE. SIZE PER PLAN.
EXTEND 1' BEYOND EXTENT OF
HARDSCAPE.

4 PULL BOX. SEE DETAIL LS-53 OR LS-54..

5 PVC CONDUIT PER PLAN.

6 PVC MAINLINE PER PLAN.

7 PVC LATERAL LINE PER PLAN.

8 45° PVC FITTING.

11

2

12"

2

8

12

12

24" MINIMUM COVER BENEATH VEHICULAR
PAVING. 18" MINIMUM COVER BENEATH
NON-VEHICULAR PAVING.

6

9

19 19

22 PVC CONDUIT COUPLER. SOLVENT WELD TO CONDUIT PIPE
ENDS. PROVIDE 4" CLEAR SPACE ABOVE CRUSHED ROCK.

4 COMMON BRICKS FOR VALVE BOX SUPPORT

20

18" MIN.
15 12

11 IRRIGATION MAINLINE (WHERE APPLICABLE)

11

11

11

SAND BACKFILL AT MAINLINE- 6" ABOVE AND 2" BELOW,
MINIMUM.

12

12

12

2

1

5

4

3

7

6

10

9

8

SECTION VIEW
6

7

9

5

3 12

2

4

13

11 3" DETECTABLE TAPE. CHRISTY MODEL
TA-DT-03-B-IRR OR EQUAL.

24" MINIMUM COVER BENEATH
VEHICULAR PAVING.

6" OR AS NEEDED TO PROVIDE FOR A
MINIMUM 4" CLEARANCE BETWEEN
PIPES.

PVC SCHEDULE 40 LATERAL LINE.

SIX INCHES SAND FILL COVER, ABOVE
MAINLINE.

FINISH SURFACE.

11

12 IRRIGATION SLEEVE PER IRRIGATION
PLAN. SIZE PER PLAN, 4" MINIMUM.

10

14

1

13 VEHICULAR PAVING PER CIVIL
ENGINEER

14 PAVING SUBGRADE PER CIVIL
ENGINEER

NOTES:

1. SIDES OF TRENCH WILL BE DUG SQUARE AND
CLEAN OF ALL SHARP MATERIAL.

2. ALLOW FOR SETTLING.

3. SEE TRANSITION TO SLEEVING BENEATH PAVING
DETAIL FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

8

SAND BACKFILL PER SPECIFICATIONS.

TRENCH BACKFILL PER
SPECIFICATIONS.

2" MINIMUM SAND BEDDING BELOW
PIPE.

CONTROL WIRES OR DECODER CABLE
IN GRAY SCHEDULE 40 PVC CONDUIT.
SIZE PER PLAN, 2" DIAM. MIN.

PVC MAINLINE.

LOCKING WATERPROOF WIRE CONNECTOR,
MODEL DBY-6 OR APPROVED EQUAL.

9 PVC CONDUIT SWEEP (90°).

8 45° PVC FITTING.

13

13

14 3" DETECTABLE TAPE. CHRISTY MODEL
TA-DT-03-B-IRR OR EQUAL.

14

15

23 3" DETECTABLE TAPE. CHRISTY MODEL TA-DT-03-B-IRR OR EQUAL.
INSTALL ABOVE ALL MAINLINE. SEE DETAILS LS-19, LS-20, & LS-21.

23 23

23 3" DETECTABLE TAPE. CHRISTY MODEL TA-DT-03-B-IRR OR EQUAL.
INSTALL ABOVE ALL MAINLINE. SEE DETAILS LS-19, LS-20, & LS-21.

23 23

9

1

11

12"

14

22

BLOCK OPENING AROUND PIPE AS REQUIRED TO PREVENT
SOIL INTRUSION.

22

24 SCHEDULE 40 PVC "T" (SXSXS)

24

24 SCHEDULE 40 PVC "T" (SXSXS)

CHRISTY ID-MAX-P2-RC005 WITH CONTROLLER AND
VALVE NUMBER IDENTIFICATION TO VALVE STEM WITH
NYLON CABLE TIE. SEE SPECIFICATIONS.

13

PVC CONDUIT COUPLER. SOLVENT WELD TO
CONDUIT PIPE ENDS. PROVIDE 4" CLEAR SPACE
ABOVE CRUSHED ROCK.

7

13

8

3" DETECTABLE TAPE. CHRISTY MODEL TA-DT-03-B-IRR
OR EQUAL. INSTALL ABOVE ALL MAINLINE. SEE DETAILS
LS-19, LS-20, & LS-21.

14

14
14

202

Item 3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXP. 06-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
#

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGNATURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RENEWAL DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS-31

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOTE CONTROL VALVE (CONVENTIONALLY WIRED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USECTION VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UPLAN VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS-28

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUICK COUPLING VALVE DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET TOP OF BOX ABOVE FINISH GRADE: 1" IN SOD, 3-1/2" IN PLANTER OR DECOMPOSED GRANITE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUICK COUPLING VALVE WITH LOCKING RUBBER COVER, SEE PLANS FOR MAKE AND  MODEL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET QUICK COUPLER 12" FROM EDGE OF PLANTING AREA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB, HEADER OR PAVING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLASTIC VALVE BOX: CARSON 910 OR APPROVED EQUAL. INSTALL WITH LOCKING BOLT DOWN KIT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LASCO STANDARD UNITIZED SWING JOINT OR APPROVED EQUAL. 1"  MINIMUM SIZE, WITH SNAP-LOK STABILIZER ELBOW OUTLET. INLET IS MIPT, OUTLET IS BRASS MIPT W/SNAP LOK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCHEDULE 40 PVC TEE (SXSXT).

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRESSURE MAINLINE, SIZE AND TYPE PER PLAN; 18" MINIMUM COVER. SEE DETAILS LS-19, LS-20, & LS-21.

AutoCAD SHX Text
34" CRUSHED DRAIN ROCK; 6" DEPTH.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4" GALVANIZED WIRE CLOTH PLACED ABOVE GRAVEL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) COMMON BRICKS FOR SUPPORT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCH. 80 NIPPLE, T.O.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1. USE MINIMUM 5 WRAPS OF USE MINIMUM 5 WRAPS OF TEFLON TAPE AT EACH THREADED CONNECTION. 2. PROGRAM CONTROLLER TO OPEN PROGRAM CONTROLLER TO OPEN MAINLINE TO OPERATE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
#8 (1" DIA.) X 30" REBAR; INSTALL PLUMB AND TRUE. SECURE TO QUICK COUPLER VALVE WITH STAINLESS STEEL HOSE CLAMPS AND SCREWS (TYP. 2 PLCS.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAINLESS STEEL HOSE CLAMP WITH STAINLESS STEEL SCREWS (TYP. 2 PLCS.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPRESSION FLUSH VALVE. MANUFACTURER/ MODEL PER PLAN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET TOP OF BOX ABOVE FINISH GRADE:  1/2" IN SEED  1-1/2" IN SOD  3-1/2" IN PLANTER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLASTIC VALVE BOX WITH BOLT DOWN LOC-KIT; CARSON MODEL 910 OR APPROVED EQUAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEAVY DUTY SUBSURFACE DRIPPERLINE (MODEL PER PLANS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" CRUSHED ROCK; 6" - 8" DIAMETER X 24" DEPTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4" GALVANIZED WIRE CLOTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEAVY DUTY SUB-SURFACE DRIPPERLINE FITTING: 2-WAY TEE OR EL, AS REQURIED ( " 34" THREAD X BARB). MANUFACTURER PER PLAN. HOLD DOWN 2" FROM BOTTOM OF VALVE BOX LID.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEAVY DUTY SUB-SURFACE DRIPPERLINE (MANUFACTURER/ MODEL PER PLANS). MODEL PER PLAN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLANK HEAVY DUTY SUBSURFACE DRIPPERLINE RISER WITH MPT FITTINGS. LENGTH AS REQUIRED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC SCHEDULE 80 TEE OR EL (SxSxT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" PVC SCHEDULE 40 LATERAL LINE. SEE DETAILS LS-19, LS-20, & LS-21.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLASTIC VALVE BOX WITH BOLT DOWN LOC-KIT; CARSON MODEL 910 OR APPROVED EQUAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" CRUSHED ROCK, 6" MINIMUM DEPTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMON BRICKS FOR SUPPORT. 3 (MIN.), TYPICAL AT ALL VALVE BOXES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4" GALVANIZED WIRE CLOTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALVE DETAIL DRIP CONTROL ZONE KIT (CONVENTIONALLY WIRED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIPPERLINE MANUAL FLUSH VALVE DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSITION TO DRIPPERLINE DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS-29

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS-39

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS-43

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRENCHING DETAIL BENEATH PAVING (VEHICULAR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PULL BOX DETAIL (CONVENTIONALLY WIRED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS-52

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET TOP OF BOX ABOVE FINISH GRADE:  1/2" IN SEED  1-1/2" IN SOD 3-1/2" IN PLANTER OR DECOMPOSED GRANITE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMON BRICKS FOR SUPPORT. 3 (MIN.), TYPICAL AT ALL VALVE BOXES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
"SCRATCH IN" DRIPPERLINE. SEE SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
"SCRATCH IN" DRIPPERLINE. SEE SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRENCHING DETAIL BENEATH PAVING (VEHICULAR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 1 OF 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET 2 OF 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANDED MAINLINE TRENCH. SEE DETAILS LS-19, LS-20, & LS-21.

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" DETECTABLE TAPE. CHRISTY MODEL TA-DT-03-B-IRR OR EQUAL. INSTALL ABOVE ALL MAINLINE. SEE DETAILS LS-19, LS-20, & LS-21.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
16



Fi
le

 N
am

e:
 Z

:\
BF

LA
 (2

20
0-

22
99

)\
22

04
 O

ro
vi

lle
 V

et
er

an
s 

H
ou

si
ng

\2
20

4 
C

AD
\2

20
4 

C
D

s\
22

04
 Ir

rig
at

io
n 

11
-2

4-
20

.d
w

g

Plot Date:  November 30,  2020 - 11:58 am

   BFLA 2020 ALL RIGHTS RESERVEDC

SHEET NUMBER

RGA PROJECT #:  20 600

BFLA  PROJECT #: 2204

PROJECT NUMBERS

NO.    DESCRIPTION

DATES

SHEET TITLE

PROJECT

PROJECT ARCHITECT:

OWNER AND APPLICANT
DEVELOPER:

LICENSE

627 BROADWAY, SUITE 220,
CHICO, CALIFORNIA 95928

PHONE: (530) 899-1130

www.BFLAdesign.com
www.facebook.com/BFLAdesign

BRIAN FIRTH
LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT, INC.

12-1-20

OROVILLE VETERANS'
HOUSING

711 MONTGOMERY
STREET

OROVILLE,
CALIFORNIA

RUSSELL GALLAWAY
ASSOCIATES INC.

115 MEYERS ST #110,
CHICO, CA 95928

PHONE: (530) 342-0302

DESCRIPTION DATE
CD SUBMITTAL

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y

NO
T F

O
R C

O
NST

RU
CTIO

N

VETERANS HOUSING
DEVELOPMENT

CORPORATION (VHDC)
153 HARTNELL AVE SUITE

200
REDDING CA 96002

L-3.3

LANDSCAPE
IRRIGATION

DETAILS

PLAN VIEW

SECTION VIEW

1

4

7

8

7

6

5

4

3

1

2

9

10

11

12

13

10

6

1

7

5

12

11

13
8

14

14 10

2

2

10

6

15

16

9

15

15

16

16

16

4

4
17

3

17

17

15

12" 24"

9

2

5

15
18

18

18

203

Item 3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXP. 06-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
#

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGNATURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RENEWAL DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EMITTER. MANUFACTURER/ MODEL PER PLAN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP DRESSING PER PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLANK HEAVY DUTY SUBSURFACE DRIPPERLINE. MANUFACTURER/ MODEL PER PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHRUB PLANTING. SEE SHRUB PLANTING DETAIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIPPERLINE DETAIL AT SHRUBS  

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS-45

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIPPERLINE DETAIL AT TREES

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS-44

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE FINISH GRADE AS PER PLANTING SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPTIONAL TEMPORARY WATER RETENTION BERM (TYPICAL). SEE TREE PLANTING DETAIL FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC LATERAL PIPE AND FITTING. INSTALL 8'-0" MIN OR AS CLEAR OF TREE AS POSSIBLE. AVOID PLACING IN PARKWAY STRIPS- INSTALLATION AT BACK OF WALK IS PREFERRED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE STAKE (TYPICAL). SEE TREE PLANTING DETAIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE. SEE PLANTING PLAN AND TREE PLANTING DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE PLANTING HOLE. SEE TREE PLANTING DETAIL FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLANK DRIPPERLINE (NO INLINE EMITTERS) WITH BARBED COMPRESSION FITTINGS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRRIGATION EMITTER. MODEL PER IRRIGATION PLAN. 2 PER TREE. USE  "  14"  DISTRIBUTION TUBING TO DISTRIBUTE WATER TO TREE ROOTBALL. SECURE TO ROOTBALL WITH  " DISTRIBUTION TUBING 14" DISTRIBUTION TUBING STAKE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOT BARRIER (WHERE APPLICABLE). REFER TO TREE PLANTING DETAILS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE FLATWORK (WHERE APPLICABLE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE ROOTBALL. SEE TREE PLANTING DETAIL FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP DRESSING. PER SPECIFCATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIPPERLINE PER PLAN. "SCRATCH -IN" PER SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" MIN SOIL STAPLES AS SHOWN. TYPICAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSITION TO DRIP. SEE DETAIL LS-39.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE FLUSHING VALVE. SEE DETAIL LS-42 OR LS-43.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: OMIT OUTER RING OF DRIPPERLINE AND ADJUST LAYOUT AS REQUIRED TO FIT INTO THE SMALLER PLANTERS AT THE NOSES OF THE MEDIANS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
"SCRATCH IN" DRIPPERLINE. SEE SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL SOIL STAPLE. 6" MINIMUM LENGTH @ 4'-0" O.C., AT CHANGES IN DIRECTION, AND AT FITTINGS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCH 40 PVC "T" (SXSXT)



C

CONTROLLER

FSABFP

BACKFLOW PREVENTER

FLOW SENSING MASTER
VALVE ASSEMBLY

WATER POINT OF
CONNECTION

RF

RAIN/ FREEZE
SENSOR

NOTE:
BACKFLOW AND FLOW

SENSING ASSEMBLY SHOWN
IN PAVING ARE DEPICTED

FOR GRAPHIC CLARITY.
INSTALL WITHIN LANDSCAPE

INSIDE PROJECT FENCING

T

T

T

T

T

T

T T T
T

T T

T

T TT T
T

T T
T T T T

T
T T T T

T TT T T T T T T T T T T

T

T
T

T T T

T

F F

F F

FF

FF

F

F

F F

T
T T T

F F

F F

F

F

F

F

F

F

F

F F

F

F

F

F

F

F

F

F

F

F
F

F
F

F
F F

F

F

F

6
1" 

MONTGOMERY
PARKWAY

STRIP

1.84

4
1" 

ROSES
OUTSIDE

OF
FENCING

3.4

3
1" 

SHRUBS
NORTH
INSIDE

FENCING

4.04

2
1" 

SHRUBS
NORTH

OF
BUILDINGS

3.6

5
1" 

7TH AVE
PARKWAY

STRIP

.94

8
1" 

BIO-
SWALE

24.08

NOTE:
INSTALL 4 EMITTERS EQUALLY

SPACED AROUND EXISTING
TREES. TYPICAL AT ALL

EXISTING CITY STREET TREES.

NOTE:
INSTALL 4 EMITTERS EQUALLY

SPACED AROUND EXISTING
TREES. TYPICAL AT ALL

EXISTING CITY STREET TREES.

9
1" 

ALL NEW
TREES

4.18

1
1" 

SHRUBS
SOUTH

OF
BUILDUINGS

7.4

NOTE:
PIPES SHOWN IN
PAVING ARE DEPICTED
FOR GRAPHIC CLARITY
AND SHOULD BE RUN
IN ADJACENT
LANDSCAPE PLANTERS
WHENEVER POSSIBLE.

7
1" 

6TH AVE
PARKWAY

STRIP

.84

7t
h 

AV
EN

U
E 6t

h 
AV

EN
U

E

MONTGOMERY STREET

FIR ALLEY

7t
h 

AV
EN

U
E 6t

h 
AV

EN
U

E

MONTGOMERY STREET

FIR ALLEY

Fi
le

 N
am

e:
 Z

:\
BF

LA
 (2

20
0-

22
99

)\
22

04
 O

ro
vi

lle
 V

et
er

an
s 

H
ou

si
ng

\2
20

4 
C

AD
\2

20
4 

C
D

s\
22

04
 Ir

rig
at

io
n 

11
-2

4-
20

.d
w

g

Plot Date:  November 30,  2020 - 11:59 am

   BFLA 2020 ALL RIGHTS RESERVEDC

SHEET NUMBER

RGA PROJECT #:  20 600

BFLA  PROJECT #: 2204

PROJECT NUMBERS

NO.    DESCRIPTION

DATES

SHEET TITLE

PROJECT

PROJECT ARCHITECT:

OWNER AND APPLICANT
DEVELOPER:

LICENSE

627 BROADWAY, SUITE 220,
CHICO, CALIFORNIA 95928

PHONE: (530) 899-1130

www.BFLAdesign.com
www.facebook.com/BFLAdesign

BRIAN FIRTH
LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT, INC.

12-1-20

OROVILLE VETERANS'
HOUSING

711 MONTGOMERY
STREET

OROVILLE,
CALIFORNIA

RUSSELL GALLAWAY
ASSOCIATES INC.

115 MEYERS ST #110,
CHICO, CA 95928

PHONE: (530) 342-0302

DESCRIPTION DATE
CD SUBMITTAL

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y

NO
T F

O
R C

O
NST

RU
CTIO

N

VETERANS HOUSING
DEVELOPMENT

CORPORATION (VHDC)
153 HARTNELL AVE SUITE

200
REDDING CA 96002

L-3.4

LANDSCAPE
WATER USE

CALCULATIONS

NOTE:
IRRIGATION SCHEDULES ARE
BASED UPON THE BEST
SEASONAL DATA AVAILABLE. THE
CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE
FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT OF
PLANT MATERIAL AND MAY NEED
TO MAKE SOME  ADJUSTMENTS
IN ORDER TO PROVIDE
ADEQUATE IRRIGATION FOR
OPTIMAL PLANT GROWTH. IT
SHOULD ALSO BE NOTED THAT
THE IRRIGATION CONTROLLER IS
CONNECTED TO A WEB BASED
IRRIGATION MANAGEMENT
SOFTWARE THAT PROVIDES
REALTIME WEATHER DATA THAT
THE CONTROLLER UTILIZES TO
ADJUST THE BASELINE
SCHEDULE TO PROVIDE
OPTIMAL IRRIGATION. ONCE
PLANT MATERIAL HAS BEEN
ESTABLISHED, ALL IRRIGATION
SHALL OCCUR BETWEEN THE
HOURS OF 8PM AND 10 AM.

PLANT ESTABLISHMENT SCHEDULE ESTABLISHED PLANT MAINTENANCE SCHEDULEPRESSURE LOSS CALCULATIONS
1" WATER METER: -3.4 PSI
1" BACKFLOW PREVENTER: -13.PSI
400 LF, 2" SCH. 40 PVC MAINLINE: -1.88 PSI
VALVE: -2 PSI
SCH. 40 PVC LATERAL LINE: -2.5 PSI
TOTAL PRESSURE LOSS: 22.78 PSI

204

Item 3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXP. 06-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
#

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGNATURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RENEWAL DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE



 

1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. P 2024-03 
A RESOLUTION OF THE OROVILLE PLANNING COMMISSION  

EXTENDING APPROVAL OF TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION MAP NO. 20-02 
 TO CREATE 12 UNIT SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCES FROM APPROXIMATELY 
0.64 ACRES OF LAND AT 711 MONTGOMERY STREET, BETWEEN 6TH AND 7TH 

AVENUES 
(Veterans Village). 

 
WHEREAS, on May 4, 2021, the City Council of the City of Oroville adopted a 
Notice of Exemption and approved Tentative Map TSM 20-02 for Veterans Village, a 
12 unit subdivision of 0.64 acres; and 
 
WHEREAS, a request from the project applicant to extend the original 3-year 
approval period has been received; and 
 
WHEREAS, Oroville’s Municipal Code provides for approval of such extensions for 
up to two years; and  
 
WHEREAS, conditions on and surrounding the project site have not changed in any 
significant way; 
 
WHEREAS, the previously adopted Notice of Exemption (Planned Development 
Overlay) for the project remains valid, and adequately addresses potential impacts 
of the project. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Oroville Planning Commission as 
follows: 
 

1. TSM 20-02, is extended for a period of two years, until April 8, 2026.  

2. All previously approved conditions of the Tentative Map’s approval, including all adopted 
Mitigation Measures, shall continue to apply to the project. 

 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was duly introduced and passed at a 

regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the City of Oroville held on the 22nd of 

February 2024, by the following vote: 

 

 

 

 

 

205

Item 3.



 

2 
 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSTAIN:  

ABSENT:  

ATTEST:           APPROVE:             

                                                                                                  

 

_______________________________              _______________________________ 

PATRICK PIATT     CARL DURLING, CHAIRMAN 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 

 
 

206

Item 3.


	Top
	Item 	Names
	Item 1.	USE PERMIT UP 24-02 FOR A NEW UNMANNED WIRELESS TELECOMMUNICATIONS FACILITY AT 3425 ORANGE AVENUE FOR T-MOBILE
	DRAFT PC Staff Report rev 2 Orange Avenue Cell Tower
	consolidated application materials reduced
	external city of oroville Tower information request email.
	Planning Commission resolution P2024-02 Bridge cell tower
	NOE Wireless Tower

	Item 2.	Use Permit UP 24-04 - Starbucks No.3 at 2040 3rd Street
	PL2312-002 PC Staff Report Starbucks Coffee
	Attachment 1 - NOE Starbucks Coffee 2040 3rd
	PL2312-002 PC Reso Starbucks Coffee
	Attachment 3 - Plan Drawings
	Attachment 4 - DRC Report 2040 3rd
	Attachment 5 - 2013 Report

	Item 3.	VETERANS VILLAGE AT 711 MONTGOMERY STREET TENTATIVE MAP EXTENSION TO APRIL 8, 2026
	Veteran's Village Staff Report Draft  for Planning Commission February 22, 2024 by Brandon
	Veteran's Village Map Extension Request
	Maps and Master Plans Veterans Village
	Resolution 2024-03 Draft

	Item 7.	LIBERTY POLE LIGHTING INFORMATIONAL PRESENTATION TO THE HISTORIC ADVISORY COMMISSION
	Bottom

